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2013 B &RT 152 B 3R 3 R Far Fge a1 @ 8 3ik a8
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3pter, 2020 3R 13 31T, 2000 B IRTA BRI Ve (FHfEH FIN THRAC R ) HEH
el Ue T I R e o i 3t & fem, iy ar iedien & weam
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A R AR Y| e SO a1 3T 3 W06 X el € | Toigpd ofeg | Jaer wiaT
T - 600 017, 3 e H TRTI b 1w e 05 o iR o e 3R oy
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o0 3T amenfer cift o o8 3T R el €

2 T Ol AR R & o Ao & e & dow # e 8 o o et e
Eini]

3 3, 300 o AR e #i aTe & 9 o fore et @t dPRT o ST oY 3R Gt et

TTeT STRT BT AN R B 3Tl & |

4 PUAEINT (o HIaRe JUERO T et & AT eIy 3 A e & e ¥ e
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IR® famr

o T g gfkar & fa 3 3,23,764.200 THET wTe g3 (a
2019-20 : 56,30671 TACT 3R Ardieerars 50,96,421 THET 20
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3mifes e o faspr afae & 5l freer af & 905 THET &F gorm §
210% DI ATGEI
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<) o st 2013 B graEE & IR, Su @ dofed B
Rar eg 3R drarest 3R s ittt ar e @ foe
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SATERTOT Hgar

o

& IFIC BUS UaTaI=oT TS 311 3veaT (iR 1 anfeeirer vog feerdeer
Rearariie) Jqerer 2015 (“ToaRfe Jqerer) @ SR 17(5) #
STTEROT |fEd & AT SFIUIE BT G -Teaa dH-Tare gryon 5 Rurc &
3T AT FHTS- |V S T H FaT ol T ¢

e IgeRoT BT T

Jffom & aRT 92 (3) & 31N A =iy & fgavor I wafta
TSN 9 B SFere-V # Her B

aE ®ige

U ¥Rd® EFd vd HETerar wierd 7 a¥ 2020- 21 @ forw S
B eI oraT WRigTd & v § FI 37 U8 TrewT (@Her
0327), TGl AR, T4 &1 e a2 |

&) @ 2020 - 21 B o0 3RV TG, BRE ATEIBR, B BN B
BRT oIl WIeTd & w9 # g Frgad fearmar 21

) wo ifam, 2013 B ERT204 B N FR FroEER, A
# 3¢ o Afaa 3 FreffRa gus # o afaared drar wien
T J1E B T B AT T [T ST & 3R &1 H [ g,
13.08.2020 T TUF ST & a1 P 3129 T F 8 Tl 3Td
v beiifee, (wa+ 30853), dfereiii ot wika, @1 amud
BUT B AreaTeTd o wied & w9 ¥ g fear g | fawia
¥ 2019-20 & TR OIRdT TRI&T IUS (BTH F.0HAR - 3)
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TeT Bidage foafies

BT FaaROT S ET -V | # e & | S 37T, AaT TAsiSIaR
fafrmr @ west #, af 2019-20 & fore 4t a3, Afaamerar
e RaTe o o by I & |

e ota afifa
BN AT 2013, B RT 177 3 AT @ SER AR A (fafe

fecriver vos feeaerer Reararies), Teier, 2015 @ Jiafa dig &
ToTe oraT wrer afhtd ied @ 18 &1 HUiRe a7 & e # faar I
AT URIETT & e Fardl /ot T [gaRural 78 & | a1 = orear u=rem

it grr v Mo [ed gamet &1 WeR fear|
gfeetes STH
BT = Ut 3 R 9 TR D ST BT WIbR el [ & AR 59

TRE, 7T T B ST IR HETe T TSl IR Bl AT Fer -0 Bl aRIG
@ SR ST |

Tafra uiféat ¥ SR a1 aaeen

TATEEN= oY @ foe Tatera miar & wmer asf fope 70 oHe T & =T
T dRAIGR G TS | RAE 7, Tremei= arafer s AR geferq wicat &
T CIFIG T [daR0T BT . B3R -2 B Sieta sgera-V| | # Hem 2 |

PUIRE TS &M (HITHIAR)

BT ST, 2013 Y TRT 135 B AR, ATE DI ATAHR AH(T 7 3
a1 e freerd enfher 7, 39 Tada 0 9 06 eed & | AewsiR
afHfer 05 S, 2019 T IR | TG 3TEATAT, THUBUE ¥ac s MGy
frgfea @ e 3 fawm, <A 3R 3RS #a1e, 9Rd IRAR B
AT BT B T 37 T BRA B TR 7 & | ST GRT AT w1 Y
fFrgfera e ot & are, Bu 3w, 2013 & AR BT ACHIR
fafe T gfe |

qenfy, BuT = faciraray 2019-20 & ERM Ffoaa AreasmR ffaferan
@I 3FUIeH fovar &1 a1ftes e # TR nfafafeat e faazor
STV || # AR & | ST $37 U BT U0 AT 2 |

Trft afd= v yfagant

fairaad (317, 2020) 3R e B AR D BT @ fowira Rafe
BT YT B a1 DIy Y o aRad= 3R ufdagas =&t |
W3 ~ewm s gaiformRor

4T agerer, Jqere 17 (8) @ 3ienfa, 28.08 2020 P 3MATA T ¥
e B 3iTH 31 W, 2019 B BU & fawirar faavon va e warg faazor

TRV § 37 vd gee e 3R Areders, fow 3ik o (o)
R BU & Afaa g faftad exdrea o< Fees Teo & 9t e
TaaRoT Sger®- X # T & | 37 g 9T HTeH W |

et fafrom EasiEiam), 2015 H SN V @ 9T H 3 @S 103
FTRUTHA @ fore Fut afa & yre gmor -ox

IR . ST Us Uee, SRR S | I 04 3R, 2020 B
THTOT-O T 3T 3R 397 a1t oy gfie o & o oy o feideres Hese
I B 1 FId 1S & HAC/DIANRE FHAT & HAT GRT [+ e a1
STRI R ¥ 4T A1 3R el & AT HAeN1ah Srgaer 20 Aer 2 |

Febar praifare

TATHEA & eIt 3R HeniRal & fore 39 G s fawat o Rad
TR T qab wrfaty 81 feeet 3k saiRal W9 aE & sreae
CRAT URTET AU Y Fuds B T & 3R 31 Amar iR 3 Rure g
I T & | Fadbar prafare iR ST @raR Atd S DT Www.
madrasfert.co.in.dewre # g & e 2|

TR ST BTG AH

31TST Y ARG b THUGUeT STIRT TR 588X & fS1T T Bl FNrd =1e & |
THUGEE § P18 O et sk s ydesia wiffie tHesd § B8
IR TEN I &1 TGS ST D AU o Tefw 30T fgar o
BT THCIHRUT 2] faavor Hu & aawrs www.madrasfert.nic.in.
TR U & |

9T,

3D MRS HRA IRBR, IR [aHIT, AHEG TRBR, T35,
.30, faira eemstt, dot, SHTmafal 3R af & R T ert
@ 3FaRd 3R ael Tmel o forw a1 were a1 0 ¥ Udbe ¥ & |
TR BT 3T FHrT 7 8 o5 ot airadr uglfa ufkem-faat
@ YT & o0 3R Set 3R fepsmt oof farsrar 3eamel &1 3@ v
A & ToTw 3R TeretmT obT 31 dyettelt confire ey & | 37T ¥, 31maas
FeTEToT SHTRET gRT SRUTY fagarsT & e Jacq Taor, ufdagdr
3R e Famsit & e 3o yeiar o ot T e 2

TE B AR

EACHE]

G

FTE g gaer e
28 3R, 2020

219 07274628

547 aftis Rare 2019 - 20



...

7| e ot s

I (PR gftaeT § faxoryeen) frram 1988

Hofl GRET P T # faa=or o7 Yo

3) T4 ¢ T 3TN
ﬁ?.ﬁ forga
(3n =R
e @t ) *
GIGRGERACRTICIR:)

= /gfE R)

<1 PrgitR o ugad fodr mr forga enfiven
EOREEIREER]
(i) ST3TST STRER &RT
i et )
SISTeT ST (BT
ST o gfafeex gfe
@/ gfe ()
I
3. wedtdeiud vaTH R T
gfREmT (@0t #)
He ana o
sfad R @ ufae)
4. s=a 95+

3 Icared @ gfer gfvie &1 3anT

(@ 3= smifmn
fergar @ seg &) *
ST + TIUHTATY (TAC)
STTRIT (TF 2

* TS ot T THeTeh. STRUcTe-ai (THeHTaRiTH)

@) Iae:gRar
fogd @ seg o)
e Ao + TUHTEE (TA )
RUATST (THEAURITTH)

@M SdeTdS
ferg @ sy o)

ST I + TATHEATT (TH T

997 -€

fociraad
2019-20

878.628
6913.768
7.87

25.968
779.040
3.333

20.56
GRGR]

35572
10002.381
38118.69

TB T

eI 2019-20
115.000 113.912
0.2341 0.0787
0.7829

0.001089

202.000 155.478
0.1309 0.0434
0.000092

43.410 63.145
0.0069 0.0087

Fee-|

T
2018-19

944.428
7361.449
7.79

8.154
244620
3.333

21.36
GRGR]

104195
37765.446
36244.97

3B T

2018-19

130.687
0.2444
0.7608

156.581
0.1211

106.299
0.0087
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TG BiCATsaT fe1rves

guA - &t

TR va foror aar drenfie sraeie @ SeerH fdau o1 yeed

Fe wd fer
1 g awd d aeeod Rra R .
2 R
IR FRIER 06 Iy & ey e e
3 A BRITTE AT
4 IR v o R
o
Tt (e )
T @ )
FEABRIGR Bt Hicrrt d w9 G e v fom &
Yteiie Sraeiv, S@er vd Ta-yad:
L USRI S0 S AR
2 Jere # i, eI 9eTd, SR Ty, STl STergct 3 o1 3wk et ERa]
TRoTRE e e
3 sty oo eyt s e s 6 e o6 Tl
forcet g TSt o4 afef
2019-20
1. P s foaraem 7T T
2. M guiRe (x )
e 31.18
JUERUT TS Fea Gt 4.05
I%e od i/ am 0.12
o e
35.35
3. T foce ger 3w 0BT
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-
ye=eH 3 Tafv 3R fageor
PRITR

YR TRBR, TG G 34 HATeTd, (S13100) IR FereiiT 8 Sremif=ios a7 3 1efT war B s st feifires (waussue) af 1966 # veb 3uzbd
& w0 H ST g3

UH.U%.BE # ST, GRAT 3R SR 3aR®! & 3TE I A G E | THUHEd I BTOH & ded o1d-3d%d b TG 3iR ST+ 6%,
R AT eI ST gafaxor #AY qer 3w 3 fauor # & e gan 8|1

e
FfY Rearfe yae:

ATHETIg W, TR 19 B AR 15-20% TY DI BHT ¥ €T, HardbT, T, HIBeHT, HUIRT, BCal, ¢ U 3MTe ST T HHa! B Haxaf Bl THIad [
AftsT 38T vd @ SR g8 a1fRer ¥ T ately faeiy o0 3 HIox SeeT & W S Wk ¥ g o, Ty e o 3 Aoy ater gy a7 fepar mar for 19
SIETS 2019 T 12 ST I YATTA [afT 0 gl BT T 7 | 9feTe doas, T, Iefst 3R Fak oI_ fafim AT 7 Seet fovel 7 e et ar o
JaTs AT Ul & STIRIR I8 T TRE I HaR DI Te 2T D AT &1 ATHeTg H THT BT HaxaT 3R B Iere Fardard Wk W 27|

EIT 15 = TR 19 7 15% BT BT AR 2T, BTt e a1 AR @ SR 3R Faree o0 3 Sierwrgor &l # g8 a1iRer ¥ AMei= AnR, SRMW IR
3R el BIC STeTeTa Sy U atel ¥ St R ¢ | 6 e &1 BRIt @ AR wHe af Feafa g o 31k 26 2019-20 3 @R 70-80%
Prgfgear |

21 3, 2019 BT E&0T-UTeeH AFRI &I BT B T 31TET HeT 7, 3R 3iR FeiaR 2019 @ SR wwwr forelt & 3reedt av g3 31 16 3rqaR, 2019
BT IR IS B ST B &1 7 JaTeR ARG Df 0T g | T TR STemerdr 3 siRier 3iR Tmie AR 7 57T TR qoT WK R 08 d
7| et e BRI 3R ka & SRM 26 e dax el IR € fear 7| €1 &7 IhdT 961 3R 61 09 & &R 728! G SdTadhl aedl T |

Fiicd H, AT H &30 g8 SR 3T A Jels 2019 B a1d 98 HH IR s, ToTI=T 3ATeL, 8T T, 7T, YRSTRAT, IAN, HURT I JaTs THIAA g3 |
e Toh, ST 2019 I TG 3TN TR s, Torsid URUTHRGDY T4 STemed A1 BIAREH, BIaT, §AT 3R gHafd 4R MU | Sy, fasHieR 3ik
BT H R st BT, BTt T 3R 3116 61 HIel BT JHRA 83T | SHIBR, 20-40% YTaR BH & TE | STl 7 gafed ot 8 & BRoT, Rifad
oo 7 1Y & SR e 3R T B B Bk ST AT A | 3dRG Dl 3T WU Sl T |

IR 3R T B URY TR B HROT S5 -ATd B SR a16 F Ffaa g, Formy semay, e 3R srexas o e yenfad gs, 3R &w fear
B | B 3cTE B HRUT AT BF DI 3.4000/- TTeT AT §¢ T8, 398, 3 I 3.120/- U feverm & avraR o, f5rs uRvmasy 3dva
DI DTG TS| BIell 1 & B 21 7T 3R Bl T TIHBICNT S T & AT 8T 71T |

I a7
(g THdY)
gfan le2 i )
2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20
5 IS 50.96 56.31 40.99 49.33
o 419 3.24 0.27 0.65

BT IARDT B 178, 1.4.2010 I TSI ] &, ST6T TRBR GRT AN IR TR ST 7 DI ST & 3R TSR DY Tered! & MR TR FHramsh
ERTUH3IRI BT a0 ThaT ST | ¥ 2019-20 B SR, 17-17-17 DY F-709a 3 T 197 6.7691/- &Y 5T 2018-19 T T o |

3T B ok & HRoT eaEwEe & # gRar 3k eAdl/edes oF Wud gel 8| iR B @ud Hact THUEUE 3 &7 W AT ¥ 10.5% 3R
T /CTIIBUH ¥ NSl 1R 20.3% el 2| Jeils 2019 A WIS @ DUTARUT HiihdT & IR # 3e1e B T @ HROT AT IR THUGUE &
TR TEIaRY 8.24% I Uea 5.75% &1 15 & 31K THUhUS &3 ¥ T0d &l e iaR! 0.67% I d6d< 1.33% &1 75 2|
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% 39 & AR, THUGEA = 75:25 & AedTs ol JorT 7 GRaT HaTe @ 1678 6T Tsd A T 83:17 SFUTd &1iet oo, it fh 3= fawm &
AMEE ® oo JUcTTe 80:20 ¥ o SUTET & |

TeT Bidage foafies

% THUGUE A B BT B! HH B [T T | T8eT H 81 UhA bl Ts R 33 & e70 &F STaTel! 1e1 B¢ BT BISdR, T Bac ©.0.65 ARI & A3t
TR 5-36.54 @1, G 2018-19 B ARM ©.12.15 BRIS f 33T &, Ty fagom et & Ry ghig qamar 2

% ol av & SR, THEhUE GRT $Ts W Hisc 3ard Fal &l Ty, s/afd qfawiir = fafe ge/ee 3ik 98 81 3aRad® Hisc Jiaam &

o TR gER ¥ 100 % T fea, THemhee gIRT e e et fagst oet smRéioies & wrezm 3 & fpe e 3|

yEseia uRgea

a 2019-20 B IR, 2018-19 B TeT H IR BT IR 1T Th3iaT 7o # gl @71 3HeT 19 BEARM U 7o 262 I U SIeR GeAT! T, Jes 19
T 3o 294 Y0 STeR UITHCT dd U dT 7T, §16 7 I8 Ta=iaR 19 7 250 T SToR GITHC! dds B &l 1T 311 31 H SFHaxl-ATd 2020 & &R 257

7 U STeR GTOHET TR 31T 14T | T et o & g & 260-356 G TR SI6R UITHCT & ST dF o ¥ & (3T AT 3i - F7afd &7 89 @ SRt 356
0 TR b 1 83 3R 31 H 258 -263 Y,U4 SIeR a0 194 85

BRBIRG OIS ATH3TR e HH TR 2 | 3R 2019 & SR I 728 J UH STeR GIoAc! o1 3R a1e # &% e &7 &F a1 g3 &1 11 3R 3fa 7
SHERI-ATd 2020 & AR 590 TR SR H i &1 a1 | I8 el a¥ & gerl H 678-768 .0 STeR Uigwe! &1 |

SE-3TEISR - 2019 & SR TH3IT AITHIIR B HIF 290 F T SR Genet & iR a¥ & AR Fafia et sik sfa=dax 19 - urf 20 & AR 280
7O STER YITHCT TR 3 TS | I el o aF e 7 240-290 GIUHcT & A a1 gaT A 2|

T IR BT Iedre, 1raiTet 3R 3w (3rRae wkedta smeR oR)
¥ 2018-19 3R 2019-20 @ fore R # g 3R HFICTFA S T IRS BT AN, ST AR JTHT B 3HHS A e T 2

(T T
_— gRar Srodt HRER S (Sedt e s w3 g
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 | 2019-20
3R 238.99 244.55 38.98 45.50 89.79 86.93
3 74.81 91.23 66.02 48.70 5.46 7.46 4214 36.70
IaHHT 320.13 336.95 87.34 100.99 90.41 98.57 27.34 27.87
* Bad D yaT o foe, Tdies/areias 343 SHIRdl @ SN[ BT IS ¢
giRan . d . 3dRST BT TH.v. v I (ARG T EN
af 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Tt gfan 4,07 468 4.19 3.94 345
L A WS B 0.35 0.49 0.62 0.52 0.65
oo s 3Rt BT IR lga)
L 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
R 349.14 276.52 110.74 83.00 150 46.400
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3RS Uive el & fore siRae wRedra A gafgam 2019-20 - 2021 -22. (ARI AT
Fat ™ il ? oA Fu @R D)
2019-20 (3m.) * 191.48 76.62 26.07 29417 7.3:2.9:1
2020-21 194.09 77.63 2717 298.89 7.1:2.9:1
2021-22 196.42 79.12 28.12 303.65 7.0:2.8:1
* grat fomnt
2020-21 -2021-22 31EeT WReHY IeTEaR AT gafgAE
(T eH ey
aftr gRar ded TaE wad P IR
2019-20 (3m.)* 336.95 100.10 44.03 27.87 98.57
2020-21 340.55 102.31 45.12 29.30 101.51
2021-22 343.82 104.32 46.48 30.41 103.03
* St fawmt

o

IR TS SIFHIT A & | IR & YR0BI  3TR W, R, 3eamesT 3R S, dret $&77 31 3 ukaci= o 3ucrerar,3dkds @ud g e
T3 &1 Al £ | 3R IR T /T & SFJHI IeTAI 3cTe UToh dfed ST UR 3MENfRa & | Eeites, Uraas dcd Smenfia wfeasT ararr 31k fiee)
B TR FE SR BRIBHH 3R T Terd 3ae UI9d dedl B FER, 3 ATt qU1 H IRPI DI AT AHId & abell & |

HRT TRBR =7 01.04.2010 J THTGT UT9e IR EHETE TRVT - | T AN [e5aT| I AT S1edr, TH3IT, TedT, eaesdr, Sowd 3ik sreas 33d
& 370 aRE WS W AN & |

oA & aed, ie/iR-gle & famr ad & fore wfewst ot frreriRor fovam mar 3R aTeiR ea ger & | Frmiasit @ faer - g & SR R TR 1o
&1 FEROT 5 BT TSI £ 3R TS 9= el R ITaad FaxT Yoo o (TH3TRUY) B df 3UET 2 |

2018-19, 2019-20 3R 2020 - 21 & feTC T O & Ui & fere ufer fosetom drves aca smenRa wfeast @ faazor frergar &

Y. fgae 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
1 N 18.901 18.901 18.789
2 P 15.216 15.216 14.888
3 K 11.124 11.124 10.116
4 S 2.7122 3.562 2.374

TR, TAaTH & faf= 0 vug o5 3axap! o fore sifem e feam wam ik wrerferagsd 3avat & fore, em, IR 3R s oy wrearfies 3k gard
UINa deal o 3TTdRad Afeqs! [T 17| T2y, THEwhEe = ATHeN gad dhied STHIAIT & 3TN 8 3TidiRad J3mast &I faid 01.04.2012 7 318
6 o7 ® FAGH Pl G AE! & 8, 3T 379 HRA TRPR & [qaRTIN & | e a¥ 2020-21 B T8, HRA TROR T 17-17-17 TACT B [eT8 R 7,445/ BT

TfeqsT Fradq a2 5 foh T 246/ - TAST BT AN 2 |
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EIRCEREL]

FAR JNT GRT AT B STHATA! AT 8- 3aXb 3R Bl TRt T dofl 3 det TRaT=RIe 3oRT 1 aToiR, BUT Yoo ¥ WeT JeugaN 75
TAAIT IfT & BROT BAUID 33T b ded &1 3R TTHIOT aTSTRT & A1 Ha g Ciaiad el 3 STeATaT 34=eb BHT df -Gt Sremsi # afg
BT H TECR FAET UGl GIRT SMTHET e STEHT BT HH B & fe1e 3 o7 Mfcrdl iR 1 3R BIiRe wedli & o1t dRA & foe

ST gae 3R Siaw =gHreRor afdar ted gHread siiam yee gome |

oRarera, faeh, 3uHrsy, AR drafaae, R, sfawaed, Jwfaal, sk Haae, wiaroy, faaia, aHasares, s, atames,
TTRMS U 3R TR - SNGA BT U b FEIET 1R 396 THIT BT UgaH=1 7147 3R IORERD! & fed At & agd sy yaer 3R e s oF
Raifé aw awa o orar wra A iR e gRT wHan o S |

=R frizroT yomett

GO doTT of el B GRE IR URaeT dof GaTT e a8 foTe U 3TaiRas A a0T JOTelH xa st A e eided 3R Hga7el
BRT atHa B0 I FTUER UG, TRITET0T, 37-Tg ThIch=0T JUTTel (h3TEeTas v) 3R 31 vd ugfaat enhe & |

T YRR & U & GIRT AT U 37iaiRas eIaT URIeT G A &, ST e, wgfort 3R Sentes srramsit & |rer vafer sk srue
BN T TR BT FUBR TG & | 3R oIl WIS, ST & URaer df (afid w0 F 31 dRaT & 3R TGG TRBRT e WRIerdi, Faent-ad
AT TRIGTHTIOT, 3R CIRaT TRITAHITOT 3R 3905 URage o fere faerds nuea @ crar olier ki giRT o 18 FamiiRel w faar axes wgfad
BRI BRAT &

RIEECER CIR

BT B BRI TR I I8 & 10 g Agwar & 3R Sriwre R Afgant & a 3dreT (s, e ik faron) siftifm, 2013 &
STTENT ST Ter ST 31K BRIRIE WX U1 318 o Toasrrat & faror 3R Ao & foe Fem &1

I FersT o Saer & T Rl o FIaRoT e & foft vausEe & 3iiefe Srarer wiifer (SSE)omy & | e afeer e (o, srey,
el & AR R AR ufdrg) SRS Bu & uRwR ¥ s fosh o afgen B 59 yrae & qea et fesan ST |

ot ad 2019-20 & SR JoTC T A 3T B Haa, ArHferd 3R foardt o faawor-

T F¥Tehrarat dbr Iesr S0
Forqers 78 freradr dr e S0
90 ¥ 31f&rep feat < eifad Aet o Iw=ar 0
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IS - 111
PURE T2 IR JH01-97

el e

¢f[HCS

TEEITOT, HETRT S eg o7 |
1. W, FERTBIagsR fafies & SiRe TR o 26l & SFUTe & sirg -7 3feeiad ToR 3@ &1 - A1 31, 2020 o 3rafer & fae

o oo o

vagarsTs (R e 7 fafom= gediason Jqerem, 2015 & 39R 2

2. TURC TR B 2t BT SFUEH HU B Ja=EH B [oTHaRT €| FART 3174, BIIRE TR BI 2 @ e HTvad B &g SU gRT
3UTS TS TITEhaT3T U Braf~ad dd Qi Xl | T T Plg ol IRIST &, T &l U & fdairar faaRon o I ot 31f¥reafan |.

3. BRI H qATEART HalcH THBRI B AR 3R & e T Teiaor & 39K vd yeed gRT i M ufaffae & smeR w, g g
TR & o6 B H ST T Jara= T 3 Sfceiad UHR BIaiRe TR df 2! & e (har g |.

4. 5w 3y gamET e & o U S Ui S SO ) HTAT GRTId o SIAT &, T & I8 B @ HIET @ Yaw dF GeTT 3TyaT YAt e B
TRamas &

T 31 Y IS BUS U
TG TRITAR
¥ TaTTduT TRET 002947
T I ) AR FTE e
19 3, 2020 e

AT 233192
UDIN: 20233192AAAAAI9625

IS - IV
vagatas (R aftrea a fafram= yadiazor), 2015 @ SRR v @ sicrfa seRvT-wfaT @ sruTe 3 sifigfe 3 ason
ST, TS D T T TATHTA D RS TG0 & ol 3RO HigdT T FerRoT fHar g | 3aRor Giedl ST & dadge R oiar T e.
g & T FexoUT v AR aee HTRIT faed 9 2019 - 20 @ e 3a wfear & Srurer & g & 21

= IR
28 31T, 2020 31287 vd Uy e
ST 07274628
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PIRE T2 R Rale

B BT 3G

DU, 3TTT B e 3R v fadr, S wmar s ey sifdea 7 31 €, iR ot ager uReea &1 31 far ST & | ST &f AMRes aex
DURCT BRIGATT & T &t § URerdd, FerT iR Sarafaa & fow yaenT adr &1 o o dHie Teme Neid iR uefa & qeoera
BRI & 3R ATIER Je Ha & |

& YRR 008 TSt a1 i gfvsar (R snfeerer vug fewramiter Raaraxiies) fafsram, 2015 (Tl Jqerer) ) & 3r@R 3maer

BT BIUIRC TR B 3T ST FFaH BT SFFTe PRl & |
fwrs wosa

R |

g #, a8 7 Tl ueR 3R Svaeer 6 FEeoT € | Sreger v yae s qur e (qae) SRR feerdor & 3R s aer
frceramor IR-GRIGRT Faerd 8| e Ausa # YRd TRER gRTAHd a1 e 3R fosamiie e - faers-as-ia sik \ens i vRa
IRER gRT ga foe st & Aftsg™ se= g8 dum fafies grr Frgaa e e, e-umier iR 9Ra TRaR gRT FHgaa IR wd s IR-RSRY
et enfier & |

a1 § Gefre s faaxor

a¥ 2019-20 B R feemm & Hrfaftr g, Feermmonathia Tewamor Grifd J&r HURe TR B8 & S o e Jfbfd sk
SRYRS Fae araf) deet s faavor R g

. . . Eli 3 QS vt
PR, b kil @ e R SRR
1 | g e o 01.11.2018 s 2 - -
(DIN 07274628)
2 |shfrome S - weRAhE  [21.122018 [
(DIN 07401363)
] 10.04.2018 1
3 AN TT5S! - RO AHa ik
(DIN 08118636)
T . fws- (rw) 22072019 | s 1
(DIN 08520873)
5 |t demeaRR efed  |mEE - weRh  |18.02.2017 R 1
(DIN 07704367)
6 N S - WoRThE  |23.10.2018 s 1
(DIN 08341090)
(N PN S - WoRAE  [18.02.2017 s -
(DIN 05352239)
8 [Fugtmais odaR feom |06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 01967138)
9 [&rmavamy Kot fews  |06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 07565337)
10 |5 RadEd iRy |06.06.2016  |05.06.2019
(DIN 06558099)
1| e s e odaR feom |06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 07614954)
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we Bidaea fafies

GLECLT
TUH, 27.05.2019, 14.08.2019, 19.00.2019, 08.11.2019 3R 07.02.2020 P1 I (5) T TS T | AT TR Fo 19 acaR 2019 PV ANTSHaT B T | &S v aifiicp ey

Foo! # Frevm! o suferfa o1 faaor fmor 8-

- freoret o wafed sty
R RAS D | 190920198
) B st TS & aie R
il am T fefy | doo¥ wfef
dom
1| g e 01.11.2018 ey 5 5 a
2 | % frrowor WS- waR | 21.12.2018 * 5 1 =
EEe|
3 e ﬁ wax | 10.04.2018 = 5 4 =
4 e 22.07.2019 = 4 4 &
et wr
(Feiaor)
5 | fdemc ke | wEd s | 18.02.2017 — 5 1 =
RO TG
6 g 23.10.2018 5 2 :
PU— ?&i ?T%T;ﬁﬁ IR T
L (PN S | 18.02.2017 = 5 =
WER TG
8 | dugfm o P 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 a
fos
9 | gewron e 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 a7t
o
10 | e B 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 A
GED
1 e e 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 =
o
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TeT Bidage foafies

o wRer afife

T TH 2019-20, 27.05.2019,14.08.2019,19.09.2019,08.11.2019 31X 07.02.2020 BT 5 OGT IIST FATTA} BF Tob T T | oAl WIS do! H JuNeial o

o

o I

[GRUTTHIDR & -

| Yoo #

FOE. | o WieT afHfa & gewt o A thraa = a?ns‘ném Jufvfa @
1 e e 14.08.2019 S 4 3
2 | frgwem T 14.08.2019 T3 4 4
3 | dvghm o ey 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
4 | S fogom wom e 21.12.2018 * 5 1
5 | 5t e aToR efEe e 18.02.2017 g8 5 4
6 |¢imarony e |06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
7| &< e et 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
Ry T— e |06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1

** 5 Rrar o= (DIN No.07401363) = 31 3[CTTS, 2019 BT 370 07 7 3R 0/B¢E/2019-20/8 et (Vi) ¥ wfere fo & 6 38 1300w 4R TRAR & qed ot s &
& 3 HRYFA (a1 T e 3R S OROTT 31.07-2019 FHTA 3 THUGEA B 1S # HRA TRAR B Mew1d B 20 H 310 THR B T 162 | ETefiich, HRA TROR B I 3R IRP

AT B 3R TTHT I Prfery FRT B Ge e |

TS iR wRsifis wfifa
BT AP JUGH B T H, BRIBINAT BT TFEDBI TR BT R0 R TRBR GRT feem ST & |
3TETIET UG T e BT UIRATHS BT A HRA FROR g [ & ! Ba 21t 3R AIS & Wi ol & SR & |

BU GRT I B YT fepd T I, Sieeed, aRafeerdt 3tk s giaenstt &1 gat qea < 73,70,390/- £
¥ B SRM IR-BRIGRT BT BT Jod/AHT D T56 H T e & (§6® Yoo B 37eTan Fevdir miRHa o1 Yo el febar

FiRe wrIfsie aife afif
a¥ 2019 - 20 B AR, 07.02.2020 BT ETIR®T Fae AT B 0P d6& MR §3 -
3rafer
HH. TeqeRe Aaer afafa & wexal & a9 SN dowt or =T
J GEd
T |4 A aeR e e 18.02.2017 o
2 13.08.201 1
2 e 3.08.2015 .
3 FuS—— —_— 10.04.2018 S 1
S

31 JagRCT vUg vad ST ars 3T givsar (fafRe snfeerer uos feeraarer Raarrics,) fafrawe, 2015 & 3weRT 20 & 3R Affa s e 21
9§ B SRM, IR 3ROT 3R IR e Amet W TR B & e 11 2reR 3aRor Afifa doa smarfsa o w8
30 37aftr & SR, BUAT B9 3TaR0T Use! gRTGART 5 Rl o Geer 127 2, T 2raR gamw-u3t & &1 S, 2raR 0T - UF 6T 9l o1,
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7| e ot s

ORRT & AR Fafer Amia sk ugha enfier & | Rreradt o1 u3r ave ¥ g oo mar 31k 31 77 2020 & 3R B Ridaa dfad 78 21
ST STSRY: 8 RIS GHR BT 14,3014, 2019 I ST AfUa Td 3RUIeH 3THRT & w9 # fgad fearmar |

TSRO 4T d6b
freer A a1 domt & T I TR w3 o7 faraor e -
ad =~ GIRIEC] T
2018-2019 S (19/09/2019 1150 9
F.314, Coia s, L
MCIRUCT T - 600 068
2017-2018 S (2;2%?\{)2018 130 %
f e JITER)
THUGU T4, Aeifel, T - 600 068
2016-2017 22/09/2017
016-20 TS 30Tt HS W (@THe g 7m) @%03%0 3TRTE 02.30
5, TS U8, IH 600 108
T 9 & SR, URTH deic  HIeH 3 1 G2IE T8 3R A [aR1y Habed TTiRd fhe |
Teheq TR B T Thed B J&T o T TP & fauer & Aq
GRS _ )
A Dl =T HA BT B %o T I =T HA BB Jo
13.08.2019 70058 o Rt 137515303 99.98 28505 0.02
13.08.2019 : SN 137525568 99.99 17740 0.01
@ U BN B TN & or 7
SEIES
13.08.2019 S R 2013 & N 137525668 99.99 17640 0.01
3T hedT 37Tt T BT 3T

HUA TFET SR TR [+, 2014, ST AT, 2013 DY GRT 10 B UTTEHT B SFUTE H, B AT TGT S, HUAT A 310 IRIRBI P I
T 3 TITHEIUE 3-alfc T QICHH & HedH J ale STe @ (U §-aTTe T ! Giaem Uer @ 9 | URed deic B 3R MR fawm SroReRe! of fo7
e A1 9 IRed doie R fafed oo =T e ST 7 Aem 81 I | SuHr = TR G317 06 Afesy O gasifena fosar, fasr o sféfaw, 2013
3iiR @y et & qaa JyoT 3iR 31 agadarst & URTa o faaxor e fesar e

HUAT T AT TR, BT Afaa, T & TR S A JHIaR Br dRed deie ufesar df fwer 3R aReel wid 3 d-- & e wnfcier Hgad
foam a7l S BReaTe 7 3o Rurd wmfa o Ao &, St 2 89 @ a1 3R HAAT B URT $Ras Haar @ URUTH B UHoT Sreg ey
BT GRS | Ha & UM T o7 T8 3R SO Ja91S IR Teidie fpe M8 | BU= gRT ufRoMHT &1 9ivun &7 dRINg &l U=l & Uik g
P TR AT AT |

et Heel Hrf-Hure ;

e T aTct @ AT Ae W SE, 519 B B 3ifer faeiier ear wien faaRol & SRR SO & Tichd famr I 10 ufcera samer 7 81 i
wd-3fure dafas w0 3 a1 faaia ad & SR free ef-viueT & Ay fear mr g

BT B T a1t A e Brf-zrure # Tord aca # I Yerforow siRem fafics [@hisie) enfie & 3 facia af & dRM MR BRIER
Tasitarfear | ad & SR, SO = Gafra micar & amr g THsiian oy SRR/ /-G fhaT e 51T U & TIeT Tl Bri-FareT At
@ dEd qhe AFTTRITE |
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i af 2019-20 & AR Faftr wifeat 3 v wewyot Hr-vues T8t fHarmard 5 S & fea @ deer # srigata am T
T AR /AT Tegfer

HUAT = FABT TG/l Ud IR R AT DT ST &, $D SFTARVTH CIRAeT IR AT B (056 AER, ARATID TT HUE B BRUT A AT
B B B ATNTIRA D TR F RAIE T A £ | 1TIR B (365 397 UGl b 319 arer aferadt ar gt JRam o 2

B GRT e A a6t & AR dai aaTR e fawalt o iR-srumer e v drs Amer T6t g3 & 3R 3 Wae ¥ B aUs a7 Wi v T
GRTSUS T URIZAT3TS 3T 31 Pl AiaTed TIId<or gRT g 2 |

i W) Afeenan & di sedis (Jeum, Fde sk fraron) sftifom, 2013 S Gead gaediesor

BUT T EHLAT BT H BTH B AT TP cATer B 1018 U GRI&Td 3R IS BRIt e - @ fore forears fovan 81 o= =

qaTer STTTaw ¥ e Tae 31 3% ded a1e e forom ot suTe fosan €, Fora sraiRes R afif (mei) o e 9 enfier |
HOR & ATe

TN IOREGRDT B T TR Y 3refariies Rard an 8« =&¥ |

ferd ot afRomr :

formeY e uRRommt @ fonstr ves g 1 &fres-uf3ras sraf thifeae vaal s 3R v srfafers e ufie srifq et gex o yatera fsar mar
Tt uRom SUT & daITge: www.madrasfert.co.in. TR 3uced o T & |

R foareTet 3reraT fawerye! B feit TR @F R rer oy 78 & AT - e |

AT AORURS BT G

e A= dom, A, a3k v
gaTdonfeaia: 29, fadsR 2020

T : 11.00 &=r

T X AIfSdT BIEhY / 3edey
ot af : 31iker 2019 - AT 2020

s g oAk 23.12.2020 ¥ 29.12.2020 @i fe anfher )
AT ST I | BB TR

gde Tl vd fagermor s RArd & srerd aray: &

T Tt of R TeRe T I 1T TeTeh varaehof 3 iear fafies
BT = T TR TeTD UG 1 B feANe T geds a7 I fovar &
I B/ FaET.

]I ¥ vl of s gfear fafiies @ MADRASFERT
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we Bidaea fafies

af 1 3rte, 2019 | 31 Ael,2020 9@ TR Fea  Fwa/fra

AT Wi e ot 3 g farfits
- TS oA | waadr @u:maazr waf{’r_‘é’m:maf‘\zr - Sl
5= () ®) Fdi gsaase | Fmdr gga e )
anter 2019 23.40 19.00 11856.15 11549.10 2777410 607.46
s 26.90 18.25 12041.15 11108.30 4304399 1008.33
Sl 26.95 21.10 12103.05 11625.10 3074926 748.51
SIS 31.50 20.45 11981.75 10999.40 14054682 3723.85
I 23.00 17.60 11181.45 10637.15 2154175 444.23
e 25.40 18.50 11694.85 10670.25 6748720 1524.39
RN 23.00 19.55 11945.00 11090.15 4581335 953.55
BEERS 21.25 19.05 12158.80 11802.65 2831149 567.92
LEERS 20.95 18.20 12293.90 11832.30 2427972 476.62
st 2020 23.65 19.30 12430.50 11929.60 7914022 1701.63
TR 21.85 13.60 12246.70 11175.05 2741200 495.96
iE] 14.55 9.00 11433.00 7511.10 2465399 282.87
YR SIROT JoTTedt

TR Seiies Rowg Hore afdRT ugde fafics | v Aar dotiad ASRgR 3R AR 3aR0T Uaive, BT 91aR 3o T femfarest Riswer

<Haiftra femaraemd & fore Frgaa fevam | Qo arvaRoT |fHfT &% TvEaTs # SRR SR OT SiTaTRaanst R faaR #dl ¢

PR 31T Botve e feuifaredt <famed:

7ot geies SR Ao/ afdaa urgde fafes

2 Hf5d, T IR, 1, IR TIC

3T e SIS, LR, T=F 600 017

XN 091-044 - 2814 0801 3 803D
's;—ﬁﬁ . corpserv@integratedindia.in

IRI B A Raemssrem:

TIEISIEe 3R TEUueT & T THUhUC &l TUd &

SMSTISTT T : 37T U 5 41401015

15,72,88,798 $TeracT QTR (@eT 97.63% TR BT UTa+1ered ) 31 AT 2020 & IR feHeiRaeg st 5o | QoReRTd! or Twedm & Ae 7,
IRRER®T § 75.81% SIERT BT S1e fparg |
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OREROT BT faaRor:
31 AT, 2020 T AIRYRIT & fgaRor T R &
wiifer L8 Hiieaea A

e | IR % | ¥5c MR % | @%¢ | WMWK % | @5 MR %
Up to 500 427 681| 0.00| 3241 51763| 0.03| 3102 54001| 0.03| 6770 106445| 0.06
501 - 1000 131 13088 | 0.01| 2039 195247 012 1748| 164359 | 0.10| 3918 372694 | 0.23
1001-2000 | 3298 | 659600| 0.41| 2275 427677 0.27| 1615 291035| 0.18| 7188 1378312| 0.86
2001 - 3000 439| 131700| 0.08| 1026 288465| 0.18| 783| 214414| 0.13| 2248 634579| 0.39
3001 - 4000 433| 173133| 0.11| 554 214222 0.13| 404| 152283| 0.09| 1391 539638| 0.33
4001-5000 | 1485| 742500| 0.46| 1562 774933| 048| 991| 489983| 0.30| 4038 2007416| 1.24
5001-10000| 1600| 1564200| 0.97| 2079 1879475 1.17| 1270| 1090942 | 0.68| 4949 4534617| 2.82
10000 w3t | 232| 527600| 0.33| 1539| 147007430| 91.25| 987 | 3992569 | 2.48| 2758 | 151527599| 94.07
e AT 8045| 3812502 | 2.37|14315| 150839212 | 93.63 |10900| 6449586 | 3.99| 33260 | 161101300 100.00
31 7T, 2020 B 3R YRR B Haf PR &

o D Rl

i .
| O | serera | Seemat SRR SRR
. . IR ert . @ MRERBI B1% | IR et ] @ WRARFI 1% | IR dert

Lakste % % il D% e B1%
1| %@ 13 004 34600 002 1 0.00 50 g 14 0.04 34650 0.02
2 | i 78 023 | 134000 0.08 211 063 1418622 088 289 087 | 1552622 0.96
3 | feefnw il T ekt o 61 0.18 131450 0.08 61 018 131450 0.08
4 | wRgH o o o o 1 0.00 95851700 59.50 1 000 | 95851700 59.50
5 | @ 83 025 70900 004 o o b b 83 025 70900 044
6 | fartasterm B b T B 1 0.00 63920 004 1 0.00 63920 0.04
7 | e 1 0.00 2400 0.00 it sk ap T 1 0.00 2400 0.00
g | womaE ks ap ikl Lai) 147 044 414359 026 147 044 414359 0.26
9 | fardhmtord o bl o bkl 1 0.00 41516500 25.77 1 0.00 | 41516500 25.77
10 | Frmtamca 7870 2366 | 3570602 222 24790 7453 17861197 11.09 32660 9820 | 21431799 1330
11| e il ap ikl il 2 001 31000 002 2 001 31000 0.02

kol 8045 2419 | 3812502 237 25215 75.81 157288798 97.63 33260 100.00 | 161101300 100.00
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we Bidaea fafies

1.31.03.2020 B FTHR AIS-TR TTRYROT
PR P IR %
- 8045 3812502 2.37
5 14315 150839212 93.63
N N— 10900 6449586 3.99
e A 33260 161101300 100.00
i T IR %
R 1 95851700 59.50
P 1 41516500 25.77
=T 33258 23733100 14.73
Faanm 33260 161101300 100.00
T T - HUITT, T - 600 068.
U IdER BT e
EAUANE I
HT A
ST B s fafies
HOTHT, T - 600 068.

GIHIY : 044 2594 2281 : 044 - 2594 5489

's‘—ﬁ?f: cs@madrasfert.co.in / cosec@madrasfert.co.in
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TeT Bidage foafies

IEe- V

T 6.2t .9
e faeRolt s1aR
31.03.2020 P AT - fereirar ad
ST IfEfaw, 2013 ® TRT92 (3) IR BUAT (e vd U2IR), 2014 FRm 12(1) & SR TR

. daftaor sk s faamor:
1 L32201TN1966G0I1005469
Ao
2 |. 5 e 12/8/1966
3 BT HIH AETT B fafies
4 BT BT /39 FaTt IR GRT Ui Tt s/ds TROR & ATdsi-ic 3umHH
5
TaTidyd e aT UaT U Tuas faavor aree §77 .2, WTTer, - 600068
GXHIY:.044-25042281 / 256945203
6 _ 9
T E B & &
7
FSRER U A0 Usic &T AT, UaT 3R U faaxor, sTRarar AR geiics orgT fome AT agace fafie s, d=ieraR,
IR HIS, 1, IR IE, 1 FHF IS B A, AR, T
- 600017 , GIHMY: 044-28140801 to 803,
é—ﬁﬁ . corpserv@integratedindia.in

Il. T3 gesReR Tfafafemi

(@ B T BRIGR TAfarerit 10 % a7 et Jyafeer I et

HH. R JeTa,/AaT BT A q foa=oT JEE/RTaT T T3S <A IS B B G BRITR DI %
1 SR - 2012 99%

lIl. aftss, wfsad sk oo we Fufil o faazor

GEAcH B BT AT T T HAamgua/sheee RIESEIESESR ) % BT I I GRT
1 AR TN GG AL TN GG AL T
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7| e ot s

IV. SR afeswaferea

(@t $feray & wfife o= Eferafe R gt wrediv)
(i) orfar PR

T & SR I IR BT H=AT a¥ B 37 H I IR DY AT
[31 AT 2019 & 3R] [31 I 2020 & 3R]

L e B R
NIIRERD! BT T - . o ofyade
giife wifered g o gl e o |

A% [A%

)

) AT s 9,58,51,700 -| 9,58,51,700|  59.50%| 9,58,51,700 -l 9,58,51,700|  59.50% 0.00%

[E © (1) 9,58,51,700 9,68,51,700|  59.50%| 9,58,51,700 -| 9,58,51,700| 59.50% 0.00%

) 505 . 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500| 25.77%| 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500| 25.77% 0.00%

TGO @) 4,15,16,500 -| 41516500 25.77%| 4,15,16,500 - 41516,500] 25.77% 0.00%
O 13,73,68,200 13,73,68,200  85.27%)| 13,73,68,200 - 13,73,68.200]  85.27% 0.00%

. e RR Mg

) RIgad Hibr - 2,400 2400(  0.00% - 2,400 2400(  0.00% 0.00%
@) 3 i g 76,058 34,600 1,10,658 0.07% 84,161 34,600 1,18,761 0.07% 7.32%
) PETROR

) T WOR([E)
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TeT Bidage foafies

I B ARY T I IR B A= ¥ B 37T IR AR B TR
[31 AT 2019 & 3FI9R] [31 AT 2020 B 3R]
; S qf & SR
stc | dfw | mm | TN gk | e | g ||
T[A% T[T %

BRI SR

) BT

) ETeTTe

) fedh o 5 e

i) 3T (R AT )
T @) 76,058| 37,000 1,13,058 0.07% 84,161 37,000 1,21,161 0.08% 117%
2 RTwA

7) 356/

i) URAE 13,36,863| 1,34,000f 14,70,863 091%| 14,27,431] 134000 15,61,431 0.97% 6.16%

i) faeen

o) safed

i) 3 1 @ dop 3ifpe

SR g & afeana | 1,19,79,188| 37,19,169| 1,56,98,357|  9.74%| 1,25,16,663| 36,41,502| 1,61,58,165[ 10.03% 2.93%

IRRER

ii) & 1 ¢TRg ¥ 1T

3ifeHd IR YT & 59,17,730 59,17,730 3.67%| 53,46,684 53,46,684|  3.32% -9.65%

et SRR

) 3= BER A 5,33,092 533,092  0.33%| 545659 545,659  0.34% 2.36%
JFA @NE):- 1,97,66,873| 38,53,169| 2,36,20,042| 14.66%| 1,98,36,437| 37,75,502| 2,36,11,939| 14.66% -0.03%
T G ST (@) 1,98,42,931| 38,90,169| 2,37,33,100| 14.73%| 1,99,20,598| 38,12,502| 2,37,33,100| 14.73% 0.00%
. TR 3R THEER
® IR gRT enfka
IR
T AT (@48 +3) 15,72,11,131| 38,90,169| 16,11,01,300| 100.00%| 15,72,88,798| 38,12,502| 16,11,01,300{ 100.00% 0.00%
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we Bidaea fafies

(ii) THER & SR Bifesn
TS IR IR AT ¥ @ siad SR ARET af & kM
TR | sD | IR | RIS |FEdSFE| FEse”) | FOREETH
L N dem | e | A AfRd FEm | eRwre | AAfRS | oRadT B
H. DT% QY /TRUT /AR
TR BT % R BT %
1 N : 9,58,51,700 59.50% 0] 9,58,51,700 59.50% 0.00%
2 . .
TORRATERCE T | 4 1516500  25.77% 0| 41516500  25.77% 0.00%
fafics
(iif) FHTER AR Aifeg # uRaed=T (3R 18 uRad=T =& & dt guar gia o)
& o & a9 SwaafEn T & SR weh R AT
. fe wa | FAWR | 3t wrE % FAMR | 3t wrE %
e et 6B R RadT 7 &
2 | af o akm i & S o TR &
3 |t s 6 & ARA P RadT 7 &
(iv) 31 TTef, 2020 - TR BT def B o & IRURS
(PRl & 31ermar, SHEI3R 3R 3R @ gHex vd glesx):
o 3 10 TSP & IRURD T4 ® ARAH IR BfesT TY B 3§ Tl AR aesT
' M EEEH AR DI, | GAARIBTI% | ORI DI .. | Gl AN D1 %
1 ﬁ%ww AHNPG3758M 13,42,087 0.83 10,52,587 0.65
2 ST T AHNPG3753A 10,95,420 0.68 11,05,420 0.69
) AABPD6008J 1,78,458 0.11 0 0.00
/i AAAHBO495E 174,667 0.11 0 0.00
N P AAAPDAT98E 174,463 0.11 0 0.00
6 S IRA ANDPP9202F 1,70,226 0.11 1,70,226 0.11
7 ot i s foftre.qemeie smarie. MABCK5190K 162,934 0.10 11,056 001
Seaer den
PN AAACITT75K 1,31,000 008]  1,31,000 0.08
9 | rerds oo e o i AAACU4199B 1,24,000 0.08]  1,24,000 0.08
10 | AFJPT3594A 1,03,245 006]  1,03,245 0.06
M | e streraer fesmrforer S i |AAECM2876P 91,537 0.06 50,438 003
- ITES @
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TeT Bidage foafies

- 3 10 ISP & IRURD a9 B ARV T IR AfesT a9 @ 37 ¥ Gl AR alfesd
' W 994, MR PIE.. | FAARIBT1% | ATRI DI, | GHeT IR D1 %
12 [ areh mersg eeer AGOPS2619F 87,000 0.05 0 0.00
T AAGPA7302R 78,000 0.05 78,000 0.05
14 R O ADMPV2744F 70,000 0.04 70,000 0.04
15 [ reregdr ot AGSPD0605. 69,604 0.04 0 0.00
16 |y foee e Rfios AAACGA267G 17,631 001 226364 0.14
17 T e aTsie s AAACK4798C 34,114 0.02 1,68,884 0.11
18 [seree oo afrrsgic ifize. | MABCAT156D 25,325 002 151751 0.09
19 [t yere s AAICMS670K 0 0.00 92,530 0.06
20 R T T AANHR8767C 22,645 0.01 79,948 0.05
2 oo oz AGWPCO724H 40,005 0.03 70,005 0.04
22 R T AAAPJ3688D 51,000 0.03 68,000 0.04
) Free! 3k 7= gsa afeml & drafest
T & IR9H AR AT a9 & ERM wod SRR Afes
.| e s SR g vey
R T | oR -
IR B TR B1% R B, S
V. TRl
BT B TR [T GBI /3T oTd STt e & AR YT o fore e ® TRIH)
feraror | GRI&T 01 5T B BISHI | R Tara o | ST T TR
Tt af & 3Ry ¥ Fowrdar
— 55,424.00 55,424.00
U ————— 60,266.00 60,266.00
JSSTS SH—" 1,555.00 1,555.00
T (it 1,17,245.00 1,17,245.00
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7| e ot s

ot ad & SR FoRRaar # oRads
S J 5,458.00 5,458.00
— -
S o 5,458.00 5,458.00
et v & sid # e
J— 55,424.00 55,424.00
S — 65,724.00 65,724.00
. 1,555.00 1,555.00
T (i+ii+i) 1,22,703.00 1,22,703.00
vi. Free! sk T ysg afeal 3 foe niksfie
vysu e, gof wu S fFees sik/aryeus o frealRsifie © ®)
o aRfirs ot fyaRor ot At
.. frus e (qaion
! | st
1 s T 1061 B 1701 & T e o R e 28,69,377.00 16,22,335.00
(@) 3T T 1961 B TRT17(2) SRl qea 1,80,000.00 HE Tl
R 3R T 1961 B IRT17(3) B eRTd a7 W e+ H[E T TB TR
2 | o e ad o
3 | e s o e
ot
A DT % B el HE Tl
- 3, PR & ar TE TE TEl
5 S ey e 22,35,891.00 4,62,787.00
w0 52,85,268.00 20,85,122.00
SR & SR AT
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& s e s fae aiksfie

? aiRsifHe &1 faazor Frer® 1M aga(:;m
o fee®
1, Sre g afme 20,000.00
< ot e o e i Sl 2050000
1 4. ST gmfer Shfvrare H[E T
GRINE]
3, SR BT ar
el (1) 60,000.00
I IR BrRies Fees
& AT B dob F e ae & fov ges
GINE]
2 |3, aERErar
7T @)
T/ @=(1+2) 60,000.00
T vEd RS 60,000.00
. Tl ye e sEgEIE @ e 3 I e fer & fore aiRsfie )
it Y JRefreR,
A e 31 R “?’?"‘fﬁ‘ﬁ“) NN
.. (13“;3;:2(:':‘;) (14 3T, 2019 %)
" | o
(©) TR AT 1961 B TRT17(1) B 3TENT I o 78 YTaen 8,68,140.00 8,56,439.00
(@) 3IEBR ATTTaT 1961 B TRT17(2) B i oo 44,843.00
() 3R HTATRIT 1961 B TRT17(3) B eRTd a7 W T TB TRl T/E T
O T[B TRl B Tl
i e $fact TE el HE T
ol e . .
5 St e g 3,33,745.00 3,82,921.00
o 12,46,728.00 12,39,360.00
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TG BiCaTssT feies

VI, STATI/EUS/BTTSFET - FToRTEr

CRall

por st e Ryazor TN TE STATI/EUS /BT T TRIGRY [ARSY | R3S T 1
o 3@3;3 | g | R )
THIA
<t T veraleraR fafay,
& fafom D
TSR ig;fwﬁég%r(g 5 2019w o Tmifta @ fowe 5 ‘
fra2015 & . % 5,31,000/- STHT YT FehaT 1T 27| | TG 1 e e BTt BB &
R-3gue & daa
3T 17 (1) B GRS
& fete T T ST
3 e Jar veraeraR fafay,
weESa |20159 fafam 17 (1), | Radex 2019 3R fewtar fommer o1
Prra2015 18(1)3R19(1) @ B | Fwifa o fore AT ¢ 6,65,520/- 3R
B sy TEq A egrdr d | 31 71,2019 fomel & wiia & fole | I el varst T[E TR
17(1),18 (1) | IR-IGUEH D GAGH | 79,77,040/- JHT YA e el
g 19 (1) (2 | P GRTIRGRIIET
& fore e T ST
DU GRT BT T
A B MR
W eSS 7 F D
SERIRC s eI
feree-vaam o/
TeRNSIaR fafram
A TSR jjf5$%$34$ |2 75,520/ ST e s 371X 5771 -34/
SRRmud |d=d al o i sre s 3TIRE ot /98622
dgd ﬁ?-sqaqa:la%%u fe 016%[5 @_éﬁar
T T AT 2020
TRIERIR @
T 34 & d&d
GUEIRCIESCED
aua o o
SIS ¥ HUT
) BT TITRT AT & aftrerrg ST
&Ra Seetee & fore . IEEENEIES
CIREaY g 1 308 1 3R TaTaRUT G 3.1 RIS BT o) .
stafam, 2010 a?r'{ﬁ : A fosar | Wﬁﬂ B
PIARI20 TGS B T H S
& BT e fean|
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TeT Bidage foafies

G &l

S

HE TR

Gl

Rl

2

547 aftis Rare 2019 - 20




...

FEG - VI
1 093K - 3
Tfared o e Rard
31/03/2020 B! AT faia ay
[Fo siftifrm, 2013 #t Rt 204(1) 3R S (Prgfi vd aiksfie siffs) fraw 2014
& v 4.9 3 3rgia]
Jard,
HOEAOT,
AST BIiceg s felfies
AuTTeT
TH-600 068

7, et wer widemgat ferfids [CIN: 132201TN1966G0I005469] (@ STE BUHT STHT S1T0) SRR AifATErd UTaer=t qeIT 31 HMRE & e &
Teier # Afgarerdr it wien o & | ey o Wie U Ugha F &l T3 o foiid HRUT BIiRe disde/Hi AT e & Jedid a3 §
AR T e HRA B o1 I <@ |

AFaTerd o wIET & SR AR ASTRT Bieag s felfHes & oAt aied!, BITSIAT, BRIge ated!, B 3R BEd df T8 aToRi fgaRor qen s
@ 3FRET & 377 AT T e fnar mar 3R U B STIERINT, Tatve vd wiférdyd gfaf+ier 3 unet gae & 3R, # 3 Rard # sy
3 gdhe R § b, BT 1, faeirar af & 37 # 31.03.2020 T 91 3rafer & foe R fov e wifafés oraemst qor o & oefa sik
3rgaTer ufersar o e # o gu, are # for e R & gafas 21

fociaad & 3fd § 31.03.2020 & AR # =7 o7 Taer=t & 39K ST ST Bicag s [(TUCs @ oRaT ated, SHIeidr, Briged aied!, B
3R e T T aTaRT faaxoT qam BT & IRET0T @ 37 3Tl T tRIeT dr

() P i, 2013 @fTom) qer e w Fomt & s,
BT T 2013 B 3T B A faferaa @it wgferdt &1 srgure fear 8, v, s e d BRa o T &
(i) & AT Breac (fafrawm) sftfem, 1956 (EERIRE) iR 3= faw;
(i) & sTieR srfaiferam, 1996 3iiR fafvromm qor = w8 3u-fafer
(v) Taceh fafom gerer siftifeom, 1999 31k s e fom g fafwomm,
(v) E JagRer 3R vaadoT AT it Sfgar siftferom, 1092 (eosaiaR sftifram) & s Freffa frrfafad fafsreom vd anfeef=-
(30 A JFREr 3R v A 3T e (e iRrad srataRied 3Tt 2R 3R SwmaraR) fafrawe, 2011.
(3 &1 JFgRer 3R vaad ST aTS 3w gfear (fefae aifte gargex ¢ fiEmfafem, 1902,
@) AT 3R varHdS A 370 gfEar (39 31T diied 3iR feeader. Rearrte) fafzm, 2009;
@) < JFgRer 3R vars arS 3T $fear RfSRg R g v 59 31 IR g vate) fafvromeT, 1993,
3) & eEsaR (fafeT snfaid e vos fsaaaer Reaardes,) fafem =, 2015.
vi) T gfIaRR BU @ foe s s fafdre fofer e &
1. BaeR¥ atafm, 1948
2. ggdeaa fevge afefaw, 1947
3. Y 3ifes aar aiftiferm, 1936
4. & fafmm aor srftfaw, 1048
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5. & TS wifase wus iR fafaer raer sftifm, 1952
6. HUART 1T ST AT, 1948

7. sdad usfHe sitafaom, 1976

8. M vUs TReifaferente sifefom, 1948

9. & e 3ifes a s, 1965

10. & e 3iT UsfacT s, 1972

11. W Blgae aax ([ vus warferem) siftfam, 1970
12, & AexAer afAftee sftfam, 1961

13, & des o wifefae ik fafam= aftfom, 1086

14, & ggiead vauamgi (R fEmameR) afefma, 1946
15. & TS BrERe Jif8faw, 1923

16. &1 3wifres aiferfaw, 1961

17. &1 eFR=iT ieae sitafom 1986

18. & UIR (F1G-2T UUE B Iet 3 Urele) 3ifefam, 1981

19. &1 3fUsa IR 3t 1923

20. Sewer stataE, 2017
7 71 373 08 3R TIUTer B IRIaT B

() ST 3Recye 3T BUT AHeR 3Tt STear gRT SIRY Araarea 7.

(i) DU GRT T2 b TaTI ST 3 3fsar ¥ fope e fofeTaxR,
T 31aftr & ARF BUAT 7 IR feeirad sttiferem, From, e, anfeefs, ame anfe # fow e waemt o srgue fear g S

) g3 3T TSt ST R 3ifesd gew ardfad e &, U sifisrer Are & fore uast 4 @t & uf wqfe) aeR 8 feard | g,
B GRT g T TS5 117 907 o5 377 A1l & e S7et 3RIT e MU, R a’e & e e
T3S GRT IR o0 0 eI B SRR Y7 e 0 & M % 5,31,0000-

U GRTAITCH & 3FAR 818 W w7 el o R afea @ foe fadax 2019 3R feieR a1 e fomie! @ fore aower: € 6,65,520/- 7T 2 9,77,040/-37 &8
RIRT T M fvar |

AHETTg TQuuT AT ATE @ U Cl4/CIeRIE ) TU52643/ RS UI3TS A X/RUHa/2020-14 f&.28.01.2020 & g 3ifer wafaxoT gamastr
1.00 FRIS BT YA [T

IRERI R T T FEMRT PITAS 2019 3HRT IACATH HbSET B BRI, Tam Wil qiesar &7 genferd foar w8, foew §o
AT SHT/3TTHCTRET 31 BT FeTae (T~ HIeaH 7 AT fhdT 1T 2T, 3R 3! FeIdhdl 3R THIUTET & fle S 3 UTa 371des )R
foar mar el
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# s Ro sz g fs -
T 37T & AR aed Avse # &1 M8 uRacd duwT stefom 3R 6T Eesienm) fafaw & seet & saR R T8 fear mrg|

JRIGT B AGETSR, TAUHS o UG b SR FATT T & | T TRBRI DU 81 TR, $I 39 [qHIT, HRA TRBR B A1 A& (CeRASI3R)
Taferer @1 aree e & fore vl s  <ad s e o g fod a3 o e 3o g |

T Feeret & U aE o S o Yo, BRI, 3R ST @ 3TeR W i fewoll uger & Foi S & @it o @ gd A & ggar
TR YT T Ud AIahRvT o 3T iR doa # 390 sufvafa giHf¥aa & s

356 B AR FEI0T GRT &€ S aTer wewayut Gastt & driged # enfid foar sar e |
# 3 Raré aar g 6, g fafé, o, faframe siR wnfee™ & saR dut # e uRare &g givad fearsnerd |

# 3w Ruré a=ar € 16, 3w 3feafaa faftr, Fram, fafromm anfest= snfe # srgirr oraam & AR owr wWiam & SR s § 0 31
faferes/ared et urar mar S ST & JaRT e

ST STURT
A U3 T
GatEINIE]
am. &gt
T ;o= TR e e 30353
arr: 04/08/2020 UDIN: A030353B000549377
e T
Jard
TEERIOT,
T BiEass fofies
TuIfer, er#-600 068

ST D Y IR GAGSD R Ty ¥ g
1. Qrarer ReTs B WERETT HUH! B Tae Bf TRy & | 3RY TS5eRT Aiiarera e wIel & SR W 5+ radrd Siiedr IR I Sdd
GREIE

2. W oA qRYeT B Ui &1 urer fohar & S afcrarera siieraEr o Il & IR H eaR T R & T 3fad O [ifarera sifderar i
T TN BT URE & B 2 T8 T BT IRIET0T & SR TR 51 71 & | 37 7171 718 & T #1 37 ufesamsit o7 are faan & 3R 3Ry <
& foru sfoa smeR yer far |

3. Y BT e Rt ol drear ufeesT Y S 3i Swgaaa ) gfte 78 B 2|

4. St 9 3naTad A, 9 B, et st fafvrmt 3R gemsit snfe & srguem & aR # ydee ufaiée o fear 21

5. ySEF o fomeR! 98 ¢ T drure 3R s g, Forom, faf-am, AT & yiaens &1 sruTes d=A1 8 | AR TTesaret & 3TeR R |eam=

CARNEE AT

6. TrIara oraT W& AT 7 a1 U dof UiT o Taeriar 3R = & UHIaeIRar a1 THTaeieldr & o 3reara & fos aren sor & amwar
BT e fear e |

TSI 3THRT
@ Zw! U8 vae
P e

10 M s o
TN I TREeR R e 30353
arig: 04/08/2020 UDIN: A030353B000549377
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T BieeE ot fe1iies
Horfeq,<-600 068
Bt . g3l - 2

FEG - VIl

(o (cvam) Fram, 2014 3 siffem wa forem 8 (2) ot T 134 3t 378RT (3) @ oRT (T0) @ JFER
Fu s, 2013 B e 188 B 3uRT (1) # Frdfe SR BU gRTEST Sob/awrsi o faavuTds qaeiaRoTa fore Bt ot e mraer

CRRIEACEE NIR
1. JRT&a T G TiehaT & SR =T 3o a1 eIt AT eivic el foaRoT
EEH o foaRor
) g fére aref a1 = 3R 3 e faawor TS Tl
| SB/IaRIAE BT [GaR] T[T
M| S /aaEeTe P faaxer B
g | OB/ B Hed A€ H I, 3R BIg &l e T
%) |V OB/TaRIeTeT i aaa g @ fo sitfea R
Uh) | QTS B WG Id B aRE S
S | 3 S w9 H I B T, IR BT & et
Td) | ORT188 B YH AT & SR T S0 H [RIT Hahed TR 8 & aRiE S
2. gRferd 3 gfaense Tihar ® MUR )R 36 31 Faved a1 e Jad faazor
T . EL] faaRoT
afére arct &1 A T 3fea sifad srReH fafics
I e faaxor RIerd 7 gierse uihar o dd |
) | Sp/TawRIee T fgaRor TATTS BT I
3N | Sd/aaReeed o 3@t FReR 3R
g | Sob/aRRneiTed B Ued T 479 O, 3R Brs &1 SrdITe® ST

9 | B Egfa s arkma

06.02.2019 & 7 e THsiaT & 3R )

w9 YA o i, IR B &

B

)
) |af® R ferm i

391428 w15

s 28, 2020.

TweR/ -
Y TRAOF

el vd yev freee
DIN : 07274628
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we Bidaea fafies

T B AE N
Horfer oH-600 068
I @ WIewHR Tifafal w afife R
(B (e Frraw 2014 B From w.9 B 3ra)
FHT TR AT R v Giare voar

fofics

IS - VI

TETH B fafies AREe & dHaR aff 3R a6 ekt & & e eyl & shas R @ Jeak g9 &g fafim amfars

393 )

37T UTGeI CHUGUE ®f R el & | T2, ST AR Ao & 3ifcd Fa e 3@ el

A & | THEBEE Ue o1 3R &1 S el U U 2 3R suteiE U ST oY 9RT135 & 37 ORT5 &

2. AU Arhi o e
BT AT, 2013 B €RT 135 B SFWR, ATS B ACHHNR AT 7 3 A7 31Teres ereres enfier &, o 3 ves ereres waa e gl o afafa
05 [, 2019 T 3UTReId I& | $a 3TeaT, THUGhEe o fHeerm o Fgfad & foe 360k fawm, 3o 3ik 3dves #a1ed, 9Ra TReR & |1 & F
e % JET & | SI3T00 BRI W2k Heeid 1 g far fohe o @ are, St 31Tfam, 2013 B 3R SU! HTH3R AHfd B  Hiee dxal |
3. Twerdm facira oot o Suei a1 sivd Faer e . o e
4, feffaSeasR e ang =g
5. facirad 2019 - 20 & ferw SreasR o o1 faawor | @R
o ad & foe @d o 18 gafer 39.24 ara
(z ot #)
2 3 4 5 6 8
P, TRT Bl 7§ FTTAR JIRD | IR A P SUBIREEE RasATSRAAR | Rafér afaras | & o 7
RS AT feater et erady T LCERRIER I L I o ooco R E
e | () AFI TR ar () a TS S e Y
(2) S e ffre | PUHHIR PRI R Jee @
T iR e # oRarrar (2) 3w
FRIBA TN &
SfdtamE | | ypeda dea e | - 1.61
ST S fere e e o e
R | PR - - 1.00
T (G500 ) o, oH & T 543 ) 543
trﬁ?m;) TISUCATS & Weaq
U S B 3t
T e fead TARIE & ) ot T & ) ) 1.20
fore AR ¥ WRERY T B
BT 1 ¥ AT 3R fepe ot
amid
T 9.24
geaER/-
Y IWRAUH
N FETE T e Feerd
DIN : 07274628
e 28, 2020
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ST - IX
et (faRRe snfeerer 3k fevamieR YqarRa<w) fafram 2015, faft s 17 (8) & o digan sik
Hews gRT oI

ISESERINI
FeT Biags fafies
AuTfeT I+-600 068

g gwitvTe foar sTrar 2 T

® &, 31.03.2020 BT 39 DI FAINT R AR 71 3R fawar &g facirar faazolt sk T vare faaxon o wan ot 21,
() & Taaxiorar & org o wifas @ srge ar fesr O @ifde aear o1 8rs o war & a1 fga=ol 5 yme & Gear e |

(i) 3 faaRvTl & Fiaae eq B a1 e 3R by gedior & 3R adH erar A, 3rgwa fafervd fafram & sgae # 21.
@) eAR, 37 3R foeara &, af o Tt R S gRIBIS e Tal BF T &, 3 I & AR el & sy, srder a1 Seaomr) 2 |

(@ & focira Rt a siaRe FRE0T & =T 09 3rRevT 8 3aRar! & 3R 8 SUHT & SR MIA0T YT & THITRed BT Jed bl
frar g qen g 59 Teur 7 facira Ratfer Sae faaor o orar Wi vd oRaT WIel Iiitd df Tbed [ & 3R a7 3R 39
afRaTer a7 fEaTg o Y, SPR &1, 89 UaT & 3R 97 e H BaH IoTT YR & I1 3 BTl T R B fe7e U=t feram S <er & |

@) T o IR 3R ot wRrerds Attty o g fesar & &
) av o R faaia Ratfén w siaRe faaor # @18 weagel tRad= =& &;

i) ov o SR o o ¥ 18 Heayut uRads T8t & ; 39 BT faaira faawon # fud fear mar @ qen

i) faciTe elraTerel & 18 G el & 3R BN g® aR W ST & MU 2 3R 37 @1 it afe B8 81, gdes o a1 Sur af faeira
Reffeas araRas Faaor gome # {3 ve BaRT o weeaqut giier & ar

o =t WA RIRE LG
TRIG | 3R 28, 2019 sreae v g e Y HETIeEs - U e (€
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7| e ot s

grgaer - X
T} 1 R-ara oL
- e 34(3) 3R AT v ART A 7T (10) () e 5 ias % & e ([t R FavcraRor anawaaan) fafem, 2015)
T,
SR BiC AR (e s
HUITeT,I-600 068

I TR ICas o TTics, CIN L32201TN1966G01005469, & Freeiapt & T waférer <foreey, Revrs, B, faafoma 3ik yasciaor ool siia oof & o quiter, T - 600 068 1 Uaiiga
Frifer R 3R R TR B GRS FAIV-TE B R 3 b %0 3 Gl AagR el ParTaiaT aTe 31 Sivsa (e sifeirer uos femaarer Raareri<e)
RAETS, 2015 8 3FAR SR i, fome 34 (3) 8R1-38, 3-8 10 (10) & T veT S0

BRI T SR EARI STGRI b TR (G0 www.mea.gov.in BIEe) TR (FReTe! 1 Tgar S died Tt ) (SIS T) & SR, B 31 3906 SmiRal gRIEH Sawds 3R
TRV & B ¥, B 3 a1 Y JHITOT el & 15 31 T, 2020 T It 81 a1t Fleivar a o fere oot o Toieench weet o 3 i 4 Frcrerds, &1 e vararean aTe 37 31vga,
BRURE AWE & FAT A1 s 3 def giitaRor gRT R & et & ou  frgad fer S ar IR ve ¥ dfw o s afta @ T w2

HAE. fRys a17m D i i Frgfr ot akta

1 07274628 13/08/2015
TR TRAU

2 e e 05352239 18/02/2017

3 S R 07704367 18/02/2017

4 . 08118636 10/04/2018
[RUSAKEN

5 S— 07401363 21/12/2018

6 08341090 23/10/2018
TS TER

7 P 08520873 22/07/2019

A 0y Fieers ot g e o fere ara e aeett et 6 e o Formvamdy 21 gt Formiery & o & a1ee St o6 STeIR R 371 R 066 <731 o0 6% | T o
T U o ey B g s e o et € ‘3 T g e e s e, s fere e e s el v e e 1

& o o3 wRiTew

CREIIE

sd/-

A gt

gewaraw. © 30353

T & T~ CP No: 11022
aRI: : 04/08/2020 UDIN : A030353B000549740
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TeT Bidage foafies

i e fmier Ree (ehamsi) - R ad 2019-20

WS T U & SR N AT TFERY
1 | S & PoRe T T (FHamsT) L32201TN1966G0I005469
2 | Fwleram TR BICaga e
3 | gatigpd g URC 30 ., 2
woiter, T - 600 068
4 | dwwme www.madrasfert.co.in
5 | $-Aaamesr cs@madrasfert.co.in; cosec@madrasfert.co.in
6 | focigad o R 2019-20
7 | fom Yo d ot (3t wfafae go-ar) & o g 2 7T - 241
gty - 2412
30 it - 24123 - gRAT 3R 377 319 IRD! B 3G
3R 24124 fifya diftes a1 fafsa 3ke
8 | a3t / Jami @ g o O 3 / ger at & afar 3k fafia 3w
(e w1 & e
9 | et F gRT AaRae Tatafy B S € I e (2
feraoT
(37) iR I @ < T 5 1 faakor yem
(3) T I B @
10 | & gRT Far e e 70 aTaiR - R/ 159/ G/ SR | 150 - afHeTs, TeTe, st gew, 9w, dies 3R [gERt
g o) Ho o fawhr faaor
1| e g ) 161,10 30g
2 |paaReR R) % 1287.39 g
3 |wraeoram ) % 134.88 33)
4 | IR (%) & T A & gioerd & o0 § SriRe Fmias afdd (o) | % 9.24 o
R G T
5 | 37 wfrfaferat @ g for e 4 % @ foar m €1 iR 5 7 o genfed 91 & forw @ gl &1 e, Jer I
i1 feaw e eRGuIgRe Wa &1 EvAR & WeEm 3§ 59 T @
S 3R MG e oo FARIE ® fofe MR # TROR! W & Bl
BN e &7 IR foe o 3myfet
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7| e ot s

T ¥ 3 faaor

1| o e 5 s v e e/ et 2 e

2 | o wfcafEakt Gt / Uit e du o & 3R vew § WRT o € afe | @y T
&, A U Terd U @ T 1 3 R 17

3 | oo o 3w/ wE (3R ot ek ) G b |
R e 31 e o e o v € 2 af e o o s/
s o ykEa e (30% &, 30-60%, 60% @ )

g 3 SR o

1 | 3R & fore e e / Fewit o faaRor

daR Afa/ Sifdat & erfeo & foe R e / feus o fawo

EES 07274628
* T 5 g TR
¢ TEEm 3yeger vd yde e
v) SR o &7 fraor
oy, | fawa R
1 gMd. (R M) g e
2 ™ &1 filRer R
3 RSk S A
4 R 044-25945489
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5. 1 310G T 0P HHAR! T & o181 Feer gRI A1l 91 @ - &

6. 30 TIRR G BT e Hfereret §9 AT 9T SRR WY 3T 96w 87 - 95%

7. g T fowia @ § a1 5w, Fax 5m, Sfes om, di 3dte 3 wat Rt o wea 3R fiwia af @ s ) dfvd g &

547 aiives Raré 2019 - 20



...

eyl af fociar o & AR oot e @ fowiar af & 3 7 ofed
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9) A HoTs Bl I3 / JIR & foe deft & Uve dal & Fqfed 3R PO I & HEgH 3 Wed JREN JHRad a1l
fRregier 8
1. T B! & U R 8 e A & SRRV H S | U6 | IRAIHE &7 A &, ot 3T faa=vT|
&
2. T FRIFH | URATSHE 39-8139 $ / T2 @ +7ia / R} Tattai / TRBRI TRaiait / et oy e o w1ea | B i 62
WER! ed
3. 71 3O 3! TR BT PRy FHIG e foa 82
- R |
4. FrEIre foT URAGHIST ¥ 3TTa! ST $1 Jee AN a1 & - I o9 # 3R fo e uRaest @1 fdaor
5. 13 8 JHREd 3 & for Fer o 7 I FER gRI 5 AHEIS 0pRT TEw f hediydd S se? guar 50 wiE) # @ a.
43R 5% foe
FUA 7 AOHAR TR & Tod AR dbr GHRad FR & o8 eH JOT & 314 SRR fore H 916 FHIad Sel o o Ted [l &1 &,
O I FiE foaw & o AN, ERGWIRA Ta B URUaTA! & A ¥ U7 310 i 31 3R I w1 i TR & for MR #§ WeR!
@ & g @ T 3R woE & B S|
féregiar 9
1. focia ¥ & 310 76 Ted! PI Ribrid / JAHIHT AWe) B (o1 Jicrerd Biad &
USl
2. I S 3E B TR 3 96 R, WM SR 5 ER, s Fw ol wn afard &0 &/ 76 ) o e/ fwoh (il SR
Gl
3. e fires 7a adi & ARM 3rfad AR TaER, IR-fomiermT s 3k / 2 horaell-foRieh aerR & aR & it & Raom b 6 feqeoRs gr1
Pls AT R T8 fooar T & 3R foccha af & 3id 9 Bfed &1 afd &, af 390 ar & 50 I a1 396 a6 Y T Je |
36 Tl
4. o1 3TUd! U A ol o7 S e / 3TN e & TE @ Sia fear 22
1 &

547 arfvs Rure 2019 - 20



...

31 9, 2020 #t fowita af &t T R @ sfifm, 2013 Bt art 143 (6) (@) & AR 72W Bieorar oee & iy i ) 9Rd ®
R 10 FEOETRIeE B el

31 it 2020 o st W Bt siftfm, 2013 & ded feiRa fociia RO e & sreR 7o wiéarat fbfics & ficia fiawor & ot &
foriert yaem 1 21 e ot arT 139 (5) & ded WRd & M 3R TeoerRies gr1 g wifdfte oar R sfifem & a1 143 & d&d
fowia foavolt & o T 143 (10) 8 w07 3@ & YR R TH@! 6 IAR FeRa s@mier | 79 2w &7 & for R 8 98 376
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e P FHTION B & a1G fobalr T 21 26 TRat 2020 BT HRA AR FRT R &1 b IR R S1-Thoe & fow I 144.46
TR BT RIS fooa T ol greifes, B 30 I 2020 B HRA TWHR (SIS GRT TRY et W foar 8t e, o o
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fomTe 7 @t §ge ival R nenia 21 1V e 3t $ge il & e
R 3ifom sifergee @1 SaaiR 1 s st @ wiftd & e TS @
TRHOT I T 3 e

@ 2019-20 & RW Fa 716 Bl e DA § A B MR R 29-02-
2020 @t sifergan &g o afgat § S-veeoe aat B 3R TUHTE 3
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IRG ©H & o0 4Rd WER A Fowe g & & gl
Fxa ¢, wg 31 A 2020 @ s ® ot 9@ o T
gl Ewis 3w v, s 17 wrd, 2017 & SRR ot
B (D o B aE Wewe 39 3R @R & T a6
wewst ¥ Toa # % 107.86 a5 @ I wfvw &, e
T iowE! O B aRad [t B 916 HRA TWOR GRT SR
for S Sk B gRT e -9 fiwia oo yee 6 e
T ¢l 38 yeR e -15 ¥ facio fiwor @ as sl 2

THEIBRU R dERien ool Ae @ T8 2

fopst ot sRuEaT & 5T 00 W 3R oF @ foF, 39 9y gdeiaRuT
wfsg # oo e
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(ii) 1 SFat 2017, Ardaie Jeom faum (0%), 9RT TWER & BTG | FHeiawv ) SERiE wot Hc o w &

3 10 e 3 3, 2017 T DA TEAD &1 & T | o comer e o 112017 @ @0 e & ok s

5 0 5 3R 2 TR 2 99 75 et sfeReh e e | i
T 34 e 3 e i o o 21 e 9T jﬁ@fﬁ;‘@”mmm*mmﬁ*waﬂl

7 5 % g1 T & 6 SR Wiiews & Gee F, I P Gees
1 Yobsfl # 3 HEMeN & BRUT 3lReh 7 & foe Jem & & a8
WER GRT IATCd GHa dopt & SRR 81 TIee) Uit 3 370
FHERI & fesu 3T el ORy e b & i g AT bt a1at
T SATed Tt e o 21 faweira ot 43 (0) & 3FER, S
FrTe S fafer fereRor & qROER JRE aRR &R & fow SR
fpell R B <& N T Y 3RS fGum, YRd TR B o
i e o AR o o e o 21

B 3 ot faaRot & foe fewot  qedt @t vee et fopan 21 S
P PIIBA 519 - 3 37, 2017 & §1c PHAIRAT B I Geer Pl
TR / il TicH SReTa & Sfad Sigmre & HRT BT, T8t ot
T 8| 59 JoR ‘Tocira faawon o fow fewolr foamor s ae st 21

& four R AR @ .
YRA & 7 0 TEOETRIES e Hear bl iR 31
((aHfrs ) PRI
g e e Feoayea e
(P, ey 3R 36 Twee
@ : New Delhi R: U
feTi®: : 04.12.2020 fei@: : 05.12.2020
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we Bidaea fafies

a 2019-20 3 fore AT BT fefies & o & WHaier 3 4R ot ot I U U,
T AETER, 9% denfe e ot fewh

B FffeEm 2013, IIRT 134 (3) (€6) & FENF U BT IR

& faiva faraRot 5 A1 34 R e T axd &, 3 Jg afa awar 2 s wRara dremr fefies
& FfeRrer 2Rt # e a1 3fa eata aeRt eoiddal R foaT Tt €1 31.03.2020 Y
YeTdaa = frae wufeet e (U 3R GRRE G A (FRITTH) Sg T Jonet & 35T
el g8 3 e a1 SR e o 3R Heaia e U T HEe: 6.1325.96 9T 3R 3k
%1783 49 97T SR 971 31.03.2020 BT 791 3 3Teret ey 1 31T & T e gy
SO ST | &Y ST () 2018-19 85 T 2019-20 ST aetteds i o fore it fegot
33% B I g & T 2018-19 % 18.08% &M 2017-18 B1 e 31R (i) S doe H afg g8
& 2019-20 & fef 90.88% & 2018-19 % foTe aTRetfeds 1.22% , 2018-19 T 2017-18 B e 7
9| fes Tt it e g9 ke oY 3o 9fs T ST & gfene vt o s ey el e
T atee) 39 O sa g Efe ver fafies (smtive) o gfaacr 2Rt & o qraie
R # R e R iR 8 aR W 21 37 8 THERT & e ¥ ST & 3fud gea &
ST BT ¥ e T & | IR th BRI EW P o 3 IR fedr ket w o
yurat oot frefRe a5 sl €

F & 38 fomira iRefea 3R eiRal o facta Rafér et & e
3feret e R A T & | e oo an o 3 e o SR e
¥, B TR B e BT WA 3 A 7 DA €, 9 O I8 U]
& | ST SR AN §7 1 Tl e €, D! Feat Rt b (T8 IR Wt
& A e B ot a2

I gera e feffies 1 15,84,000 T AR e {epara | ST = amstee
3 forden &5 e b oo AR 08 o 9 Uil Headeiabal ol foatert oot
IR o R H OIS o 0 H aiiehd e ¢ 31K ¥ T Aeeaqu

T A § Yo 2 |

o5 Jeatet vac Gatigd e drad g T o1 & R e 3 et 3 e
STRETE | 3TT T SICTEEIT b BRVT Head [ag]G 00 3 AT R SHTema
2| I Ul 31 o 3 o forw e €, o sy e & 3R 3
o G A1e o QAT TR | G T AwIaiai iR 3o 1 e # e g, e

TR B s g SR T G arprd IR wA A B

EIER
a3 uimn

RS - U U5 T (@)

3 A O ot
T PR

EER

At TR FREfeTn

TEER
M. No. 233192
FRN 0002947S

28 s, 2020

feud Fer dl IR Y

EEIER
g IRAUH
AT TYGE

28 s, 2020
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BRI AGdT & 41T R FIH (T 1T & 911 damRien Rued & fow) affe oar Rifva fociia aRkomt & @
SR oo TR - (R3O SR Sren § Fiod)

31 7/, 2020 P 9a fawiia af & fov Samien anadst © gHe | o
X9 (vo3NeNaR) (ener) fafm, 2016 & fafvame 33/52 &,

I | 94 |fowor o Rt 3 (A | R 3 (dvadr &
& fou e & ¥ Ued | fov e & e st
fRaré fee me) SIS afore!
(@R T (@18 T
1 P03 I 1287.39 1287.39
2 IO @I 1422.27 1422.27
3. | gwom @) (55.62) (55.62)
4. | yomam (8.37) (8.37)
5 36 Tt 1527.79 1527.79
6 PO <an 1527.79 1527.79
7. |fow (630.89) (630.89)
8. | PS4 oy fociia e (ot b weer g 3fud o

. RIS AT (TS OETIRIET AT 3T ):

BERIET AT &1 foaRor:

&m faira faawott & e 34 W ear amefia axa &, 3 adm & & areta derr fifires & HiRver SRt # frowr a1 3 qrare el geaieadr
&R foman man 1 31 7, 2020 7 Jraiaa e W gea (oed) 3R qerira du we (o) fafirg gomet @ 3wam awd ge sfad e
1 3R G 2 3R e b T e e B 1325.95 Hit 2R 3R T . 783,49 gf 3R a1l @t 7 31 7, 2020 7 smafer faw
& 3 gea @1 v o o o vvy fafe oSt s & w5 (1) 2019-20 @ fow it foght % 33% b afi & 2018-19 & o
ardtae faget, 2018-19 % 16.88% sm 2017-18 ot qen , 3R (i) st diedt § 2019-20 & fow 90.88% #t afg gg 2 ik 2018-19 %
fore artas &1 s fomt 3R diuct # 39 ke @ I f B A €, SHIGT I ST % W e foa S anteel 39 % a1 § & gieed
arerer fofics (3médivs) & gfaac Sert o fow 3 3 4w & fov grate RuE ® o T8 X 9 1 3 & TR & 319a § 3ME0ee &
3 T 1 e B e T 1 39 & BRYTEW 3 v 3 3R i wRefat w fada ganat @ FeiRa a & s &

d)  BETRIET A BT JBR: SN 1 SN ) Fds
A
. A P IRARAT: e TG0 IR/ AR T/ HI W AN &
TS IR
8. daTREn avaar & o e duies gRT v e far s 8, yees & ge:
DERIeTe GRT FHIfad et fosam 7 gl
3. OETRIET Ad & o e S g1 gHa FeiRa T2 fear ma ¢
(1) DERIET Gl & JHA W JEE HT 3TgA:
D e |
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@)

e e Fea @1 SR o # s €, @ g9 SR

fowtiar et &1 3fad wea gewgrar 13 - 3fod wea A 4 3o Regie & srgaR feiRa fban s anfeel 3fod qea @ S5 113 & dga
3 qea W0 G w0 H aRuIT fopar e € 3R 3 AR W 8 39 Sfaact Mo o e B 34 (a1 S Sl b Hedid e T Siame!
T & WG i da-id! BT AN @R UM a1 3 T & T B S gl

3TBIE TG TR JIBET et & @ R &, B Jeaiat B 3 O e Jeftdl e el Hraa-iasel bl Iawiid St i adl 8~
o 6 @t 7 R e fefics (amsties) # 15,84,000 gl SRRt @ v # fow e €, S 6 7 vw o @ 3k o R #
FRIGR T} o 3 2, 3fad gea & A & v sasie 9 gge ST ¥ 30es T 2 |

TR, THUHES = 3gHs & e & geaie & fov vac g geataad ot e o & 3R dar afeat # s @ ama
(A1) & Aream @ 3fud qew & 0§ vl fban & 3R g Hecaqyt aar et # weve fogar 2

eI GRT fUEs i st b fese o o 3feret e foba o @ 3R RS 3 € 18 et si sitfoca a1 e # < o /|1 gridadt
7 Fa Wt gea (oedt) 3R qoeira aut Ade (HRien ) fafi omet @1 3w aRa ge 3fud T @1 e faan an iR 3R 2 Rt
& 3 9 W deqeen o foe fawer @ o

o o6 31 A, 2020 @ 3w fraer & 3o Aer @1 G S 3 fow S0 3 SaTRier GRT wNiTe JoTe B e & e #, g
& fore raiea @ ReRe & 3R S Roié &1 s & 3R 390 @1 fewma o 21

A It % 30 Ard W A o aféy a1 ore fUee i ot & smar fosar o & sk fires aff & dkm o Wierat g1 4 w@ieR foar
T 1 At ¥ & foe S # o seo T g 2

FEER! & 51§ T @ B 3R 7 & SEriers 3 der s & 3fud Jr & smwed 1 § wem T8 8 aw gfiadt MR @ 3
eI B 3 for da-o! T & Wer e &l

9o, OEied HF ¥ 2

(m) o Redt @ fewol (7) a1 (W) RE:

& R 1 (i) 2019-20 & fose gt ot & 33% ot gf o 2018-19 & foe awefass foger, 2018-19 & 16.88% swm 2017-18
@ go #, 3R (m) st diedt # 2019-20 & fow 90.88% @ afis 88 € 3ik 2018-19 # 1.22% ot ot @f g # 2018-19 &m
2017 - 18 % fow 21 fs ot ik ot & g e @t 3ow ofig &1 oA €, gfee vt yamor & aner wwef fopar ST anfee | R0 & s
# gn e e s (amdivs) & sfwc Rt & fow ame 3fa geu & fov geoie Rurd w sR T8t o) wad 8

7 Usiighel AcIahel Tl & gHe JSies & gfeac! SRR & 3t gea b oM R 3 o aaa w0 & e T8 21 @i, 9 &9
eI YraidaaT BRI fobe T Heaidd ¥ 3o U FE e & &, T 59 e & DRI U AT Sania RulE Je & el b e
@G &l

Il emeRa:

g/

3remer 3R yee Frewe

g/

TS - U U8 U (/)

g/

ezl G Wer Frfa

g/

Tifdfers damRies

W I

fewtias: 28 s, 2020
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TR BIoATs T [0S

WA A Ries! a1 Ruié

e BidaEs fofits @ Jewrmura),

FaTfeprEs Snfufta

B, HET Bid st feftie s & faaira faavot & amer o 31 4

2020 BT ger-7 (31 T 3 @i ) iR 3R i o1 s ad
T A1 T 3HR e YaTg aIfciaT qem Seeieamird cratas 1 et
3R 3 faaroTeTs aae e &, @ e wian o 21

FARI T 3R FARI THOR! 6 3R, §4 o1 T ARESH & 3R, FIRI RUE &
FACTIEE U & MER” W ¥ 3fecifRaa Aal B Brea, qaiad Tenfed 3%
TEICT T 3G90 STHORT S & | 31 W, 2020 T B! o ATl oot Heafer & et
# 3 AR R SR b 0 ereate gl SR 0 A% akich 3 o1 Heefl
3R i Fer g e, AR &% 5 T 30 &1, ot T 5, g
% qeend 3R a¥ & oo e HaTe 3% R @l FAT e ¢ |

FaTfeTprEs SUFTER & IR |

& ferettar faol 3 e 34 R e arof¥a o €, 5t ag affa axard & wredta
rerer ferfies & FifdRte SRt 3 e 7 sfera qroie a1t qraia-mat g1
fean man 21 31.03.2020 Pt YradTaat = faw wofed Jea (@ed) 3R FRRew
el A (o) S gomelt o 3T R g S e BT S e
o1 3R e e e e He: 6.1325.95 i AR 3R 5.1783.49 e AR
oMl 31.03.2020 B a1 & 3frt e 1 A B D+ Weden s
YU S| & ST (i) 2018-19 3 fofe 2019-20 a9 aTiforas faght & fere
T forat & 33% Bt gfeg &% & 519 2018-19 3 18.98% &I 2017-18 B et
# 3R (i) Fpfrer dred ¥ gfig &% & 2019-20 & fére 90.88% M 2018-19 & fore
TR 1.22% , 2018-19 &M 2017-18 B Jern 4 2t s ot sk et o g1
TRE B I gfeg B M & FAfeTE TaTa JoT 35 ey el fopa s e
& s d g feom Mo fafics (smden) & sfract ARl & fore raia=
Rié & bR qra R PR 78 SR wad &1 3§ STHORY & 31Ta A STdee &
3 7 1 e B 4 We Tl ¢ | IR S BRI & et SIS A G
forettar uReufeea w fowta gumt ot FrofRa o & semef E)

A R 3R
i. &H AIC 47 R U 3hNd id &
v. &9, 3qc foowal o1 gfa @ feu 2144.46 SIS BT T ad ot

I UR 3R IGANT -0 AfAfcT (TR ¥ Ut

BT |
31 W, 2020 - gRAT & o v geo FeRor de

(ETITR) BT & | Jugdad & 3ifc g &g wfas #
TGS & T |

ar. 02 3utd, 2014 ¥ 34R famT GRT EAT Femfera
Tes ||| fa® R &9, gRard sfaRad
TG 2350/THCT @ fore AfersT arar<ierz 16.26 TS
Hrafrd

ii. &9 gt 3UR 3R YRT TRAR I 377 gaH I, AR
UT/EER, aIe ang 70T 3R e 31 S gite il oRomar
TS & T § f5d R & AIe 43 (3 © d8d e e a
SR

IrfEd e & A H gAR T PrS Fee T fHard
forettar foraRor & qa:dom

ST < Y et e fo, & femh 55 & wrente 3R qee fara faawol
I T el &, & b o o fere srenferer 3ik agmer foeiver faraor
T | 31 A, 2020 3 3 AT BT eI X 1T T & o e 0 19 3, 2020 Y
R fee

I fere MR

&R, B 31fEfaw, 2013 &1 &R 143 (10) ¥ fafder AR crar A
IR faarol &g o Wian o &1 37 AFDT & ded guRI forrarRar
B EAR focira srgamh & fqaRol & orar Wias o fweRar
F 3 fafta far mar 21 &n dumr afafem, 2013 3R Fomi &
yIaeT & ded faira faRol & gART o RieT & foe g=iis
AR TaTaHATT B AT HRA B Fa! CRABR AR GRT SR
AR AET & AR B a3 &, 3R & 3 Saeadansii 3k
AR |fEar & SR S 3 wifad fomeRar ar qx1 fosar 21
BART AT & b & SiT o TRIET 16 UTe fhaT &, 3 8ARI I &
fore 3meR e &= & fore vafa ik sugaa £

T o e A

T T WY ATe! & AT €, ST R URTaR ot i araftr o faaa faa—o
5 EAR oTeE TRIET e Fgcaqut & | 31 ATen b i, faao o BR crear-aiear
& wed ¥ et oo mar o, 3R gARt T ¥, 3R &9 5 A W U 3 <
TeF Te BRA €.
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we Bidaea fafies

T AT e A

B wtere! o1 giibar

o7 Al - AT 1 feigh

T &1 P! 3 & AT RToTea 1 a7 WEalT 31l & 31 JTedb! R et 3 (T
WINTARG o ST &1 U JI5RG oG AMG §8 U 115 TTEd! b a1
HderT o, $6 Wdamsi o fore, e aa RImidRa foar 3 & 38 3
T 1 YT R faaiRer fava ST & 21 57 3 bt <ot fea e €, a el
R R

A IR T o & e § ffead we e we gt @ e
Tl

TS AT 9152 T Wt T, AI=ell 9T <7 ¥ Wa eI Aaad o e
T 3R Erai=aar T Se Feaee o Jeaia (el

T T 3R o & e ¥ et siaRe freat @ oRar
T T T QRIGTOT (5T | ) 3 10T & SiTer! o aer & 377, 3Faciiep
R e & FeRIegoT 3y e wiznan i 7 v TaieH foval

aferd e Srefie! e e, T Ao iR Refen sk Toa

To¢ SR H ST O S aTel T STHORT BT IRIeqT fopa|

B Taf T & e

P veqor e T o w1 WTEd Y AT 2R R 5 ) ARG 2 |

» & 29 3l & SR AR T eRE & o et  faRor sik
ot e a1 qeaia far 21

P e G i e & I i U oo g farg, sieramd af
FHERF DT foept T bt gfie 3|

o Y . o (el a
> STHIRAIC ARTSTDIIC WITIR DI Gk AL IR RS CAR

fearmar

> gl it b veel 3ucie T & fere, TRt 1 wriar o wier
o,

o faaot & e 3 @) <erRa 3R A 2 @) (v) AR IR ot &
TGO T % | TG el 3R 317 g, e 3 Hafera TiewsT 3 o7 3]
T, YR TRER (TR RO ) GRT -7 W AR & 6 MR |
OIS e STERA el (TAaTeRT ) et O SR Frel 97 & | 3ot gRT
3 3yt & fore fagnt &g IoRa! @ AT R, fores fore aifegan 1y o 7 &
3R 2 37 & e, SR 6 SR W, 579 09 3fera aearert e & o oo
et & B el ST S o Qe AR FoTerl ey aTet ST ey &
(SYEEr) Ot 3 SRl TR GRT g I T |

oS! B T AT B e 3 TR R FAfcrra o erear TIaT 9fmare
i

g el et & oy ¥ T | HRd TWER GRS s
Rt 3R SISt 1 T 2|

ER TRT BT & ST AT & W URe TROR b e Gaifd IRy
3R TR B ! AR o W H o TR &

i e stefier s R, et o s et o ast
P R TPEROT O H JTTHT Bl 371 aTeh! Tt DI obr TRYEqoT fepa|
A B GIRT TG 3FIEH 2 UTaTe & R e Uk 3iR sfrgaesi &1
werfear|

FU SO GRT ! T aeifdes fagb! o e Afede! 3 b fore fora o 1 fagdr
T B e e [T g |

T 34X T &5 U OU Yt 35 ST TTeeh Tl o W12 ot ol
TIRa O TR fa! o1 T AT R <0 ewfer e b & iR e g fove e
gdier e e fBar|

I e 3 qEe 3R e Heer o w3 &, e 3 o AT
&1 3 fore o feere &Y @ g

547 aftis Rare 2019 - 20




...

FAE. T A R A dEwRies! 3t gffbar
wfewdt wifterat 1 earia:
oS! Tl & eate o WIS R (e T erel WIET Highare:
T U9E & WY aem el miad o Refd 3R et awdfada &
fowermor sik 7/ a1 21

o E e 3 fore IR AR W T ST femfra & wiew e |
o T 9o faaRfura # mitqa & shfse T wigor fear

o T Wi harE 6 T YRT WAR' GRT B T8 derdl oI e afgat #
ARt foan 21

3 mmﬁ?m . N | o P o & o R R s R 2, e i
s, S 3R o et e SR 57 i e Rae & & FHIAT BT Fedee (b &, TNl el @1 e e 3 forw v fovw &,
e v o e e e ok o v o T &1 78 A | oo hecon s o s e i e
ﬁ{mm@ﬁmﬁﬁwwﬁﬂ%aﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm B T S

?Hagi'lmﬁe . %ﬁ%ﬁm ] . e SR e gRT IRl o 3Tt 3rafr oy e & Seber fepan T2 | ST wispana

B B ¥, F JAe GRT (o e Foral bt e 1 forem sfafifea el
SIcT i STHer &, ieBr I 3 STuaT IRl b araiad 4o Bl FHeRv,
eI /AR 1 TURT 3 A, gRerufet ol o Jugee, iR doe aiftfam,

2013 B I 113 FreifRa Sufe arafir 2

4 | yrauH 3R Feiee dodn o N oo ~
a‘%q:vﬁ' a—jpf([\[:gﬂ? %a]a‘f[ . %3# @_ g . $H%|QUH3W$J‘|("H(1\SHH\ﬂ(ﬁlq{l&llwmwsﬁ%llwﬂﬂ

B X T ﬂmﬁr Sj,shﬁatﬁa?raw . . )
St e s &, vt e P i ) e | T O R A e TR e e o e T

3R 39 &e B 0T B e I 0 Y BRI b IRV 5 v W ST PO _
F R T A A | © E G BT 3R AR o R e e wefed E R &R e

eI T A 8 G g 3R s ol ot R R ava gt
S e HIRIT3H & e |

¢ SR E, R RIS 3 T <12 T fgerao

o g oo & euftrt g o wida o ae

fereirer feaom AR o ier ot RUTE & 31e7TaT 37 THERT

R B eI Heet 37 I bt Ry 2 fere Fvmerty &1y oo arg o Ravd, e i ol frgermor stk e o ® R anfirer 2, ot gt faivar foramor
AR ER o Wrere b Rard anfier g &1

i aaRTvTal # B R 3 SR oY T o e e s € 31K &t et e & T < o0 b1 el 7 el 2

fercer faraoralt & crea oven o wiaer &, EARY FFmIaRY 370 TG 31 e B & 3R TR e W, faar o i o faivar oot & ey 3 STaRT sifords & < STl & a1 8
TR TRIETT &b IR T T 21 372 4 fefd 89 1 eret a7

o, & 3 o e €, 3705 3R R, & I P e & 6 s e a1 Rt a5 o o & 7 iera o) 7 &1 & g er  Ruvé s s fev g e €

faciver faaott & fore yaem @t fomert

U a5 o et e s, 2013 (e ) e 134 (5) & e et 3 o e €, 7 focivr foawforal S a5 wider & 3 faer e ar i ok ey
gfeaTea 8, facia yee, @fac! # uRad) iR Gt o ! Fare &1 SR R HRa 3§ WIBR (68 T8 Raid (gl o SR, HTom B ERT 133 & 78d e craid
! e 5 omar) # i sl o e & o 3k ererdt iR g ot T o Qe AR var e 3 fore s 5 wrae & SRR va e Rers &
xR 4 AR €, 3 e At 1 e 3R 3aeH, ot iR SR e 3 3tad 3 faawet &, 3R v siafa fawia i @ feoe, dritaa 3R e,
3t o5 et RapTS @f it 3R qoret Gad a1 o Fofe e 91 1 R X 3, 3 faraia oo At 31K SRegfet e AT & 3 0 el 31K Foeer gfeaptor o & 3iR i

& GETIN I E ¢, e SRS AT 3fe & BROTE|
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7| e ot s

fomivar foarott @ IR et 3 fore, et oot aoT St a7 ST e o o7 FoRIGIRY HTHeT, aeanmvT & & & SIRT ¥ 1 fore Formiay &, 3 ey & <er &, wiaffere wmey iR
FTRGTaR O A 85 SMTEIR U 39T 35l G ST b Y Tl ot o STt 33 T 4G 0o 7 TGT RNl € | Ser, 3T U a6t 0 T g et feaoed e & |

& e e o o faeirr e e oot e o fore oy 21
fareirer faaRutt a1 erean e b feTe e RIera oo ForraiRar

AR 3290 3% AR 3 aimearsi uma aer & fop v =it 6 3 v faaror ifors agpg o= gaa 2, o elramerst angfe & aro, 3R 0w e e ot RAre Rt 3% 6
fore forest gy <y enfiver €| 3iferT STeaTent e R T AT €, et I8 TRC el & [0b THUee ob SR [obaT T erl ORI gl Ffof &1 R it it  Terd &) abt
e S| et elNarers) an e & 3w & Wl & AR A ST & o e, ot e w0 9 an goer e, & 7 feiv ot ® 3o o) Jwaiee 1 8 anfdie Fofat

P e T & fow TR SeT & 57 Fabel 21

59O o5 ER7 40 (&) T € 46 1 et o T e qRer o TG 3 URIRT # 3uere 81 Wbt €| 377ae 40 () T & 1o 510 g, Fofeemt am e evean o w1 ¥ ¥

R AN & €, A1 e BT 0 S TTUBR! 1 JaRISE R ST 1 el 2, Foret ereal IRIeTd 1 RUIC 3 37 AT b1 SN B3t b ol o1l TRIETh b FoTwiali<al bt [9aRvT

2 a9 b Jawmee v W faervr, 3iR e Wiers @ Tmieriar & foaxor & arr s T8l 21

TRIOERT 65 3R U0 T QRI&TT o U T 5 0, B YRR 707 ot & 31K ¥ orear oY Tt <ieg o ae <t & | g o

o O IR A & RO TR 3§ ST o fore SRt 2, oree e wfwan a feame 31k frenfed o, 31K orRar wen e g R 3§ 31 0 FoT0 MR Y R
fore gt 3R 3 2| elrarers) o TR 81 aTe ST o5 e faaRuT a6 0T e e T ST 3 o URUTeRGR 81 et U ¥ 31 &, s elrrers)  fiefveTa,
ST, TR b, Tdaa, a1 3Ie o] o aRTES et & Tl 2

o BTRIENHAE B e aRe & fore v wie o for arifi sitaes e o e e AR o oRfRefodt § Jugaa &1 B st 2013 B ERT143 3) () B
&, B9 597 10 W 30T 0 I <t b fere 4 FormieR & fop oo o oy gt rafRep et feom yomedt & 3R g ke o foieaion ot oRemer gemaeierar 1

¢ TN S AN D i Y G R T GRT (T U TGN AT IR W heidRon & e Bl e o |

O O IV o STEIR & T b T o ST € -G (+TbTer, SR Tt e1ea TRI&T 16y o SR TR, T Bl TeeAT A1 3| 3 S 7] ST S eaaietl A1ofG & ol ot
B &I R FEqY! HCE ST el & 11 U HIVell BT 1AW & | T & T (- (apTere & [ob bl SIAlT STeeeicl A1of &, Ol & GO e TRIERes by IRUTC # faeelry Ffawtt
e HEPCTBRUT R €T GBI BT 811 1 3 831 ARG b HACIdUT ST &, AT GHRT T2 T IITETT et b TOTE B (e B i IRIEIes bl RUTC. b1 aIeg
T o1 QRIS 16 R SR & | Tefifcd, iaear & 8 ateht wea a Feferdit & et abt g vt ot fower a7 Rg e 21

o ¢ ocn 3 o

* THCEROTHIET [l [GaRT ot Ry cl, TRaT 31K T3 T Heei %, 3R T Ty it et 31 Heea o1 3% aRE & 110 e & ol +1o0eq ol T
AL

B 3T G §, O RIS 3 NaIag I 3R Sy e Hecaqut erea e st o e, o i # i S wecaqet s s anfiver awa €, o aw o e wiem

&R L |

B ST 05 3 TRV O i TG et & e G Tt o ey & TR HTicd STaeerabet i3 o ey SruTer fohe 2, iR a7t e 27, ¥ e ey 3 el Reeelt 3 sy et

5 2T TG 5 25 T o GIRY ST R et et e S AT T et & |

B ST O 37 STRIG Y ET TE AIeh &, & 37 ATen ot e v €, 3 et arafey o forer feramott o cree otem Sy ey e <ea 21 3R gfere & weeaqot crea mieqT Amer | &9 3y
o Y o Rulie 3 57 AT 1 aui el & 19 A {ob I O Fef et 3 AT & AR & T fei e euT e el & a1 37 afediel g uRverfeadt . o g e et € fop ey R
el et &1 SR T T T e b 0T a3t ab it TRV T 2ot OO SR 1 3R 3% R o TR b Wi ot Tl bl ST GG B e oo S|

o N aY N o e
S PIAT SR TTIHD STARIDATA R RUC

(1) Stmfes arferforam @ eRT 143 3 3UEIRT (1) 25 Wi H sk TRBR GRT SR BT ((TeT TRIETE B RUIC) AT, 2016 (1) 3 SRR, & IFE 0 g A &, & e
7331 4 3 e Al R faqRorea &

(2) siftfrm @t arT 143 (3) % 3R, &7 RUC TR & {6
v) B IR e 3R IR B 7GR T e R S g o tRie i 3l o fere g e 31K ferearer 5 fore s o
&) R, G ERIG B SaTIbaraR 3o o afed & 37 o < T €, Fifes I 3 o Wi ¥ ¥he A1 &

) o0, 3 e 31T et oot 3R g o feaor, 3feracr # uRde 3R g RUIC g few e e e 3 faavr o gt o W e &

&) R, IR faira ST B ORT 133 8 Tt (G R oI AT T e B £
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§)  wniRe & e e e o e 164 @) SR, 2013 BT 3T ERT (2) 3 FEUH TRER B R AT A £ |
%) B fai ROFETR 3R i Famord gafr 3R 336 & i & e o yeeeid & dagd, Fdea dr § gaRt s Rid 3w,
) e e SRIE SR o TR R, 2014 35 T 11 6 SRR, e WR1eq TG H Qe fohe o7 et 3770 ATett b vy o, &R <101 iR I MR & SR
AR & o o e & SRR
i R e fada faaot 3 fawira fRefer R cffee gaest o wera gt yaciaor a2 |
il o o5 ey PR SR A AT 35 et ST &, ArIaerd i, T B &1 b foTe Uil = STaerT fosal &
i, o g e o fonem g e fftr , et ot o fore ez W a1 wmiaRe o R 3 TR B TS B
(3) 3T & ORT143 (5) B AR NATIF &, FF HRA B I3 Ud Areramierd & el w faar fear sik dur & ot 3k facia
[EENMEIRIESCEEICE
DAY, TS TS & Y T ISR
1 T BT B TR G U TesT JOTet & Aream I T eaids oiva & | 81, BT & U gaT UifiesT & Areaw 3 9o oraia
it e aor fe g & 2 afe &, dr faaira ffeard, afeard &1, & e | e o gafig & & foe gomer 21
R dr FYUTAT R a1 U iTes! & STex ot oifa - @ Jehror d
fferme! qare 51 e 2 |
T o AT 7601 & I Yoo &1 a1 U Bl 0T G F SITHRIar & | 37 a4 B SR, HET B C BT bl bl UTETA GRT fehe

HROT AT FHOTETT GRTH YT P G TE K0T/ 0N/ M B Ge/AMHel BT | T RO FOV/TS 3G DI ASal %91 AT BE B AHAT H Ts
feraT2r 2 afc &, o faciar e w19 B o 51 gebdr & QAR et 1 TS |

FAT P LITRIT Tortad I fafoee Arormait & ded 9T eRRIsyuTe o 18 o | 99 9 & SR, dara ar sy val ot 3 fafere s
a1 et 2 e & et o g & Sl @ ded Bl O UT el gaT a1 U1 e ¢ |

(4) B 5 sffem, 2013 % 76 143 (5) a1 € 7 030 g SR et e et ot e e

P . frrcer A T 3R

4 T JATE T FROT AT P | URT TSR Pl I T4 37RO (SI61E) Ao & e, SIoR B Qe 341 et (T3iew) Juawont &
I & SR W) B AT | Hrea 3 ifer et 1 30 o foht R A ot o 1 feR 2| @renfos, e Siert b far
RIS 4 & Y 3 Y T H UE B AT B IFER TS BT & JIRT I ¢, 3 3t STeaH B aEd
ge fos ot &mi aifk wfoet 3 o sy 3iR et s/¥a & 3TOR W i &t |

IRIe frde Aest o e & R R Ruie ¥ et 2|

T 31 A IS EUS ST
RECRGECIGHNY
B G5, 029473

(81 TRTIOT FTE e
G HER

0 0020 A .233192
' UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792
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e A ! B R BT Igerd B
(31 7t 2020 Bt TN faeehta fyaRont R wer wiféemsort fafids, wofer ("Soeit) Y TRt wvieas Rard
o uRede 1 # weftfa @ srefis "sma faftr silk Jaedt Rearra=e" &g wue)
i) © o R uRawiaal @ oRem faavor sik Ref afed faavor feramare sfad sifiere o @ ™ 2|
an & gars TS Y 3R RIEROT @ SRR, A as # U aR, BT 3 3NHR 3R 376! aRrfd @ Uaha @ SRR gde gR St
B ST & | AR I H, B B 3B 3R 3D Faa DY IR G B A A Faa | YT gRIET T8 I 3R TEIGROT B 3FER,
FAuE H I8 g IR | 3rel Wufeddl oIy a7 3R ALi=RY & 517d Wa 7 Ial $31 IR gRT &< ITel fhar STar e |

) P B s ol F et faaxor St @ fore 78 fean 2 s s wder # &9 S I g e s 2

i) @ 99 3% ydeT gRTBREM B TRIR 3R T U1 H aRgRgat o A 31 Tacia 9 &7 GRT P T 31K HUSR vd Gea Gail o

HfT 317 Ud FaT AR BH GRI DI T | BF a¥ @ 3faia qH! avgal o Qofeu I g &f 5 e | HUSRER & THIIAN AR Fqof
geref feraT ST RET 2 | B AW ¥ HUSRER JHIV-03 U T g2, 37 SE]ET Yo ¥ Jeored e &

@) TR, 3R EH & TS G 3R STHGRI B SRR, TeOH gRIag g @ Wi deme & fore s 8 ugha staa & 3R agdu
& TR B IR I Tt |

R BRI H, BT GRT SR B UG A HoR W T 2 | & fard fepar Tar e s il ar 4tferp e o 2R &t g fariwrierat
BT Prs FEayul T 3R @ orear afeat # 3fad dn ¥ e mr 2 |

iii) & AT TS PRI B SR, SUAT AR 2013 BT ART 189 B T&d dTel, 7 AT Sredl § LMIHeT Bl Mg Ul ST aifcat 3 gfasd
3roraT 3mfd FoT Rl ferar & | 31T 3U-aRT 3 (i) (©), (jii) @) 3R (iii) () B 3T A T &

iV) B T 0T, e, TR IR FaRET & HIG T BT ST 2013 B GRT 185 3R 186 B UTAEHT BT SIUTCH b1 &

V) & &1 G iR TR B SR, BUAT S ST I IIGd B STaT i & dae i siftfam o ar173 7 76 A6 & Tae
AR BT (ST BT HEHa) aw 2014 30 HE UITEH BT FTIRUTBRA & | T B ARM, TRT73 3 76 T AT 3ifer-aw, 2013 3R BU!
(T3 BT ) T 2014 & TRTa SUT = 3T ST I Thel YR BT TGl ST waidyd et dl &

Vi) &, Be IRER gRTefRa sufat @mra Rams iR erarwian Fom 2014 & AR BT 3iffe=m 2013 37 eRT148 (1) & T8 3ifierat
@ TR B T BT GIRT 1L T T o afedt dof, A dR W, Ten o & 3R gy a2 i wera: freiRa yer @ o sk sifyere
A T | B, 31, O 3rfrerat o favga stra e fepar e oy g e ar gt wu &l |

Vi) ©) & e TR gET vd S aRuT & SRR, BRI |, B IR AR aare Wiaw i, SEaRT 753 i, S1ae], [t a), Far s, A

e, 3T Yo, Hed afeid o, 3ua 3iR 37 faftr & e fdarfea sem Fafim 21

an & e mr Faravor sk waiastor & SR, 3w favimra e wiaws e, svart s ar, s, faes! #, Jarax, T e, A
e, Headrdd R, 39 3R 3T e aBra s el &, 31 A1, 2020 & 3R, e dacasw &, i e wem J aifes

TS o se § @ & ST = yeR 8-
T I B gy a5 oyt §
2.53
yaer AR (aferrg)
2.51
de (dfterg)
o o o S 0N 7.79
HY TCUASEHCT AT QHFEW
ST ax
12.83
o

() degaR, 7 o TRy faa=o 3iR TUeCIasor & SRR STaa, T Yo, 31E Yo, Ao afeid o, e ax iR Jara area @ aiv
T8 it & SRoT 3R AfteRar o smrer fesarmar &,

viil) gaR e wReT SR g fed T oo iR SR @ SRER, BT GRT G R SRAR (SHI3H3E) F0T e T G b IhH bl ST 0= G 2 3R gIeb 7T . ST

arfod g st ¥ faeae, §o, a1 fsoR ara! Frea e 1
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TeT Bidage foafies

Xi)

Xii)

FIPIGR (@AY | A

IPH
(s ) (@5 H)

wra war 7 | 2004-05 (23.49  (2012-13 |38.33

wrd waR 71 | 2005-06 [23.48 [2013-14 |45.78

wra war 7 | 2006-07 (24.89  [2014-15 |32.68

wra war 7 | 2007-08 [26.07  [2015-16 | 32.68

wra war 71 | 2008-09 (27.03  [2016-17 |31.28

wrd waR 70 | 2009-10 (26.44  |2017-18 |30.09

wra war 7 | 2010-11 (27.34  (2018-19 |29.14

wra waR 7 | 2011-12 (28.63  [2019-20 |28.25

gt 475.62

* 3uefar T ¥ Dt 70, R-dver T s Rdw wor enfer 2 |

9 & SR, BUAT GRT YRY UTEid 3B AT 3T Teetds 3MHs
(0T AreFT Afgq) & eI ¥ BIE BT G T DY TS B
TETIR, URTE 3 (1x) B LT AL FeT

BN B afedr 3R Raret oF 51T @ RM, 9RT # orar wien &
fore e s Frat sk & o my faaror sik weia=or &
IR, BUHT T BY B U T BHAMRDT GRT ENBTIE]
e fgazor orar wrean @ R gfud fear g |

HH (Xi) © GG F, vh WHRI BUT & B A, B,
T, 2013 B €RT 197 & 3fATTa STTERLTT .37 B 37K 463
(¢) f€05.06.2015 & TEd BU & few AR e 7|

BT U R BT TET &1 37 HUAT (oI TIGTIUE) ST,
2016 @ 3TATd RT3 (xi) ¥ ST T WA=t & Hu=T o ang el
2|

Xiii) &R gRT Sw B Rt @ sra @ 7 3} & v e ge ok
CTRROT &g WA DI oA-8F & & TEIIR BT ( Oream wRief
IT) 3T, 2016 B 3Faia €T (xi) F U M0 eer oy et &

Xiv) & fedr mr faavor 3 LA & SRR, B A Feren af
@ 3faTd RT3 AT Ugae e ar guf ar e w3
uRafdd fea=er &1 3rdeT el fopar & 3iR 37 HUH (@ WIar Ie)
3T, 2016 B 3T €T 3 (xii) ¥ U 70 Traen=t &T BT o= A Fer
&l

XV) & e T faaror iR TiaRor & SR, U @ fierl & wRIaT

@ SR T et a1 et fcr § B T dad e-aT T8l @

21 31 U (CRaT IRV IC) 3N, 2016 B 3R RT3 (xv) ¥ few M

TIGEHT BT BUAT IR ] &l |

XVi) gARIRmrH, SR e TR iR RCiaRor s SRR, Rd o 3 givsar

fftrfoom, 1934 & 3TN OIRT 45 - 3 U D 3iAvid HUT Golidd R

eI T &

Tl 3.4 IS BUs DI
T AEBR
% G, 020475

(Y ARTIOT STE )
Bl TR
9 3rFqs , 2020 UH.¥.233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792
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we Bidaea fafies

Wad o Rigdl gRT TN BiearsN ks

TS e %vs s fawia faavon R & fore
BTN |

g

B SR, 2013 (‘s ) B ORT 143 B IART3 () B SiTa sifRE e FREs R |

T, TS BleeTsond [eries (DR & W08 31 faaia faaxuit & arer fmm 31

A 2020 3R 39 e T T O T SeeiE T e et 3R 3 faaRoee

St e, B A

siaRw fawira fFroms @ foe yeem 1t

HRAD Tl CTEPR GRTSIRT AR Faeirer oTea IRIT R4e 2 AfeRia A TR 3faRe
s @ fore anawas velad! & SRR, SR fawira v e fawdl ® S
T BT & | BUA TR 2013 B 3FIAR, T A, 1978, BRIGR 3 GeIet
A TR a6l T R BT Braead, S S A Had e, wRwwfet
B RET, DI 3R GRS q 7, e HHeTE BT Ui iR T R fovarr

ot o @ e amfe enfier 2|

AT B FoFaRT

o

A & 1o 2 ST e Wi e ot fope 2, 9 fawiar Rod R a0 & apfiRa
faaira foror Jome W ERY e RIET T S T 06 SR JeH o/ & Ja7w 3R

|

o RafEn < waftrr siafw faahor frrmor ararw:

A i 3R, S B fowia RO R sk faedra frremo vgfa &
e Tg & o foaira Raifé iR i fookor @ dart & 3fua fovawrioar 3 &
T &1 30 @ faaia Rofén o siae ot frias o Aifaar sk ofpard o &
& (1) afireral o v ¥ weftr € 6, afe foeRor, S0 & Tl seht ameT
3R feaRorwet &, (2) Ay dR R & T crae gt & 3R, fawira faaRo 3
TR ST AT G D TS & AR BT B FeTamoT 3R TS Tiferes<or 37
FERITIR Za o A E; 3R (3 T & fcia fomo o, wo- e R e &

Trafealt @ eI SITERTEYT, T AT Al T T o foawom & |
fawia Raifén w sriaRe fawia Frmo ) e g

foeia RO R 3R fawia Frimor ot e e &, fciema argaem @ o
# g SR, et ar fe & BRoT Ee W BT e feaRor o fera T
T T &Y, N A &1 59 3o, g Rofes o smaRe faca o

AT RIET & AR Il U¢ R B! i fawira a0 R gaR < yae et
FARTalce | TS GRISTRY SfaRw fowia v wvan<ve & (“Arfee )
R 3w e o fore smavas vgfodt & SR, sl facdra P s faval
U TS BT el & SR ST Hefrad, 2013 eRT143(10) B S FeiRa vgfa,
1 oivET Rie B 3iaiw i e 3R, siaRw fadr e 2et wra &
TREIGR gRT AR | 37 AT 3R ATee= e B srazadar & o g7 = fae smazadan
BIUIEH B & AR TS TR H 3Tl SIPaR I B B Te7e ol R el & A1)
78 gff¥aa axa € o fadra Rite R waf@ afaRe fowira s wnfa sik s
G T AT AT AR 5 e S (werA0r o i & At & e 67 9 e e o |

A 3R ANTGR A1e & SF9R, wTid SNagdddr 3R AT & 3750
FIT faaiig 0T & 3iaiid 3idRA facig Rafér vafa 2 3k a9 dde
¥ fope U orear a)ve T Y OR SIaT & | SR OIRaT tRYeT Ui,
foia R =, oRamem yere 3R siaRke fawira o gomet
T @ SR oI URIET TS e UT ] &) & | FART o wia
T faaira RATE R, sfaRw faira forior g, Saifera Sihem & dea i 3 dadr
FHI 3R WRIeT a2 WRETET Tt 3 3T & | TR Y T Tie, ol TG & thefer
RRaRa & ot araeer ar3fe & R ge fawia Hae e faaor anfier 81

EIE & S B 319RR, fowira Rufen & ariaRas fawia v ® s &
BRUIEE 91 & URad a1 et A gt & Srjaer # SR el |

W

FARY ¥, O, e s e At §, fowie Rofén & siaa sioRe facta

friao & waf 3R 31 9, 2020 & AR 0% fadra Rofén & siaia siaias facia

reroT o & & 3R B g o Rafé & siatar s fawiva o &

URT D WGl TEIBR R Y R S, 3 wRa § i s gre

IR sfaRw fawdra o Rier ue 8 Aree e R 3w s & fov snews
gfed & AR |

HA 3N A TS H I

e EIBR

UUS3TRU 029475

Y AR FTEfean
RIS

TH G 233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792
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qet1 9
317/, 2020 & (% =)
feuoft i 31,2020 7 31,2019
P
R ey uRewafeTar
Fufed, T 3R 3uEHRoT 1 198.72 146.40
I3-ERf TR R 1 3.13 30.59
e gufe 1 1.22 1.22
i wufe 2
IECK 2 282.50 197.91
0T 28 - 0.01
3 faatra Tt 2% 0.28 0.24
3= 1R fetra wufe 3 16.47 17.03
Fer iR Ty Wt 502.32 393.40
ey wufed
T 4 250.76 280.86
i wufe 5
IR it 5u 50.87 271.21
Fobe 3R e aueT 5ar 133.31 36.82
o1 5% 7.07 0.91
3 faedtra dafed 5gr 556.04 815.31
3 AT <t 6 2742 13.78
T TTe] Hufe 1025.47 1,174.89
o Hufed 1,527.79 1,568.29

)
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7| e ot s

$fFadh sk 2o
HEEG

$had AR g

I giaacy
uferenta B
I SR

Fsiaact

EERES
31 A1, 2019 I (3TRN)

Fgand
= ey e
facira dgam

31 IR 1] daa
1 R @y dgan

e TS
facirg egan

He e ST

FAsiFad g agan

9t
10

1

12
120
128
123
13

14

162.14 162.14
(805.42) (749.80)
12.39 12.39
(630.89) (575.27)
R s H)

T 31,2020 Tt 31,2019
51.28 78.62

42 44 38.61
1.78 255
95.50 119.78
1,749.49 1,572.97
115.88 276.97
139.80 125.56
10.07 8.76
47.94 39.52
2,063.18 2,023.78
1,527.79 1,568.29
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fewty 1 9 55 7 39 faaiia faaxol &1 v &,
[ vd 1 o R 9/
g ERIO [GIGRSEGRY fran e g g ikl gar
STELTET U T T o TR - T AT (v o
37 28, 2020
FHfCIThd EART RUIC & 3HaR
FA 3.3 A EUS S
REARGECIFIRS
Uh3TRET 00294703
e sft TR sEfean
TRER
3 28, 2020 T+, 233192
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we Bidaea fafies

@9 g g1+ faaRor
. 31 71, 2020 3 T IS B fore

BECIGEIR ]
3T I
T I

ITHET AT B AT

wieh H MR BF WIEr

Wi # TR B axg_adt # uRac
TR JfeT T

focira amma

A

g

HETTA

FRITENROT a3t 3R % & ge e/ @)

T e
STATEIROT a3t 3R PR B &1 a9/ @1f+)

R A AH
TTAF B
e
Tedise

STIHR @I

PP SE AW @) (©

a0

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

(z W H)
31arf 2020 31 wwf 2019 &
T T T T
127439 1,593.00
1287.39 1610.80
1152.43 1318.88
95.97 100.54
9029 10003
130.23 148.20
1422.27 1740.62
(134.88) (129.82)
0.00
(134.88) (129.82)
(134.88) (129.82)
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A g g+ foraor
.31 71, 2020 o T I B fore () R e H)
319rf 20203 31 =wf2019 3
fomlt T o T o
31 T 3 ("N
7 AR AP a8 A [ Faa Te foan e
TRy & < &1 3ura (Fad &%) 25 (5.33) (2.39)
ssaed fraer @1 3fud Aeien 84.59 48.97
Renfya e & @t & 3ur (fraet a)
T I S 3T, T 3R &1 D ae ¥ G ey el fepa smen () 79.26 46.58
T & fore et s ot (2 + oY) (55.62) (83.24)
e SR 3 26
fer 2R et 3 () (8.37) (8.06)
yftr 9rR 9 3 78 e (R) (8.37) (8.06)
1% 55 @ & e 39 faaita famon & am €|
[ v &1 B w3/
R AT SR fran e aiE & ik gar
3127787 vd g1 e et e eSS - U U (U/RN) BT A
3T 28, 2020
TG AR RUIC & AR
FA . AT TS B
JHE TSR
TH3TRT 0029470
e st ARTIT STEfEaT
IBER
3 28, 2020 UHH. 233192
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7| e ot s

31 9K, 2020 &) I 98 & feTe e YaTe difeioT

e yaTe - g fareemal 9
a9 & fae @R gd em/ @)
TS

rEEEIN
SRATIRUT HE (eI ATR)

R amfia & fagr 3 a1ty @)

15T aT

TS5T 31T

UOATETaTTe gRT 3i~ard I A e faadrar ufed < gre et o
Jrarfae el 9aT 3aR e Joar

fefagus amr
Frf-g5 uRact & vee uRarem amw

w5 TR
aeqfdt # firmae / @ie)
TR g # fiRmEae / @fe)
ot ed 3 # firmae / @fg)
3 wefeaal # firme / @)
oraer ¥ gfe/ (Frm@e)
IR & ¥ ghg/ (RTae)
3 o ¥ i/ (RmEe)
ufRaret & gaid / @unT fd) e

TIeT B Ted (@it o fHaen
fachta frarseml /4 fraa s gare @

foha fsameemi & 7as yare
T <iufed B wlig

TS e ar faast &

1ot Tt

GICINEISE
Foraet 1ove yare A/ e srfeaml @) F @ge)

(X I H)

2019-20 2018-19
134.88 (129.82)
26.38 22.99
0.00 0.00
(0.13) (0.01)
90.29 100.03
(3.68) (0.49)
0.00 0.00
0.00 2.94
(0.24) (0.24)
(22.26) (4.60)
30.10 (61.00)
(23.66) (7.16)
(6.16) 0.12
181.22 131.16
(0.19) 4.48
(161.09) (107.78)
21.89 22.15
84.82 (22.63)
84.82 (22.63)
(51.24) (21.83)
0.13 7.96
3.68 0.49
0.24 0.24
(47.19) (13.14)
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31 71, 2020 3 v ¥ 3 fore o vaE AT (51RY. ) -
2019-20 2018-19
foita frrareaml & os yae
SR i STRY B I HTe 3T 0.00 0.00
3rafer 3o 3 (aroRd 1 i i) ager it 0.00 0.00
facirg Fufedt 3 et ot (0.03) 0.27
FHRILE Yot 3iR sreudiferd 3TR 3 der it 94.60 90.56
ST A (35.71) (45.45)
Foraet -iove vare S/ e orieam § ggw) (@) 58.86 45.38
Fae 3R e guged ) # Fad gfe/ frme) @+ @ + @ 96.49 9.61
3T 1, (3RRIY) e 3R TP TG 36.82 27.21
Ard, 31 @R Toe 3R THe wage 133.31 36.82
Fae 3R THE AT D TP
JHE 0.00 0.00
AT UroT 0.00 0.00
d # e
A AT 3R e Bise @d R’ 0.08 0.07
ArgTE ST 3T 12 WiEA 3 B 133.23 36.75
T TDE 3R THE TAET 133.31 36.82
131 55 b BT fewon 5 e faaRor oy T &
[t vd 91 B R W/
g ERAUH e IR frar<eFais g fifergar
arezTey vd yaer g erd e TEWEHd - UH I U (T /1) ‘BT A
A 28, 2020
TG gART RUIE & AR
Hd 3. MM TS S
T TEBR
UW3TRUA 0029470
fre sft AR sTE e
RIETARS
I 28, 2020 T, 233192
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7| e ot s

$fradt & aRad= &1 faaxor

31 T 2020 9§ B FHRA B fore (z =)
. gfradt R gsh

1 3d@ 2019 HTIW 162.14 162.14

av 2019-20 & SR $Teracr TR Gor § ufRad

31 77l 2020 BT 162.14 162.14
. I Sfoadt

(z wEH
3R 3R 3ferR
gfegferat yferenfa
R o) GG

31 ATd, 2019 T T FHINA & [T el ATID 37T 12.39 (749.80) (737.41)

=y - (134.88) (134.88)

310 TS 3 ((Fiaed F9) - 79.26 79.26

H TS 3T - (55.62) (55.62)

31 9T 2020 HTIAY 12.39 (805.42) (793.03)
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foita foravot & fere feuoft

2 faha<ufa
. fraer

R frae- R 3gga

givgarreTer fafics15,84,000 Sfaact 2raR (fUwel ay 15,84,000) ¥ 10 T Yol Uew | Jdd RO T IR o)
ST A BT | BT a1 b feAHes (12,50,000 $TFACT 2R T 10 TS QT e (321 & 3fad qea ar 282.50

U GRT'GE e B w0 H Jeaid far 2)

&t wor

R &e 0T

(A o Feres B Raetos gfar)
FrRfEa

- HHARY FOT
.37 e wafeaait

T ST

3 saiR-amey Hufeaat
WREGR TaumT 7 370 @ ey s
BT 3o, T IR U 3T Qe TTTaROlT & T 9
qeeT RO R
s faRe
UIE HHAR! @nTd

4 Fwgyfeat
HUSK HcT
HT AT - grRr
ST AT T

X wsH)
31 9, 31 97,
2020 & 2019d%
197.91
282.50 197.91
0.01
0.01
0.28 0.24
0.28 0.24
14.75 14.70
0.94 1.10
0.78 1.21
0.01
- 0.01
16.47 17.03
67.82 118.94
62.46
65.47 13.45
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TeT Bidage foafies

SR it [Rea)

ERECEICIRIE]

& wiferg AT
I IR Tt Rt

.7 vd T T
RREEEH
Fgfaa da! § T @ ¥ 9y
ElGReE:
Firancr s/

/. 7o
v aRRfEa
FHAR! S

i SFaa AT IR

30.11 3.53
67.68 57.92
6.59 18.00
0.21 0.29
10.20 1.21
2.68 5.06
250.76 280.86
(k weH)

31 31
T,2020 d,2019
50.87 27.21
4.44 4.44
(4.44) (4.44)
50.87 21.21
0.00 0.00
0.08 0.07
133.23 36.75
133.31 36.82
7.07 0.91
7.07 0.91
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we Bidaea fafies

& 30 foedar saferat

- YR ROR AesT

- YR WHR -

el - g @ fore mae

I e IR et

e wd

s fevm

IS FaRI A

T a1 femel oke T e Tt o fere S ot
e TR Red

St S

it
17,50,00,000 £l IR T10 TS D
19,00,00,000 HREF IR T10 TS S

TR} 3fera 3 yaw AR
161101300 A8 AR T10TRD S

STt fr e IR
20.76,600 2 1cFaC) TR T5 Jaed

481.89 706.52
68.55 95.33
6.61 14 .47
(1.01) (1.01)
556.04 815.31
14.13 11.11
0.02 0.01
0.04
12.84 2.36
0.43 0.26
27.42 13.78
k weH)
AT 31,2020 T 31,2019
T TS
175.00 175.00
190.00 190.00
365.00 365.00
161.10 161.10
1.04 1.04
162.14 162.14
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TR BIoATs T [0S

RU ¥ 3R ferarTed= sraftr ) Tl W R SRR BT wHIE

HEEUREN

7§ & R

THE B o0 TR RR

TR TRIG) T R

TS

S 7T B SRee o fope 70 R

$ierad) SERI @ 5% W 377G SR G a1 ARSI B forakor

$ftraet AR 10 B - P07 yad

HRAWPR

TR e3¢ s B fefies

ot ([eper)

8 3rFagfeadt

yferenfRe &g

I RIS

gfergfer frfirem

TR 9w

3rater & SR S /(30=ATT)
it oy

3 sfaract

gfergfer ffirem

AT 31, 2020 AT 31, 2019 B
Kikeul ¥ ikl ¥
16,11,01,300 161.10 16,11,01,300 161.10
16,11,01,300 161.10 16,11,01,300 161.10
20,76,600 1.04 20,76,600 1.04
16,31,77,900 162.14  16,31,77,900 162.14
AT 31, 2020 AF AT 31, 2019 G
T IR A AR
=T 1% kel BT %
9,58,51,700 59.50 9,58,51,700 59.50
4,15,16,500 25.77 4,15,16,500 25.77
2,58,09,700 14.73 2,58,09,700 14.73
(z wEH)
AT 31, 2020 T 31,2019
T TS
(805.42) (749.80)
12.39 12.39
12.39 12.39
(793.03) (737.41)
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7| e ot s

10

1

12

SRR R T e @1 Rers a1 &g wferfar il a1 suin fosan s 21 ser suan st siftf+om, 2013 & gaemr & 3R foar
ST

i daamd

E3UR

IR wor 51.28 78.62
YR PR ( SN FoT 51.28 78.62

HRT TRBR I 0T HTIT B B feT8 91t Fobe S 2, Forant faery wa 3 39a—apt & f+mior o fere 3w fope S aret 67 & TR 84
o501 ST &, ATt 20T 511 YoMt SR BT B BRI Yol & [o7e IR-ATomT %07 & fo1e 3w fepar Srar & | & et o srRiand 8| e usdR
o1 @st g feear mar g

FHOTUR - 7%
AT -1 ST @ 7%, 1 7T @ 12.50% SR N TTT @ 11.50%
IRAGHTHIT- 1T @ 7% 3R GTT @ 15.50%

FUT2003 I 2012 A o 3rater ¥ feram a2 31K 10 aR1eR A foedr # gaman o1 T & S 2 3ret or ferifine srafér & are g grar
2106 af B HIR WRA TROR F0T BT I [T AIC 12 T D Ted G (ol T e |

gTae - R
Jafaa fofear ey 1.98 1.33
BE TR 13.13 10.68
AR 0.29 0.23
39EH 27.04 26.37
42.44 38.61
3 IR doamd
¥ o fee 0.89 1.01
et waRvT Red 0.89 1.54
1.78 2.55
i 3 (R
AT 31, 2020 T 31,2019
T @
UIUR
Rfg
R R 171.86 3.98
TG IS ded WIdR (e T faet 109.76 107.44

@ 3R s &1 Aorfer ¥ e Hofeat R T8 THR & T AR TR Howe! Hed I awg3i 3R 7 Fo & geuiune
ERTRIEA)
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TeT Bidage foafies

13

faory e raven

TR (TRA TRER Hews! B Faems i)

SSNER

HRT TRBR 0T - 1], e

- el Adha

- JSTa ST iR ST

& TR
R T
it
SRR

frfafad & fore gRim

307.67 383.27
502.96 475.62
657.24 602.66
1,749.49 1,572.97
69.62 158.16
46.26 118.81
115.88 276.97

IRATA B BT 1.21 FRIS (31 AT 2019 99.65 TRIB ) forsias v B & Ferw gaf=r arsr dr waid i @ aRIa ad 100 TRIS B9 B
fore fifos 4 o= fira silk veen gyew fear mard |

% 120 FRIS B ISc AT g ST I < 68.41 FRIS (31 AT 2019 ¥ 58.32 FU5,) B <1 Ty forsyad fere wufedt, w7 3R 3uaor
TR UET Yeab ¥ 50 RIS 3R 3faRad ¥ 110 BI85 § IR W fear |

3 fqe S
et it fovar T e o R TR
et admT

K

Ja1 et & are Fafesea e
et

15.55 15.55
22.61 23.60
101.64 86.41
139.80 125.56
0.27 0.18
343 245
0.10 0.08
6.27 6.05
10.07 8.76
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7| e ot s

14

15

16

I ST (k &sH)
A 31,2000 AR 31,2019
L) G
EERKP R LI 0.03
&, 7Y Ud WEAW 3qH 0.01
FI e 47.17 38.81
A g1 fesrar 0.13 0.13
et FERvT R 0.64 0.54
47.94 39.52
e e A 31, 2020 A Y A 31,2019 af Y
R BLIIGR
e 3R Sanat 3 fagt
fafiia s 329.00 281.82
RS AT 6.25 417
T (1.70) (081)
I e XIored
Thewst 940.84 1,307.82
1274.39 1,593.00
I I
I 1 TG B T STt 3N
iR 3.68 0.49
e 57 & S et
BHIR! FOTS 3 g 0.05
i R 0.24 0.24
e e g A faeirar e R 3ed Fifeer ey @)
fafrm &= R 39K T 0.01 1.97
Ut oo fogT TR e 0.13 0.01
fepmar 1.60 1.53
weaER 5.21 8.08
e I 2.13 5.43
13.00 17.80
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17 3y & T wwil & anr

TRATIS

EISACH

RIS &
Hmws

e A T et I

TR, UFT 3R Se
TUSR, Gt 3R o it

18 R wie ot e
CIRSICE]
ST &Te
fecr pwie

19 it ard gy # 3R TR R ®ie 3t awyE 3 saaa

TRATIS
ot veref
P T

ol I TS

ofen Bo ot
o

k &z H)

T 31,2020 1 a BI T 31, 2019 P) a¥ B
TRTR THRIR
118.94 98.23
881.20 852.52
1,000.14 950.75
67.82 118.94
67.82 118.94
932.32 831.81
195.76 467.29
24.35 19.78
1,152.43 1,318.88
1.46 1.35
0.90 0.36
3.21 2.1
5.57 3.82
3.53 43.86
13.45 19.28
16.98 63.14
30.11 3.53
65.47 13.45
95.58 16.98
(78.60) 46.16
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7| e ot s

20 FHaR e a:
I, 7T Ul A
o s o seem
FHIRI BT

21 focfausm

fror TR &

IR GHR 0T
I T

o g
oIS ST R ST 0 TR ot 1T

o o o

[eXSTHT YR 15T Y DI T AT T
R I TR TS 3 WK feam
i pe Ram g

=

22 yroErE

23 s
TR 09 TGRE

BRELGENIEN]

PR T 37 TRt
IRae vd HOSRUT
RaE B e
BV T

e femerar

74.98 73.98
14.35 17.96
6.64 8.60
95.97 100.54
(& Tz H)

T 31,2020 Y TS DI
TARTwR

T 31,2019 1 TS DI
TRIR

54.58 54.58
17.41 21.39
0.00 0.00
8.36 7.91
0.06 0.40
6.44 9.18
3.44 6.57
90.29 100.03
26.38 22.99
26.38 22.99
31 7t 2020 o 317 2019 &
T o T a
2247 29.48
0.53 0.56
1.20 0.84
50.34 54.74
0.67 0.32
0.16 0.40
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24

Hdenf T Rew! B
Tenfe o wien
PR AT e

T LD

IR

a

frcem! drea

P oo R I
R
[EELEERERE SN

3Rt R & fore e
T e EefefT
faf-rm & 3aR T8/
FTR

SREM e

ke
foRme B et

AT

T AR T IR @I
fofaa

Gt @Rl - ee @ ¥ grer

a7

TG WS

31 uref 2020 3 31arf 2019 3
T T

0.04 0.04
0.01 0.01
0.07 0.1
2.00 0.74
0.85 1.46
8.37 2.66
0.04 0.17
0.00 0.00
0.06 0.04
1.40 1.43
17.74 18.27
0.00 0.00
11.92 22.59
2.87 3.39
1.60 2.07
0.92 1.47
0.97 0.98
0.41 0.45
5.59 5.98
0.00 -
130.23 148.20
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7| e ot s

25 a3 e
Ao e 3R T AT b1 d e o (5.33) (2.39)
STaee 9RRY & 3o et 84.59 48.97

79.26 46.58

26 yfyeRR TR
- B aE( TEH) (134.88) (129.82)
SR} B W (@S H) 16.11 16.11
T IRR T 10.00 10.00
e SRR G - e iR & () (8.37) (8.06)
B! B O AT B 3 AR IR e &, 39 PR FTct SRR e 3R B ol T ¢ |

27(2) @YY @ e

1. Reifénsas

TR BT fotes (‘TAUBEE A U ), IR ERER (S ) R @ 38R HAI, TR o (‘S ), e v i ves andsites 3w (o)
& SR @ i 1956 B T TuTter St &, IR -600 068 ¥ e Tty T 2

BT Tt IR Foer T v (TAURE ) Wi & | veveue gk iR o 3Ra) o eford o g8 1 o8 o ais T ded st 3k 3k R vaaror
I BT <o 3R e e & Fmfor o o e gam |

2. doR @ smeR

Y 3 faR

& fedrar feaott o Gt aiftram, 2013 (e ) 6 a1 133 & e st st (aRdra e AR ) w2015 & SRR URAG TG (38 00 ) 3R e
B TGN ® S R fear g |

19.06.2020 BT BT B [EE Hed GRT MR Teow S o fere e faraon arférgper fovw e
B B HEAUT e Al a1 faaRuT e 3 % e far |
&) Frfes aa e

g faeiar foaon wkeia Bue (e ) # e fou 37 €, 31 S0 o e e i 21| e e g 3 e e 57 €, 9 s e el o e e o fera
el

@) MU MR

oo

o (el el - o ;. o o Al
far et foavott ar foriad wel o1 Breax ierivs and & smeR R qa fear mre:

7 Y BT IR

3B fowia dufear 3k | foaqe
daard

3B fowita Sufear sk | qRefia o e &1 adem e drem s
dgan & o 3 e
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TR BIoATs T [0S

g 3wl 3R fofat &1 3uaT

facirar faaRoT &1 TRt & e udem @1 g iR ol @1 g
B 3MaTIHAT BNl & S fawira faaxort or arrg 3R @ & sneies
sufeat iR aarRal @ smr 3R g @ IRT W Ef avga,
IRt 3R UdeiaRor o RAre of 78 ter o Ruffe aafer s SR
gTaa R &1 Tafy, I8 S aHA 9ot 3R St & Jee B
aTcH S OR 3TN &, 3 SRO3H 3R 3gAmT & ar # sifwifeadar
& oRuTREeT oo & Iad 2, o foau wiawr @ st
gRufedl a1 SHaIRAT §RT & ST atelt A # s wHrie o

ARIHAT BN & | IR Tad RO 3R SFAMT & ra 3iaR 337 3are
TEIHT ST & FoRY URom 31 a1 Hifad 81 31T 2 |

3A 3R iR gRomsl & FRAR smaR = FHieT & S 2
i o grefa fosr i sraftr & eate srgAmT # el 39 srafer o
T ST &, ST SrAm enferd fohe S &
ot it @ anp ok # foe e ol & ar # SHeRT e
N faciia faaRolt & argar ura 36w 3R eRomsit iR andaT
iffFafqanit & ar & STHERT & 3T 31 A, 2020 BT G0 a¥ @ fag
e HieTd TS & URUTHRERT AeeayuT o1 Rad 3w &, Fferaa
SrfeeT & enfia &
YT feit & = 3 3l T g aproT
P I3 UOF 16 B it Iufed, TI7 3R 3UHR0T & ded
Sfefad wufa & foe ot & smeR R gufa g 37i)
JUPROTS B H Gy DI B 1018 TRTHD AT R e T
TR & 3R U a3t S ufed T uRmST § usel & §5 ves
231 YT & Tl 8 U0 16 D T8 TR & |

i, Tae ot & w0 # Hufed, 7 3R TP BT I AT
BT 9T 3R 9T BT vga 3R 3N aval & S faRe @
To/aread ufewr & Iwamgs e & fov Faer dufa
@ w9 A B & 3R 9% fore @l & w9 H $2 e 40 & ded
gl

i, ¥ufed, Ao 3R JUdROT (G TR Atgd) 3k e wufa @
30T e & e gea @
aterr 7 31 Tme uTea R B Toie 3Tan siie= 31X srafere
e Taf¥e HROT SIRY ITART, 37T, Adia! It 3R &aa
R fqaR fearsmarg |
U g Ruffen aria & 31 & awvem a=dr 8, 3
STra 3iR Tufed wam 3R 3ud=or qen e ufa & aafie
Tog 3R TRadT & a1 3 Fufaa vu & qurtaid fosar smar
2l

iv. 3fada e erag
B § G facia dufaat sik drakat @ facira Raffér
Fegedt & fore 3fad gea s wmar ser & | oY ot ar dgar

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

@ 3 e T 3T T H, B TTAR-GE AN ST B
3TANT 3 GHAT I AT & 51T 3UcTeT & | STeT JraardT arer
$IYC JUART T &, BU Hed BT BR B (070 AR U B oo
freR® gRT#=AT 2|

RIS &1y e 3R 3= rdaiierd o

yAe Reifé safer s avant em & foe et fFefRa sy
@ foTe BUTT e TaaRY &7 3T Rl & | 1 Ay &
B &, ST URHUfcaral UR aTaRy af el 37afer af &3, g3maet
W e P Ryg R afia s

NEiCl

BT 3 SIeRT T Tl TieTe gam &=l 2, foer srga=
TITAT STTaT e 3R 370 fgaR & Rearor wfaae o & fore
FFH T ST & |

oS! 3T

giRaT & 7§ FerfRor Arsr (7 gea drs, v wfeaer
& e e af fowedl & 3MmeR W ST gRT 9k foar
ST & | <fes ot o af & fore afeersr o fere ameafaes o= o
90T BT 3T A § BT ST &, ST 3 a¥ B AT &R
B 3MER TR Ioa RBTS BRI 2 | ISR DY AT D Fw BT
ERT 3TN B ST AT &x1 3R TSR GRT SFFATGT
FRafad & BT 3T H SAYC YT Bl IRg/el-TRBere & T
¥ T Sar €, fornt a= afergfad & S

GISENIGR)

BT A G 3R 9T B ugpta ¥ g wu 3 dufcdt & foe
Udh geerenar 3R Fufwat & o uh ugceRy @ amar
fafrm ofdal & Tmeree wwsita ax fear g | ydem = g e
uREufeTal &F 3Tad w0 F gRaTe uee ot faa uee & v
¥ ifdd ox & fore §5 ved 17 st & ded any Nagidr &
I3y o ferar 21

DY

JmeneTd aR aRwufcdl B Iuddd aR g  fo A
& S 2 o T Twa & 6 o) drar ey 3uete 8 s
qgT g1 o1 3YANT fovar 1 e | entad v 3R uiasy &
I ATT AU & TR B MR R, g B Gufeqat o afer
feiRe o<y & fore wecaye! waerm fofa ot sagadsar grar
gl

& & goor &g o gemma o fufy = el & foe
1o TeparT 1T & o ve IR-faiier wufed &1+ & Tty & |

BT BT B B B 36a 2 3, TRHUfarall BT Fawy =
TR AT wR R R 39dIT & Ad6a! JaTe 300 a8 oif
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TR BIEaTgoTy [eTves

37 Hufearal a1 iRl & TR & Fdbe JdTe F BHIo! Taai
21T & 3 e 3T B el gfIe B T H AT STAT 2 |

xi. fawira sufe o @

U6 g Sufed & Bise d [T FHAT AT 579 U a1 37D
Iufcd & AT Hia=r & Tde JaTe W E-HR® THd ST
T 21 BT faatra uReufeaar W g &1 vgare & o
aféra gifsr Aiser &1 an d=ar & (@RI 3T Afderds A@e
aTE @ ara dl BT 3R BT GRTITe Barel Ty TahaT TaTe
(€0) B T B HH W)

xii.  3fad geate & foTe 3udmT & ST ge e
B B &R &1 M Ge fawira iRkeufeaar ik svafat &
3faa gt & A & fere fosar s &, 5 yafed d sare =
W aMenRa 81 & iR o8 9 aRad=T & e g |

xiii. 3T AD ST
MBS eIl HI AT §85 UEH 37 & UIGEHT,
e aant IR RS Tufad! @ el
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1t foras foe wufoe wdfa @, swar afer & &w &, ar i
T AT T AT A & A &1 B BT & B T F AT
ST & 3R @ g =i faa=or § vgarr s §1 afe gee o3 @
dRIE R T8 I g1t 31 AT el &, o ot au it
BT YT (T 311 & 3R Hafed Ffemii+a d=e ang e R

IR AR AT GaTs B T H TRBRT SIS AT 91 & 379 3Ferat
3eaT e AT € o5 U 37RT T e orat or ure SR 3R
TfeTs! T dF S| ST D FHer H AT of Teefa el &
qER ¢ 3 I3 R E

T T B faavoT # 31a &1 39 37aft & AR TATHH 3R R
AT ST &, f5 e gots e fed anTar & 9 ¥ ArOer Sy @
foraab feTe argar 3 Haiferd wrdt &F IR S & R a1 397 371
@ AR A fear sar g |

. et e

i.

o [d QO o =4
STCUIATT dHART T

eI HHART oTH BT TR TehaT ST e it Teh Tdl fera Srar ya
BT ST 2 | afe HHARY gRT U &1 ¢ et a1 & uRumasy
BT BT FAHA, BT AT PRI & AT YT BT T T TEr
ST & 3R @i @1 3R fovar ST &1 Sredties AT
T TG, T, UTTET, STeTIabTierd gecl do 3fe anfier & |

ISR P T1E &A1
R drer drsmm

RIS TR AT U AR & a6 &7 ary A1 g fod
e STeNT-31enT 3l ¥ Ffyad dnrer edr @ 3R 3 @ D
BT YA B B foT8 DTS BT a1 aMraed et gl giRenferg
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ANTEr A & fow e sdaiRal gRT Ue & S drelt
31afér & SR 397 3rafer o oy g & faaRoT § ey e T &
B H AT ST & |

rferafa 3R wiasy e & 3R drer & a3 g
OIS & SO H AT ST |

qiRHIa @ dree

roe RATT @ AT ASHR o AT & 37T Uh
QIR e AT & |

I AN T QIR AT ArSrsit & w9 7 7197 57 & 3R
IS Jae [T gRT STRT foem el & 3R ve fosar

ST & | BT H AR 1 o131t # F ey sraH o
i AT |

R ey AT & Fae ¥ B @ fHae it @ 1o
TS A5 B T STEHT-3IeRT TURT 6 ST &, 5 wanar
T 3R d 37ater # St wiawr @ @ or T T SFAM e
2 3R IR T Be iR Ao Hufcd & 3fad qea o gemas faar
ST |

FFHIT T i o AT SIgAIa $6Ts Hisc fafer &1 3uanT
TR U THIhe gRT ANID B F TUHT T ST & |

Faer wRwfya ey <o &1 gAgeaies foad aratas @9 @
&I, AT Sufeal (15T BT BISY) R arasiT 3R Tufed @fe org
€, 1T BT BISHR) BT THIGE 3T ATTH 3T (3NRN3TS) T TeobIcT
AT O &) | Foraet samst,saay3ma, Jar antd 3R ok ey
ATt ¥ Tafre s @ amr g e faaRor # Aarar a2

57 fepelt AT & T S8 aU ST & 3T 5Ta 18 AT d5H & STiaiT
& 1 et Jrar < <iaferd omy % ofRkomdy oRkad= a1 seidr = any
I BT A1 7§11 fIaRor % g ggar Sl €1 |wsitar 89 o)
BT TR o ArsmT e FIeR TR oy 3 81 BT Tea 2|

31T STH I cIch HHART e

HHART BUT BF 31T el B ded ary, Jar-iged Fafcser are
IR I REBR & 16 37T JHDD HHART A 8 & 3R
I ST Disc fafer BT UM TR v aRaTad Jedidd &
3METR R U 1 & I SIdTel oy a1 &l 39 3/afer § e @
gt faaRor 3 ggar S £ |

va. d@ieA Hiftat # ugd safy @ wEE, dwieT sIEE sk

qRac o1 yHE

3aty & ugel Afedl B qd ey & fore g AT @Y g
R e Ul & T e fovar Sar & foremt 3fe s arar e
T afe 3fe veer o T8 d sraftr I uger g% & ar ufcr, SarRat
3R $iaafeat & gmand 9y &1 yd 3raftr & uger yRgd dxAT e |

Tafera g, a8t uRkad=T aor 3rafer o et <adr/ ieaet o ufdr e
TN STa R H=Ial U7t & |

33 U0 & YOI YA B BRUT A AT § uRac fafee
REHHOTEIC JTeT & SFIHR 3R &1 al, §8 B0 ®I [HUeTe ST
2| s Amar #, erard ity § uRad gd-FRremor fee S &,

T ARE B TR BT AR THI I A & |

3. T I3 B dRIE B 1E §E IS

o T 1 TRIE B 1 &1 a1y geA 8l & o RAfe T arafer &
3 @ ara Al & 3R 39 aRIE &1 519 faaia faavolt & fFewe
Hee gRT sgHIed fear smarw | Rafénsmafa s aegsea10d
0 F gem3Tt & fofw gam o 78 facire faa=or  v=iy et &1
G AT g e Sar

. XIoT”d

151G BT TE AT U7 & b I ia & 1o anfele o soer &
foe warg 8 3R 1@ e fosar ST <&T & | Xierd @ A S
ToHarg |

[STa BT U1 T T T3 A1 TR & 3Ferd e TR I151%a AT
ST &, S oienfene ot @7 e # Taer &1 e & o e
B ¥ e aemar A & Fuer & w9 # 77 e & 3R JeRa
B faer g fepar ST &1

T 3R UR 3d®T B faeT & e

fafiia sik R 3dva @ fom! 3 Taa &1 w=aar & S
& 19 a1 T 47 SiTed 3R REBR AR [T ST & |
aT ¥, e miEERT gRT 99R 813 Ao 3MER TR 3R &
foTe 3eame wag i & s Siiew 3R RRaR wrHaRa 8 2 3R
I T B I5RG R TG S 2 1

BT IR e & 7, fag! & IR g ge SR v e
# Ioa e & @l &1 AN @l 81 d 96 8e 3R
ff¥aq aRaeT ge 901 Ua™ &=l & 11 IR d B T oI B
T&T 81 S & |

[T AET 3R ¥aT A BT Fae I fpar Srar e (1 Jams, 2017)

3T JdTeTATcHD Mo

TIOTN & dEd G ATIsT BT WRBR GRT HefRe Arer memt
# it TR A1 6T 1 $9Ye SiAar 7 aftd ghg/er-uemere &
PHRUT TEIARI/BH! BT TRBR GRT SR STRI F & JeTerarar
3FAM! & SR R AMT ST 8| af & SR, i 1 &1, & daer
ERSEIRIEEEE I ERA R

gTTad BRBied 3R e 36ar & fov afcas! IReR or
e ofed SR Afeas! ([Eaes) M & a0 2|

3= 3T

crateT 3gHH H aRRad= &1 yrg e 3R & fazor # enfaa

CITTET 371 3 ARG BT o g @1 TaaxkoT & Tgarr sidr & o =

JT A UEIHT ST &, Na e 9 Aufead 3R SRR B B HIAH ST B B Te18 RN fohar S 2 |
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afRen i emra R faaia Fufeadi & Faer & sarst 3ma gy fafer
T 3TN BB AT I & | THIE 157 aX° FE ex & S faairar
e B e o o fairg wofed o srver s wfasy
B e YA AT IHET BT aRad § Be o 2|

TR U&7 B UIeat or gee W el T8 Fufcaar o fow foswmr 3 amr
ST MR TR A= T 2 |

UEd W B gRT fohe T araf & Muer & e FMisataar o

IAd W ETar R W 2|

gfdBani/ddert & efared afd & v @l @ 39 fadf
I agen & fov SR amr Sar & otk o & e o
Tmfirdi/eral & Ame ¥ FArad S e |

3= o axfee axfeySpwi=T it & SR W fomer |

3. faceh gereas silk siaRor
TR AT ik AT

oFe @1 ARG R Briee et 3R fadel qe1 & ar facen qer
fafrrem & R e AR, faee et e e et ¥ &t foar
S|

AT & T

o o

o (aN NS J o o¢ o
TdGRMT HaTHITad dXJ AT PTUUD RUMCIT AT dI THITWT YR QT DI

S fomam ST 2 |

faet gaT R-Afed axgait o amma o forar s @ sk e
BT aRRE Rl e &1 3udnT fopar smar g |

Tfmg emwat e ugae

Atfe a¥gall & MIeR R e 89 aar SieR &1 3iaR ar AT
a3 BT =T ¥ 31eRT & T IR 3% YR e AT 0k &t T e
freer fawira faraxott # foa mar e, 337 3rafer 3 oy @ @i faazor
¥ AR I 2|

(G RS2

AR T H aFA 3R SRR R onfier &1 g8 @rv 9 g
fIaROT o FrIaT T & o U8 v AR Taio T & Iaftra g, arene)

$Tach ar 3IRM3TE # e I v & Fafta 2|

FAAT B

TR X F BR AT 3T A7 ¥ & fov ) A a7 it ar g
nufer o) ontiet & 3R fUeer af & dee & T o) a1 U B
AT TR H DI AT T & | ¢ AT U R AT T A
R DI AT YA ATTE BT dTe! DR T BT FaT 37287 ATTAN &
ST 3R & et staffadar o eofar g | s RafEr aRe =
sittfratia a7 gt wu 3 sifEfafia B a=T o1 T2 R AT
SATE | g PR Gufearal 3R S9eR ae a¥r 3ede arar 2|

srefiaaR

Tt RarfeT sk e 3eeeat & fov swim w0 & foe
Tufeqar 3R STeRAT & BT & a1 IRARN & Ia H Uga=1
ST e | g AR & forw wrrar 787 &

T I Hufeqd! ar SR @ TR e Har IR 3Ry 3iaR &
ST IR AT 8T & 3R oRaie T iR T & R A @ G gy
DI THITGT PRATE:

ETIE Bt 7 e I Hafer sremdt stk § Jwa uRada w
FriaoT 3 o Haw 2 3R u' Jua £ 6 ee. wiow #§ s
o= 76t &; T

ST B HUlcd! BT 3G B 811+, 3G B 3R 3G
TR ST HEIdT AN IR 7Y B fore AR une 2, I8 |Ha &
o wfasr # &= arg e 81 fowd ver 3w foar a1 adbar 21
yrd RAIET TR W Aufe B FHrer o S & 3R d@gar
ARSI B ST & |

T R ahe w® 7 vggm 0 wIfg ) dufaat o
U oo o ST & 3R Al Tt 8l & o 7w < g
& b wfaea ¥ o= dg oy 3uctesr 8T F5Tia wer 3ar 3uai fosam
STHBATE |

RIFE &R B = R &g A9 SO ¢, 5 RAféT aRE ®
siftfrafia ar vt wu 3 sftfafia & = & 3w &= ge
SRR 3feR W @ 8 o 3nfara 2|

i R Hufeadf 3R SrerRal daa axft sifee 2 & S €8
O 12 3Rt # g3 H eiRa @e et dr R fdar g |

. aeg

et uee

S, T 3R SUBRUTS UC ST BT BT EXATaRe &, Wl &
T S 3R o fact T & w0 § afifqyd &1 &1 Teear
Fufcd! o1 aRTHS T 3§ 36 3fad qea @ g v 3R =g
UeT YA & aHH Hed & aRTaR 9T 0 A1 Sar €1 IR
AT B aTE, Hufcaat B 39 Hofed R ) catd A1 & 3R
AT ST |

o uee @& ded fr T =gAaH ueer YA @ fact e 3R
THITSTATH BHI B Sra B aiel ST | ot 3afer & SRH I
31aftr @1 foe e safea faar S & @i <o & 2 R et
B R 3mafts R ar v |

Rea ersT

39T UcC B ded il Hufed @ MRTET Tee & W H
Fifed foar ST 81 3TRET U & dgd o meaTe e me
YA/ 3T IR TR @9 G 811 {9aRor # ggamy s & 319
% [ 59 RE B YIAFRNG! DI SUTET FHRT FETTHIT BT
&gt wx @ fore o 8 T e & ik s germsifer
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we Bidaea fafies

A ¥ gfa @ fore 2 1 uTe oot UTeiTet ged & 31ary & kT el
TCCT 3T U 37T 37T 0T 1Tl 21

. uRere = SRt

5 U0 108 URATeH IHT & 3R, ITHET DI STHORT BRA B
fore ygaa uRane e B ST & Tae gRT YA dF STl
RS RUITETS MR R Iwie # e mafed = 3R 376
eE BT 3MEHeH B B TeT¢ TEdHT ST & |

Fdwrd Hed 3 qUT WY | B & I Hale T ot ar
RS €8 ve 108 @ 3iaid ¢ | siaRka Raifé sgeeat &
fore 3uinT fepe e Adaw veel= qedfe 3urh & dde # fashaa
Arda g

RTHT JGRI T Hed o o 3T 811 & TR W febaT o & 31K
T foraRoT # @1 AT 1 & 7 CRTIIR AT ST & |

3. JIEUH (FHTUR! 9 P ITeTdN), P S 29T 3R e A
P

U YTGIT e UEl=IT 7T & S1d U1 & Uy fueset ordf & uRuTmaay
A e 81aT & 3R a7 Tva & o5 et o aRkom afaa @r
T & o7 3Maeads an 3iR fowe dde # 3/gHH aT T o 96 |
A & W0 H AT 9T 13T R T aafEr s sia o adam afaa ar
3MaTTSH 3 BT M & | Afe 41 & Hear &1 wora e e 3 2,
AN TaE Wi & TH JATE Y G s e f S & | ge
T @ & =9 8 AT U & | 3ned wiiwr @ aRaem e @ fow
ger el fhar ST g |

7, i IR 3

BT 3T AT 9ERT & fere oty SR (9w s1er g sk e
DIF UG BIA 2|

YT $ATT & 0T foaia a¥ & SR I A IRRT B
R SIS T ERTH U B THT SRR DI el G &1 ]

TS R, 310 IR B Teiw FHN TSI B Sl 2

ST BT TOFT =T IR BT MR 3T T b 71t
&, 37T U SroR e TS @ o oM @ e & 3R A SRt
T iR 3T T ITORT r 3T e 3 FH ST B S
21 fowiir ay & S[Rard & AT AT SIRT ST A= RIeRT #
uRRaffa oo sTrar & ar afe are # fad 2Rt & gear of aria
BAGEISIGIE]

R, FHTEIROT GRS

TR AT AT D A & T5! TRfd SUT & Ja2i= 0t BT do™
2q UPCIHRUT ol TRET it & | V=T 31T 3T 3 T STATIROT Hat
@ T H G fodT 3T & 3R Jag9aR, fwira faaxolt & ey
Tewmforat % e fosar s 2|

T A5e yare faavor

oo

e gate fqaRuT® 58 ved 7 faaxur & dea iR s fafer s
IR IR foar ST |

smcer Taftr o1 30T aRS e YaTe df gaT &f o &, foresy
sraftr & fore @ (&1t) IR-yare uafa & o & g, for
Tewmxer o feer a7 wiasy &1 uRare Aae witedt ar g & 3ma
IR e & 32 s ar g & foe gt fear srar g | o &

fUeer gemsit F 3= 8 aren wHifad afua 89 W 3dad
eIt o1 g fsar s &, forat sifaa daa v a1 sifeds
FYaa wfawr &1 ueBT & g a1 IR-geT gR gite & S,
T RE T B & o701 7 a1 359 @i & SR Tet drar
3R fUregett BesiT I 3w e & STel I Aa el ¢ fob <rey
BT RO a1 BT YT B Te10 LI S AT AT BT A
EEEEIRIIATIE]

i Gufea durfad € 5 freer geamit & a9 8 € 3k
e s BacT vh a1 3ifee s wiasy o gest &
geAT a7 1R-GeAT gRT YT & U, G2 Ok 3 18 @ =aa07
TeT &1 SNHTHD FGufed BT HIaT Tal &l ST & | 31 e Fufeet
J 3T 1 BT IaTE THT & |

JRATGeM-T7 JRIE R I8 36 aaaTRar 3R 3 RAd
Fufee oY e 3 ST & |

h. TPe 3R TP THDHE

e 3R THE THBET H DD TBE UGl B g=T
T B 3T ABS 2N, TTHM 37X STeabIferds oo @rdr
e ST & | ST 3 1 HEI a1 I B b T TRuaddr
Adrel

rared, e 3R e arsor nfataterar I e yarg srear T |
27 @) A
1 uee fo=ran smaad ot el gomedt

$E 0T ® d8d, UgeT o] gig S o A gl o foe gl ke
I HROTTE &3 T TR B 36T B SR Sl fepar s & | oy

T UgCeR 3R ugearar A af & ¥ fafi valt & wrruee

1t TS ¥ aiacT feva & iR @ veer A gfg arr & S daer =
HHI GO T & BROTTET 81 & | 3 TRE B 3G FaTed uee
Tt Y ST I S 7, 3 o e 3R e b favaor 3 e e
3 3R a1E 7 wHTaT & o1 et TS HHA0T S ARG W §H yHIE

@ ARTER 2

2 TS 4FA/ATSIR TS &R faaira R 3R SaRT

{5 0T & a8, 511 3R I &1 3fud Hed W & HRAT 81| TR,
PO = 37 e AIRIRET ST 9T b1 & 3R v ot S gar
Br | HHARY 37 3R & T YRaT S B AT H O B e 3R
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TR BIoATs T [0S

3Faa gea & ara @1 3ieR, wHaer s SHAR! an 3R s fRre &
@ & WY W UgAT 1 & 3R 3rimee o g raftr i uRkenfaa
Toa e & | STt R ST S A 7, $ ke B 3R B A yre
TS TG T A1 & 3R vee o sty e g e S wUH wear
T & | SURTerT 3t Yo @ HHeT W 31 15T 313/ @ 60 7 &t (6T
ST &, i <aftre uReiufe doar as sraftr 3 siftre drar |

3 ¥Rar e fafies s fSarere foe sfaad SR faerarsia
i

35 0T 109 & 3ER, T 1 HRA uree fafies 7 smaifad
gferact SR e 81t (epdiceer) Faer & Area 3 3fd e
@ WU H W M gfracT IRy A e ey ArE 3R degaR uR i
AR R a1/ i e fore fiier & | uted ey / @1 ) & faaxor
&1 o g i+ fgeror 7 fgae ferar mar € |

28 foceht gaT IaR-TEd HTUHE

o iR g+ faaror # fafrma ax sfae/@Tee) o fer
29 yraeHl, e Rue Huferat 3R eRAs aeRal § due
EGGIEC)
aR e o
ad & AR S
af & SRF ST B STl IhA
Y & SR 3o7e/ A
sifemem
. ST A #, 37l v ad & R 3T el b afgatE sufda R

4 3aRTT Yo T gARERoT
BUA T TSR ¥ A T8 Y = i wdm & A 7 yer e
T 3rafeTe g a1 O 3 7 forar & 3R g9 aje @ EeROT R
I 2T 3G OR ¢4 G B H Heag A & o0 # ferar rar 21

5 SHIRI feday

figer sheedr 3iik g8 oo aF1 & d&d, dU ¥ 370 44 AR
QiR fedemy @1 Shifhe sraR W Ararar| frger sieed &
e, TR 3R e iy afed QX e, e stk @i as faa=ordy
fea o e T e | §5 vos & dgd gy (ST e 3R
i+ Sufed o AT S THTa B eNiHe dxr gY, Fae wiRenfia @
ST R fae sarst & enfiet AT &1 Brsax e Rt
TR AR ) BT 3T STID 317§ AIATE TS & |

( =)

31 AT 2020 ) T G 31 A7) 2019 ) FATGT a8
? forw o foe

0.01 (1.97)

1.01 1.01

1.01 1.01

a... fuger at  acw sraftr 31 Wa i TTaert B et fobe T STgAR & 3 cT o ST & | UR STaeT b1 A1 3 foTE SR a1 37 aert AIaait iR 37 Tt ¥ oncid
2 3R 3 e 3T foeirr ad ¥ qee et 1 3 JTaeT 1 g fope 0 SR SR ST & W FIa 1 TR 6 B ot O & fore 9 SR 21

30 T wre iR srfcRea goit @) wua

vl 3k smanfera gt &1 g @ua
waaeh

3TRUCTEAST / et

=
BT (%)

R #v=4)

31 91 2020 Y w1 9 31 97 2019 ) T I

? foe oo

781.03 780.51

3.26 2.19

84 784.29 94 782.70
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7| e ot s

3

32

33

TR 3T
®TT (%)

AT P AP D o
P ATt
e 3R It

fretgmd =
g 3R afeT

T (AR, TIST, TR 31

Tafera uref yadiaor
& yega 1 F1ie @uadh):
eger g ye e e
A g TRAUH
e
EIRIGESEIGRS
S ArgwTe qToR ERaelr
S BRSE TEAT Farr
A IaF TER
A & T
RS eI o
Sy @ gRefrERoT

Fo I
ERERNETIN

34.89 13.30

47.46 14.37

65.68 21.44

16 148.03 6 49.11
100 932.32 100 831.81
12 3.84 20 2.41
88 27.98 80 9.93
100 31.82 100 12.34
31.18 115.15

4.05 5.2

35.23 120.35

0.12 0.03

0.12 0.03
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THETEE gRT IS fId SHaRI a4 3T

THUHEE SHART THE 3TIE 8 Sl BT Ao g3

THUOUS HHTART 31ftafiar drsHr o

WHR B frramorswem
TE B! TP AT o1 & U (10w & Tt R & gt GRT 20R TSI U 311 & | $R 1T U0 24 & 31 aa 25 3R 26 B
IR, T st IR IRGR BT -F0T 1T &, AT Heaqu! THIE 811 ¢, AT RUMET 5678 3R 37 =1 31 Aaterd et & a3 7T
ST & | U = TRBRT W e TRemsi & o0 $3<¢ 197 0 24 B 31 25 311R 26 & T8 U g A @ & 3R faada faazol # i

g
&) TgEuse il ® arraeT
) TG YEe Sl ® Jaast
(X =)
TR 31,2020 g @Y 7Tl 31, 2018 9 @Y
TR T
STCUDITeTD HHAR TTH 0.81 0.79
SR & die TR emeT 0.18 0.15
HamasT sruReifa -
31T ST ITceid oy - -
0.99 0.94
) g IS Sl B JeTar s uiet A
R s )
AR o FHTT R
TR 31,2020 g @ AR 31,2019 T8 @Y
JaftawR TR 9rf31,202096 9 31,2019 O
e 3R st @ fore wdie sk geram
s g iferam sRUR e fafics - 806.14 1.21 99.65
$Teom sifac pRUReH fofies 907.36 360.63 68.51 58.31
A R FI5H)
2019-20 2018-19
THEEE SHART ANTe dfgwr it owe 5.83 5.67
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34 oo 3usxor - 3t Jea yadta=or

gge = gediad (o & o fawig uRefufr, 70T, 9oe 3R Foe Trmer S facira aRsufaat 3R 3R 3R fawia aaarar, faaia
faRot # AT T DR & 398 3Fard Gt o1 SR e & | Ffdare 2Rt # e & e #, S0 v URIaR Hegar af Jarsit

BT o JoraT & 3R Frerer geaie fesar |
e 31, 2020 e S Y
ferazor 3yt @ ﬁg aﬁ?ﬁ]srarég;m G 3@3‘;‘@ ﬁ?%ﬁ;%@m{w
u. fawita wufeat =
faer 282.50 28250 ww3 fory e &
0T 7.07 7.07| @mE
IR et 50.87 50.87| @mHLTE
e 3R Tha e 133.31 133.31| m e
I IS AT 556.32 556.32 @ Er
. faetra doamait
IR 1,800.77 1,800.77| @ TEr
IR < 115.88 115.88| emTEr
3T T S 139.80 139.80| @mrEl
e 31, 2019 mmaﬁmm P SIS
fora=or srpd e | Areom 3fua mjgf i Lyl A ﬁ‘%ﬂ‘i""
e Tca
©. faira wufeat
Fger 197.91 197.91 T3 oy e o
%01 0.91 0.91| am&
R it 27.21 2721| e
e 3R o awer 36.82 36.82| amrEr
3T §5 A 815.55 815.55| myer
. fara doamd
3IR 1,651.59 1,651.59| emy=et
IR < 276.97 276.97| et
3= T o 125.56 125.56| @l
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®R 3 B 31Ef 3R Tgra (€ aE3)
faRor aref 31, 2020 T 31, 2019
AR e ) 3R e 197.91 148.94
SIS - e 81T FaaRoT # Har U Hew 37ers 84.59 48.97

geT? - @ g1f faaRor & AT ure gea st

3ifem 3faa gear 282.50 197.91

wRei dierer fafits 1R sgga IRl 4 Faw s sfua qeoie- o foe suai ot 5T arell geaio- aeile 3R Aewye $19e
TR & o RS O a1 BT ITANT B B! = FTaRad & ad-d! BT TN dxd ae & 3Fad Jed &f AT & &

i) oo wufea qea @aed) wgfa
S UG & 8, THEd! I YT R @ (078 HURT Dl qef Tex] Sal<a! B del Hufeadl I e ST & | I edd 00 3, YT df 5 gair
3R HER BT AT 7 TAEar UTea =T & FeTe 0T 3T ST & | BT = 31T IR e R qHT Hufeard! 3R aearRal drev &1 Ifer 2R
3Faa e uma B3 & T eevaT ardra $iaact Rt o der w3 fawfor 2

i) GEFIBUN SR @eien) vsfa
TRATTH Fgfaer ATdaTe U I SRIGR ATl BU! B el T 3TN T STANT BT & 3R I 3T BT BUA! & 7o IR AR BRAT & | e el
3T 37T AR R e d B facira Heel= 3 g Jea & w0 H aad BRal & | AIIeH faerauT &7 0 Y 619 I8 & b Ugidl i areiRk
T e TR SMENRA & | TN ST Hed BT 31T AR IR Fa ¥ Yedl i Hicas 3 ¥ S S & a1 SToTRT BT G §a ddb ag2iet HHT ST
gl

"B B T T [AReTI0T & TOTE, 3R T I AT (b Lae of  ulldg R DUMA! & T TSR H (95! B FHaet B &g ITANT
frarmar g I af & SR geaie drien fafer R smenRa 21

35 uee
R E ISR
U UGCaR® waH

av & SR Y foar T veer foxmar R 0.96 aRIE (e a¥ % 0.74 aR19) 1 §¢ s Ed # foRie & dgd aitrd fear mar €
Frfeiad sl 3 s & foe ¢ wiaw &1 veer fa=mne:

& w=)
fera=or e 31, 2020 el 31,2019
UF Y B 0.99 0.88
U 3 Ui 9y & drd 1.41 240
R G
an ueer daf & w9 H

JrariTeeT o1 & 18 R T & aRaTer ee IR ' Tesran ' U= 3 7 371 31  Tosv1e & e enfHe fosam man & | uees srafer & foe et afaer
e fjTe yTe &1 faaror o TR &
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3B B AT 37 & SR gee foxmarune faaRor e e 2

(¥ wz¥)
fera=or el 31, 2020 aref 31,2019
U a8 q B9 1.08 0.98
P U9y & &g 5.16 478
T Ay F s 5.58 7.03
Tufed o1 faaRor IR fopar mar
Tufed o faavor uee W fearmar uee B 3rafer UGS BT TR
Pyt e - wer = e e we fafies 01.08.2008 ¥ 20 I 8% TSEATE Hea 3R EXay 8% %
514 39k, fastaarer £afirar 3ta smife ursde fafies 53§ Y TN 5%, 98
s6. fififa sik R 2q fHe T e 5t LT
uref 31, 2020 uref 31,2019
gfemoT eHer gfemoTeHer
(@) Tt erHae:
NN 3,46,500 3,46,500
ofen 486,750 486,750
NN 8,40,000 8,40,000
N 400 400
a7l 31, 2020 AT 31, 2019
(@)3rE:
- 211,498 229,774
P 345,150 394,300
o 171717 65,000 25,160
- 47 150
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Al 31, 2020 uref 31,2019
afEmor 9 gfRmmor Lo
el 7 e 4
& TR § i ot @l
1,45,67,691 1,34,72,27
o ,45,67,69 ,34,72.273
2,808 90,17,287 905 35,94,972
ﬁis § i) b ) b b
12,041 3,21,47,282 8,088 2,11,02,914
e prre
5,57,32,260 3,81,70,159
a7l 31, 2020 T 31, 2019
gfmor RG] qfwmor A
el e
@ e foept:
fffasae
23,764 | 1,75,73,02,757 4197 2.1 1
P 3,23,764 | 1,75,73,02,75 ,19,766 | 2,19,98,96,135
65,517 | 1,53,12,93,440 27,430 | 58,67,04,270
TS 17-17-17
8,797 2,69,58,244
HIFT-3TS -3TaTSS*
46 14,41,608 150 46,65,730
ﬁa_ i b ) b b
ST T 3RS
2,22 17 1,95,43,2
ﬁw y 73510 ,95, 3, 85
2,808 1,28,29,744 905 46,22,001
B 38 : ,28,29, 22,
12,041 2,74,08,418 8,088 1,75,65,836
e e
3,35,25,10,984 2,85,99,55,501
* 30 3AE
AT 31, 2020 aref 31, 2019
gfwmor P feror RG |
T e
(§) IP:
() IR 1P @I
©® ¥qisaE
S 446 24,229,022 25,821 35,74,66,367
S 174747 1,314 3,28,25,522 3,599 8,11,59,463
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@) P TR

ffifa e

St

2,848

11,94,09,150

4,152

16,76,07,811

- A

487

1,50,67,735

935

2,51,55,249

(i) TS

(® Q0T 3eE

e 3ame

A g

11,247

28,33,74,222

446

24,29,022

TS 17-17-17

719

1,77,711,737

1,314

3,28,25,522

BERCEGH

14,730

() St 35X BRI g o

e 3ame

St

8,431

35,69,94,423

2,848

11,94,09,150

ke

10,504

29,76,94,078

487

1,50,67,735

) T g

A g

568

357

TS 17-17-17

78

16

T 20-20-0-13

37 oHaR! gfyen
(i) rf~T gfaemd

o

U.3FEE

BT = FrfcTiaa glaer a1 SRt fear € i) 3R, i) Jar Mg e Fafdear e, i ganasT srguiefa 3k v) Jar R

ITIEH B T AT ATatT & oy But R fare e T s 21 fareer drwor ferdt # FrefRa we @ difes woe tywas = foa

TS0T ST OR STenRa & | fae araeT & fore srent wu 3 freafRa dmifeT qedie & smaR w o drva arsmr o s 21
w7 FeafRa fear 7 fo aiRkmfya e demn @ Fomt sk ot & sER, SR Aifafés saeadmant & saR, wiow # dnes #

EFTATIRT AT BT T ATH Hed AT Hufed & Gt 3rad Jed ® AT HH a1 & 3R JdHH adral & ot Jed 3 d 761 ¢
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&t e aiReanfyye emey @uf) / ot  sar Tga

e
T TRE B TRHIA ATH Y& B DI AN a9 & 37 # e T aRafad qeaid @ SrAIT gie Hise aRid Bl TN e HefRd
DI ST & 3R 3 WRATT Siva AT e g=T e 7T i & Areemy & gentad foar Sar & | I8 qiReia oTd AsiT BT df AU dIeid
Shiaw, a1 e, srer shian iR aerR (Fraen) shiew s arafad siRant & foe 3R &al 81 yads sHary fos ofa e ar

I 3HE B TR AATIEH &1 &, FaTd Tdd qof a8 & fe1e 15 Fea a9 (15/26 * i et 37 3R 7T 7l R 3FEH BT 8bar
&, 31 T aiferaftyar, 3R, Fifta, SramiaT ar Hid TR % 0.20 FRIS MU STIhad THT ® ST & | Jel g3 SeIbad AT iR [aaR $Rl ge

BU F ITE ATH BT IRATID e el [T |

3o gfyemd

oo

Y BT g IR, Fa-afea @ a1g Tafcsed e, Famaar o srurefd

e &g Ye f&ar Sirar & | & g s+ aremm & |

3R I RIBRI R &A@ & e srganta gie Hise aRiar &

aifRenfe e arfae A aufa s ged | e oRafya e @l
ool
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
3R
1 3e -9 49.19 44.94 16.77 20.61 3242 24.33
iR af & enfaer
1.87 1. - 1.87 1.
S 8 86 8 86
3.16 3.20 - 3.16 3.20
ST T
1.11 1.36 (1.11) (1.36)
ST 37T
4.62 5.24 4.62 5.24
e wed| G2  @4e)| (624
o 4.04 0.04 (4.04) (0.04)
aifiang 9 wnfe
U U S S 1.15 4.43 0.14 - 1.01 4.43
319l -9y 50.75 49.19 17.44 16.77 33.31 32.42
aifsfa gedt Tmdia<or
1 3de - 9w 13.13 14.45 - 13.13 14.45
A sk afr & nfe
S — 0.96 0.55 - 0.96 0.55
0.77 1.06 - 0.77 1.06
ST T
ST 3T ’
1.93 0.86 - 1.93 0.86
N (19|  (08) (199 (080
e o e
e o e st s 3.62 (2.07) - 3.62 (2.07)
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iRy ey arfare AUt et g | Faa uRfya ey &t
S
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
319/ -99 16.55 13.13 16.55 1313
Jarfgfas s fafecamam
13 -9w 1.51 1.39 - 1.51 1.39
v sk e d enfie
0.05 0.02 - 0.05 0.02
EIGSEIRING]
0.10 0.11 - 0.10 0.11
ST AN
ST 3T i
AT A T e ’
aiftang § el
e o ey ST 0.59 (0.01) - 0.59 (0.01)
319/ -99 2.25 1.51 2.25 1.51
AT RHR
1 3de - 9w 0.31 0.33 - 0.31 0.33
A sk d wnfie
0.04 0.03 - 0.04 0.03
EIGEEIGIEG]
0.02 0.02 - 0.02 0.02
ST AN
ST 3T i
T A T e ’
aiftang 9 e
S e st 0.03 (0.07) - 0.03 (0.07)
319/ -99 0.40 0.31 0.40 0.31
317M1,2020 | 31,2019
srrfafafee:
Foyaer oty oy Soar
- FgeT 33.31 3242
- 31T GET ABAIBRUT 16.55 1313
- Jargfea & are fafdsear arr 2.25 1.51
'_\%‘TW 0.40 0.31
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1) ST Hufed
frr=fafRaa ® otsmr Sufeaar snfie
317712020 | 319M,2019
<Fradh yhngf 30% 30%
SN 70% 70%
1) ARATD STAM
RafETaRE & FHg 3e™ dIoMT & foTe T SrgHf-d Arar e geR &
3177,2020 | 31,2019
0, 0,
ot g 6.74% 7.50%
0, 0,
s A S SV S 6.74% 8.00%
0, 0,
oS e g 5.00% 6.00%
IALM (2012- }
g X 14)U LIC 94-96 =
RafEnarkia @ wwa s aiRwfa disnst @ fore wize srpwfsa s Fra rer @
Ff5ta ged Tadiazor Jagia s o= fafscaamw AT RITHR
3177, 2020 | 31,2019 | 319w, 2020 | 319wf,2019 | 319w, 2020 | 319w, 2019
TG & (rar Fgfea & veen) It TS TTATH 3MSTeTeH JSTTTH JSTCATH TS TTATH
(2012-14) | (2006-08)F |  (2012-14)F |  (2006-08)F |  (2012-14)F |  (2006-08) T
TP R Farffa s awr) RIGE] QGG S TEeTeH I Rjuergley GGG R el
(2012-14)7 | (2006-08) T,
e 6.36% 7.56% 6.36% 7.56% 6.36% 7.56%
- 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89%

qRTad Hed et H AT ST AT Iai g b 3, FERWITT, AR, Tarafa 3R 3rr Hafird SRoT SRy AR aTeiR # gl ik A e | g8
37T, DrsmT AR Ul R 3fard RET o SR W faar fesar Siar 2, 9re0 w0 3 dremr Hufcrat & SRamT, aRufed Ta e B Jeai a ol e
IR drst wufc 3 feriiie R 3 fear st e |
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1) FaeTeherr fages=

Rl arkg # 3 va yifiies Sgaml R 3fad w0 & Fifad aRad, 30 HROT & FRaR 3@ ge, F=aR it gr fHeiRa o afia
P yHIfad fosam gnm.

31 9, 2020 319w, 2019
% ue Ers ue

3FE
R e (- 100818 48.68 53.01 47.15 51.42

52.19 49.27 50.69 47.61
fa af g afig ( +/- 100 dT)

50.76 50.76 49.20 4493
TG T (+/-10%)

50.91 50.59 49.30 49.07
MHEE T (+/- 100 AN
A3t gedt Fadia<or

15.54 17.68 12.52 13.80
RAradr & (+/- 100 1Y)

17.63 15.57 13.54 12.73
ufa af g afig ( +/- 100 dT)

16.55 16.55 13.13 13.13
TG T (+/-10%)

16.53 16.58 13.14 13.11
MY T ( +/- 100 AT
Yartgfa s e Rifsaaram

219 2.32 1.42 1.60
RAradr & (+/- 100 1Y)
uferad daafi (+/- 100 dn) i

2.25 2.25 1.51 1.51
TG T (+/-10%)

2.27 2.23 1.49 1.53
MBI eI ( +/- 100 AT
YA RTBR

0.38 0.41 0.30 0.33
Ramady &% (+/- 100 ST
uferad daTafig (+/- 100 ) i

0.40 0.40 0.32 0.32
TG X (+/-10%)

0.40 0.39 0.32 0.31
MBI T ( +/- 100 Aran)

gTeTifep, DTS & Sfata 3MTEra aar yarg & ot foaRor ot faavor w78} feram siar &, seif e eRuTsH ot HaaTeirerd &1 A JaT o & |

SRIFT AT [GReTTuT BT TP RId B IR R FaiRa fvar mar & 5 Rerfém smafér & i # 8 arer #ecayet aRomstt # 3fad aRkad=i
P B F TR et aTfied 0= 591a o et € | g faeeror aiiRenfyd e aifiredt  ardfads ke s afafafr wg & wodr & wifes ag
|FHET e & o aRO # uRacd ud- 3R & SrenTa # &N 7l fh | TRONS & I8 Hae & I & |
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Hiawr & aut # qReid e st 3 srfer aRuadmd fagersor IFIEH
e I8 A FH 128 &= 2-5P g o AT Gl
siftrs

31 e, 2020

7.32 4.81 17.06 21.56 50.75

2. 1.2 A . 16.
JUSTREA 05 8 5.16 8.06 6.55

~ o e 0.29 0.18 0.59 1.19 2.25

—ﬂdll"iqlma%a'laldld)&'ﬂlm

.07 .04 14 A 4
. 0.0 0.0 0 0.15 0.40
T 9.73 6.31 22.95 30.96 69.95

S as A A 128 &= 25 a LEKIGE:] Gy
sftre

31 A, 2018

7.73 5.13 13.79 22.54 49.19
- e

24 1.1 g 1 13.1
- 3o BEeT TBaIdRU] ° 6 379 513 313

~ o e 0.17 0.14 0.36 0.84 1.51

—ﬂdll"iqlma%a'laldld)&'ﬂlm

0.01 0.02 0.03 0.25 0.31
- AT RIBR
EGl 10.36 6.45 17.97 29.36 64.14

31 AT 2020 BT TH aY & foe AR & d1e @ Araim3it § sufard ame=E 6.71 &I8
are srafer & sia # e ey arsrr et & st 3rafer 10 9 (31 AT 2019: 10 a9)

a9 & 3fa # Jar frigfca & are Fafdear am, gamast b sguRafd 3R a1 (BRI R el & e arafas qeaid & SrgHid gi-e Hise
RIBT BT YA TR T& [T ST |
(i) TRt e dsEn
ufesg fftr ik srftraffar o
ufger ffér v FrefRa arrem disr & TRy Sot & 9g SHarT are I a3 & 8dhaR 8, foras dHart 3R sor et et &
o & Tfde ufaera w mive armer ¢ € | U gRTANeH v & w0 H wniya wfas fftr # fow s €| wewdt &7 gxe grr aifva

3R ST ITeT X Bra TRBR GRT AT STaT Bl Tia e ax I 318 & 3R 5 W W TS H 81 & 3R s 557 wienfya =g & arm
Sarg |

B B U ITeAar A 2| 3itrafiar drer & dde § BU dr AT e ST R gRT ST T8 qiREIid @ s o 3R
A TR R BT gRT gb1E e Fi¥aa ary e & fafia 2, fory siftnrgor o em/ert faaor w e s 21
9 & SR wfaer iy iR siftrafiar i o Friiea @ anem @ Gderd @< o1 18 Faa i saer I35.83a0s (sarad T567703)
3R %6.71 A5 (Ueer av R 6.75F08) B

38 Y3t gae
B B YN IO B 350 ® 1T, G # sfaract 4o 3R 3 et orRa et 81 SO T Yol U 3aST el Y A &
HTEH 3 37 3 I T ST P dyeT AIRURE ATTRAT BT A BRAT & 51T [aebIRT BT T e & |
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HUAT AT YoiT TREAT BT FeT PRl & 3R 3P Referdf # gaena 3R fawia Iwsidl & sravadarstt & qHRiee a=arl 8| ol
R BT T G T FHRANSTT B & 78, BT LIRERD] DT AT AT FHRANST B Aebell &, IR BT Gl a7 T
FH! & AT T W SR B Abell & | BT G371 IR FoR I & 31T ded Gt 311 e 701 gRT fawiford et o1 8| sumr # Faer #or,
ST 3R 0T TUT TR HH T AR SFedapilcied ST SMHeT 2 |

H1-9R ST SN
3197, 2020 3197, 2019
T 1,800.77 1,651.59
e Joa iR do 9y 133.31 36.82
g =T 1,667.46 1,614.76
Fer s (630.89) (575.27)
a6 %01 3 et et ad Pl U ) )

39 fasosiRanusem

IR & ARM, HU B it SREAT  37ad FRIH & 3 Ho1 & 2R 3R akane / o e w qwg y41e g1 w59
TSR ShiEw [T Siiew, &t & e 3iR $faact 1ea shiaa Jfeq) Bfee e sik A@ar shiew anfie 21

feeTd Hee 5 Sianl & I e & foTe SRaH e o 3R MicrT b THvar 3R srgHIes dxar & SiR Fiiad afiae TH1a BT & BT
AR AH S feTe 97t =T & feTe Hefer gRT 3BTE T8 3udar Bl IR ok G & |

THY ShREw yeem g 3R Aifaar & sz, Y R & Ja ge dxar @, Sieat o A 3k oRem I eaRmeR @ faeewor &
ez 3 FRA FRaAT g |

3R, AR T 3R 3 faira et s o arefire i 3anRar iR $iaae! IR, R Tiitda, 20T, e 31X The THer 3k
o o L e el L e
3= foatra Tufed # Fraer i 2|

HOT ST

IR YT
Biee SIRIH BT b YTiadi TR SRaw b Fefiia Bdr & f5ae aRumasy faaia g & Gbdr 2| 31 71, 2020 3 481.88 (31 A,
2019 ¥ 706,52 ARIS &)

MR Fufcad! G T 3 IRA IRER 3 3R AfSTer 3 amaiRes 3axat o faas! I SRt / 370 TTedt & 1w Afesy el & | 70T
Sifaw, shikem thfse wdigia @ aream I faa fear s eeT €, ®fse Srar =nfia o W gt & thise draar = FREr R 5 & @ifes
AT & AT WA F BIST B AR & ST | DT B AW § i 3rafer 30 3 60 fet & dra g 2 iR g1 R o1 gre amer
T TR
e $fadt ot # frder
R drerer fafies & smfima $irach 2Rt # S a1 vd & e | Su e grr Reet= 3 8 aretr fossh f s ot amvem
T et & 3R gafee B8 e T veam i 2 |

0T iR A

B RATIAT AT TS T SR TR 370 BHATRAT P AR 3R 37T 0T G B & | BT g g TR [eheelt 7 aelt & A
FHHARAT BT U F0T & T 3107 B STEH BT Ude Har 2
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dol & T 9e 3R THe Twer 3R I

e 3R § 9 W Biee shiaw Hifta € e Hufarar 3o sise ax ar 8@ & | T I R SHEw g 77 ST & |

Ay &1 1 T SufeaT &7 AR

TIPS H
faha gufe B gy
31 97ef, 2020 31 9ef, 2019
282.50 197.91
Fyaer
7.07 0.91
0T
50.87 27.21
IR YT
133.31 82
b 3R The THBE 333 368
32 15.
S SIS 556.3 815.55
Gl 1030.07 1,078.40
nfaasfseai~s fae yaam

T Sufeaat firas foe aif e srifara Sfee e 1 3 a3 AT star 21

HUA TR IRER 3R B SIRT DU & T ¢ | UITeIRID 09 I TP BT SAGH 0T AT YT & | ST 37T, TGG BT A & (6 Lferaiies
YT FTER 3R TTEe HIST STEH B T fa2ersor & SMER R 60 T&HT I s B aste 3 aifted I 43T aRE & vhArd &t 1 g9fere,

yitaqa & Gaer i RafErsaftrs SRM oI @iy ugam 1at 2|
(il) IR 9T FT fgaiv o1 safrsa g

AT D BTH, BT STERY B 3707 A B Bl Tageie el & e fgaxor I fear mar g |

IR YA} B HF & dof 37arT & fagers= o fgr e &

TP H
3rafy Jrafy
3197, 2020 3197, 2019
6 S o 37.57 15.99
6 Afe I 31t
azaﬂqm 37.57 15.99
e fafr shiRaw

TeT [+ SREw I e &1 36030 I8 & o Taled It [T ar a1e a1 3iR I8 givaa foar se i amaeaddl & iR Miér suam & foe

I & | HUAT TR JATFHM 3R TRATID Fha TaTE Bl MR RS Aba Hisc UGB 3R 3HdRd IR Jfesit f #rea 3 e e
SREH BT e SRl & | B b B g ST H 319 siftrery iy ot Fraer kel & S aroiR Shfemr I gaaw .
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facia g aRuaaar

Hf e el YaTe @ 3R W IR-Goo fawira eadnsii @ Hfaerde uRuaadr (HRd IR 0T ® JF # Jered 3R &) FueR 2

IFisH
31 AT, 2020 Hifgeres THdl yaE
focia o ot Wi augaar | foree WIHH | 12@da | 23D | 35F AT | GHHAN Gy
R il s
1,227.03 | 1,175.74 26.04 16.35 8.90 1,227.03
HRA TRBR FIT
115. 115. 115.88
. 5.88 5.88
124.25 124.25 124.25
3 facira e
G| 1,467.15 | 1,415.86 26.04 16.35 8.90 1,467.15
IdIsH
31 A, 2019 Hifgeners T6dl g
fatira o @t wfaenes aRuaaar fee e oy | 123dT | 23 dT | 35T | TTWER T
f¥ kil sftre
117245 | 1,276.98 27.34 26.04 16.35 8.90 | 1,355.61
HRA TRBR T
276.97 276.97 - 276.97
IR ST
110.01 110.01 - 110.01
. . 0.0 0.0
EGl 1,559.42 | 1,663.95 27.34 26.04 16.35 8.90 | 1,742.58
R FREH

AR Breat o 3fad Yo a1 fawiar T6e YaTg & IaR -T6Td § Geeld 37 BT 99T 3 g SNIEH BT aTTR SEH Hal Sl & o & fe
TR SREH &1 IR BT SAEH BTl &: FET S11REH, T &R Sreaw 3R Sfact Jea siad & | TR Sifen 3 fawira 3uasolt # gs uHma &
HROT IR, =T FTH TR ¢ 3R IR O 3 31dae ART H FIer< 8 | SR S1RaH Jae 1 3693 & b 1T &1 31 dae a:d T
WIS ADI B JTER TR AR F0T SR P 70T = |

a1 e
T ] FIT Y TRIG 05 27 ¥ ST el o ferenfed et €1 Ui facdt g e ot ot aiferesel o dRoT due T e v ST 2|
o SR 1 Hor TR &1 T €
f&a=or 31 97, 2020 3197, 2019
R ¥ RS ) 35.35 120.38

547 aftis Rare 2019 - 20
112




...

HaaTeierar fages=
31 AT BT T T2 SFIR a2 H&T & JaT HRART FIC BT Holgd B &g [+ TBR IRf & $iaacT sik amw ar e # gfig @ anl a8
forgersoT faceit et fafvma ok raamslt w smenRa & fomy Rt srafer & sia # s 1 sfad w9 3 Fwa A onar &1 fagersor 9g aar & i

Toere w0 3 s it Fraamsit # 3 <ot X i <ear 2 | faweror fieer o 8 9 SmaR W fo5a 57T £, 396 Raara i geife 3R 3fad w9
¥ focelt gerer R frmard o |

31 97, 2020 ——

10% e |qgs PR

faeeh ger# sifpa R & (3.54) 3.54

31 97ef, 2019 ——

10% T g3 FHFAR

faeeh ger# sifa s & (12.04) 12.04
IR & Sifew

HUT FHET O 5T &R D SIRIT I 31T T & FANTeh HRT TRBR I THATT 38T oI+ R &9 & T+ad o 78 & | R akrg ® s &
ST H T i Suavlt o st &= T TR IR &

IHISH
fera=or 3197, 2020 31 97ef, 2019
T ufear
foroa-ax 3ueR
7.07 91
- 0 0.9
Tt eoamn
foroa-ax 3ueRor
1,211.4 1,156.
WRA IRBR a1 0T ' 8 ,196.90

T ax Susxvil & fere sfua g Haamehiear sumzor

B B FTeifRa 3uault o aRen e e & wu ¥ fear ST & | 3arae 3 e a) & Sitaw @ 31 et forar star e 4 ek &1 7 agemd
B a5 Tar fore e fer a7 wigsy ¥ T yaE ¥ 3dR-TeE 2

St gra siaw

e sfaract uferferat § Faer & aTsTR wafer gear # uiRad &g $fdac qra shian FeR &1 duer & wmer §, Sfaacr 2R # vaar faer
ARTa & 3R B BT Saac! qedr San! &1 IdE Tal BT 8, Tl [ FaTer 3R THRI HRIGR & dRoT fafdm Rurfé srafer 7 fve me
e @ SR W Tdac! 1ed H Jaed &1 Fobd & (o e Aanerd i ¢ | A diR W, Haer amiRe seeedr & foe = fevar smar
gl

St we daeTeliera fageivor
31 AT, 2020 3R 31 AT, 2019 BT $TFACT TPV D DIAAT F 5% TRATT D TRUTRGET HHT: T 13.20 PRIS 3R T 9.90 PRIS BF FRIdRI/BHT
2|
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40. P ST, HHAS Fuferdl AR Gferaegar

o N

U3 @t W e e 5T ater St bl srgma i iR g31ab e e 6t 1 18 (G amrdisH @ a1e)

TP
3117, 2020 9 | 31 AT, 2019 AP
. gferaegar
B B Hiciene aTal & e ¥ e g ST SR, I Yo, fam @ 3k 3w (198,30 21809 20372
RIS YR IRER KT R &S BT 15T) P KOTD W0 § WHR 8! [parg| .
EIRIGErEGIY
N & oo e ) 3.30 5.09
21.32 54.56

41 31 A7, 2020 BT &, 7Y 3R 7eom e fadrer it 2006 & 3icTd e, 71 3R 7eam Tl dr ¢ gt 19T TgaT 1T 3R ore

TRIeTd B RUIE & 3R - UK gaH fear mar .

IREH
31 AT, 2020 31 7ire, 2019
i. GBTaT 1 45 fet 3 B A & )
i T H YA el DY TS IBH
- 0.01
T IHH
ii. ETRT 18 BT 2Tl ¥ 3T BT T3 TS DY IBA aY & AR, Fgart feiies & are smgfeiaprt & fed i
A B IGBH B AT
v, T Y 20 o arafer o e g et ik 2 =ity ’
Y @ oAl B AR
St ar siftferom # fafafde &
v. gufee ¥ 3urfoia smst 3iR S1arRrl et & 78 STsT Bl XbH ’
42 ¥RA TRER 0T BT YTe 3R ST BT YA BUT GRTA Jebre e faaxor s &:
IIsH
e 1S T
O — 122.30 145.54 267.84
SN 359.89 492.93 852.82
N 20.77 34.32 55.09
o 502.96 672.79 1175.75
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43 T IHEIHROT:

U

ar.

Uk

HRA TRER ¥ 0N TR UE TGHY 173 198.39 BIS. (Uer a¢ X 183.15 BRUS) B AN TET 3T & | §Tclih, Tg IR o 3hAD
AT & dgd ferar T g |

a¥ & AR, I3 3 arefl adsara & qut 3R 3ifom Fuem & 50% 99 uTer 3 7.50 318 & Yo & [l 3 6.74 HRIS BUT DI
IRT T g% & | fawirar ad & 2RMR 0.75. T8 BUY B 37k &I <1aT fepar o

. 3T 3T % 0.58 BRIS (et 99 T 0.58 HRI5) 5T IRt B Terdrail UrglelisT & foe smefed & & foe o o enfier &,

HRR BT GRG0 BT ST & |

T fafed o 2020-21 & T8 38R HATCRT & AT FHSHAT 10 UR ERATER B bl UehaT # & 3R 31 b gler =Te) [har g |

aq 1989 H UH HEIUITcTe d1ex HelTs 1R Aaval a1s (NTHSTYRHTHaT) §RT dIg iR # SIerdr §37 & foTe 43.13 vdhs 4 7 33
aut oF el sraftr s fore smafea fomar mar am | Sumt gRT SIery A @ fow 20.224 Udg o 37TerT Y o7 SUAT T 3 =g i
AT e T, TR eHS g RIUa = 39 AT o # AR O [T RS I 81 & a18, HTHsEUusar = 55 2017 dd
TSt fohRTar BF AT & e TRUTEE &7 4 ¥ 5.64 TS 9 3R 39 TR SR SUAT T 370 A X 3.10 BRIS D T b HIAH o
T | e 2017 3 TS, [RTAT BT YT [THTET SR TR {5 S RET & | $9 Haer 3 el i bl §Ref1eR B < & | Iee & [h_1e
@ gfcr Sgar sl e FefRa 8T g5 & S 4 1989 T 2017 a & 31afer & fefw uee & fome R Farax & fore i ot &
qEar 085 75 fewm 2

01 fexiar, 2016 3 w1 3T sufat (e uraerm) siftifaw Easmgi) o fred fovar mar & 3k 3aa Ak 3 siteanfieT
3R foira gafe a8 @ewsnga) a1 faafed fear mr &1 Jema dur faftr mite<or @Rived) & dur gRT Ragac uwda
BIFE B B FoTe Tadhed SaR0T IR 2 | 8Tetifes, Terameve af Rurd @ 3R W, B 7 370 faaR @ fo7e 363 #2173, 4R TRER
& e faira qoe ueerma I fepar |

S YRA TRGR, TR /e 3R 707 317 3113w & foe wor & e 2w i oo gite yra 181 g8 21

44 faffmeR3arRTeg@

ETAT 370 37T H 9Tt faf-aw e 3 3R T@1d INR 0.01 BRIS 2| (TUsel ¥ < INR 1.97 BRIE)

45. TH 108 ‘IRFETAMT’ B wuH FsLIa D T H gHPH0T
e @ smaR

B o A ¥, e HeeAene! o e A ST € | e HeeRiuas U o B e ar T aRar € sik dur B
T famit gRTya o1 T8 fafim yder o RuTet & SmaR W H9res dfed aRars |

MIETTH Y w0 3 ST W B TG H B B DI G BF e BT &
IRe G Rar ik es)
30 T aTdaTT (@R fiharean 3R 3t 39%)

i, Raiféa wroma @ sma nfafaférar 3 ume Tora 5% 3 &1 & 3R 37 nfafaterdt o foe &18 eyt dufed Fafsrd T8t & S,
ST Yo BT AT & fb U & Uy et U RUIE B A W & 511 38%epT ! fagdr & Fmfor d gefa 2|

&t witifers e

RaifEa Hhifers Fa=T HT & 1oIRd (3RITd HRa) 3R I el ERIBUA! & or<a a7 IR-a1e] TR ufcaral T fageryor et & | Hhiferd
A DT IR R H, 15T TTed! @ HMMTeTah T IR 3renia & 3R IR-are] wufeat & faazor sufeai & Himiied ®I R smenRa ¢ |
b B 9RA B IR JaRDI & 07 3R 9! & e & 2, 3aeTe qR1 o IRl @ 3R 99 IR-aneg dufedt daot yRa # R

W ITEIES - AR

46 3TaDHI

af & AR IR ST & feTe BIs Iraen et fevar war & @it fes Sanee & uRvmRawy @i+ g8 & 3R w9 U 89 & BRUT BU
THEET & TofE Scker 18T 2|
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47 R I 3R afead

HRT TRBR gRT feiRa vgfdt # et # g gikar = e g HeRor dremr & dea afeas & St €| $9Ye st a3/ 81-
TR e @ [T Bfse/STae 3 TRBR gRT ST STR! B & Uge! SIAMI & SR TR AT a1 ¢ | 51t a9 W, 3R &7 dr, Fear )
U fepar ST e

IRER B U Jad TS A (UTATTs) & i Brebied SiRT ure ¥ 3dvat o v afems & T €|

o o

T3 e feRoT drsH T (@Aues) & st giar s foe afss)

YT e H Gl G/El-URBere T BRUT AR dd Jedi & i TLEM B 3R R ¥R & | JagaR 3144.46 A0S (eer af ¢ 3144.92
TRIE ) DI T BT T 2019 - 20 B T THBMEAR 3 $HYC e I AN Fhg & 1078 U fpar I £,

02 3e, 2014 BT 34 HAET GRT DT Fenferg e ||| N & gearfaa 3 350/eaet &) s1faRed iy and 89 & e afsasr #

31626 BR1E (et av 314.14 HRI5 ) B ey enfireT & 3R 13 A1, 2020 7 3nfes wer B FAEa Afhfd RRNSE) gRT HTed ik
TN Y 3TRUATST 7 B Wi B TR B [T 5. 150/89¢! &1 3ifafRad ¥ e e 89 R 5.4.88 BRIS P 3T AANST B 3
TR @ IRIR ©.350/THCT BT T8 3HaiRad Gamast 2014-15 I wifad &, frat faaxor =i fear mar & -

B . a 17T (¥ as),

1 2014-15 11.43
2 2015-16 13.62
3 2016-17 15.70
4 2017-18 15.46
5 2018-19 14.14

P 70.35

| ufeTdl eTaE=

e ufdftsd arcs $amfoR 3R qraies gRT e favga geatad foar 1T 2 3R 39! RUId & 3MRIR 31.03.2020 T U GRT &I a7
3R B FHIAISH el AT ST & | THRE T3 3R USRI B aeT [9dh! 7o BT 3HTdher 39 dRIkG B Jad Hed B SR (a1 T,

(G E]
SRE] 31.03.2020 7 31.03.2019 a5
fFreafes | geeqea | Faafat | gwo
kS qca
st 399.20 136.24 330.12 93.01
e 75.88 24.82 70.59 25.04
i 15.30 3.68 13.98 4.56
RuIbGIE 30.28 9.50 2817 9.70
48 facira faarull # gf YRR STeT®r BIEa 3R TaTU MU 3R I FRIE (@1 Eeed dd) ¥ IR & STl & | {8 T dI IISE 3T B & BROT
Tewamg 78} &t &, 3 31T yahe B S 2 |
49 AFS! oY STRY fevam o Aifes= areht e g =1 @
TE9 116 "Uge

BT = 3T fawirar faaRoT & e craie ifd 1R S5 00 116 & S0 7 Taidd ® & 3R FHIad T41a &I Jedid (6T & aar I8 337
Tt W BIS WHdD TH1T 78T & BT 3HE dRaT 2 |

geuew 21 faRel guar d uRad=

g2 21 & WU H Hened i gra ar gra faden get faart & fou wemit R an T | 39 dRE D o B dIRE B AR
T & BT IUANT B LN B ST I a1 I <o b aeddsar 2l & | o = fawira Mfedi # erais e ) g8 ved
21 BT 3T & HHIGT T4 &1 e id (6 & 3R $Ha0T e a3 & fe BIg g et 21
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50

51

52

U/ Fifa=or
fireer af & stids o af & aifa<or iR ThciaRor & 3T B & fore g afed /4. a g fose me 2

e df T sa=en
qY 2019-20 & feTC HRAT TRBR B 39D A es! & 170 307.67 PRIS TN T2 9 B [IRIT AT T HaRI FOTUTA G | (3307.47 FRIB
&1 gRaT A 3R % 0.20 FRIS TS H AewsT)

TIeT 37T Wufed SR WeR 9 i ot e e

R 3R a3k 3riafRe eramren ik i aramRian @ foe af & SR v ad 7 A wH @1 Frgaa fearmard | difas Sems wRueg a s
I fEarazerd sk ad & AR 310 41 1€ dod A srgHAIfed T ¥ 9 Fufcd 3R WER 3R goTt & v fey a1 Wy < & i o

53

54

55

af 2013-14 F 2017-18 B AR YA & 10 YT fe5€ T8 R 2,52 TS BT YA TR AL ECHAT TAT 8, FANH 8 TG H SO e s gRT
AHETE TROR B GeTt TR 3t BT HUCRT Fet febam T & | 7T & SR, YA & [o78 SUAT §IRT ciaichT  HTae & w9 H 3o 0191
RAIR G TS 2|

2009-10 ¥ 2017-18 DI 31T & o0 oy # e U T % 2.51 TRIS & 3T IECIRAN-AT BT YA, IUTCIE BIA-ET3-3Ta=I1EE BT fagsT I
TG STECIRAT 3T 3, TIh! & QRT & IR yeifae 8N e Terd aut &1 o) FeriRor 3R AT A1fes STRY axT| $afe1e 3aa 1T T ST abr ot

T YIGE & B9 7 G AT |

CITToTEICT 3T, 1959 & 3(4) B 3T I 2002-03 I 2005-06 TH & T I T 7.78 BRIS 311 b TN TG I 3UHE T Head gRT
TSI PR STUBIRAT GRT 2001-02 T STUBIRAT GRT HTEd B IA I AT DI T 3R = BT Uicii+ered dar & | Tfep 3o aut & faal T
FreiRoT & SR 330 ot 3ifem = e s, TR I eRaieT ¥ <A U H W TS &

fFrawrgufea

fsTaarer St 3% wa7 7 frraer Tufc v Tada TR STaR gRT Hufed & a5 Hod & 3MeR IR Jeand (o & 3R aotfer & faer
Hufed TRER B SNE I I B IR W E |

BT ¥ TUTCI3TRUTATERNIT GIRT 400 BT ST grRather ang= & raior & ot 4fi smafeq o R wenfa @ & €, i ardaitid
32T & fIE CIUUAEI3RECHRRNSN GRT 3 e AT & | STaR U @ URER @ 37aR 311R THTHT 410 Wiex GIRITH A6 S ARTR &
e T T |

[ vd 1 o R 9/
G AU e TEYeys - faw sk orar (g & g
377787 Ud ya- feere FwrahE
3 28, 2020
AR R o e akg
! 31 & IFAIT BUS HU
TSI TR,
UW3TRE 0029473
e st IR Seifearn
RIERS
arrea 28, 2020 UH.9- 233192
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MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
MANALI, CHENNAI 600068
54t Annual General Meeting
Chennai
29" December 2020
CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH

SHRI U SARAVANAN
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders, Ladies & Gentlemen
Very good morning to all of you!

It gives me immense pleasure to extend a warm welcome
to you all to the 54th Annual General Meeting of your
company. The Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 have been
with you and, with your consent; | shall take them as read.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed
and pursuant to the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, AGM is being held through Video
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Before | speak to you about the performance of your
company, let me briefly highlight the economic scenario
in which your Company is operating.

Economic Scenario

The important economic measures announced by the
Government of India in 2019-20 were hike in minimum
support price of agriculture crops, reduction in corporate
tax rate, special programs for MSMEs and digital payment.

Fertilizersremainindispensable foragriculture productivity.
In other words availability of sufficient Fertilizers were
absolutely essential for sowings of Kharif and Rabi Crops.
However, Agriculture and Fertilizers Sectors continue to
face challenges due to COVID 19 pandemic.

During 2019-20, the country received very good rainfall
with prolonged monsoon. Excessive rains received in
North and Central Kerala, Kodagu, Chickamagalur and
Hassan. Due to adequate water in Reservoirs, crop
coverage of Rabi seasons was normal during summer
in irrigated belt and good consumption of fertilizer was
observed.

The consumption of Urea and NPK have increased in
MFL's territory because of favourable agricultural situation
prevailed. The consumption of Urea has increased in
MFL’s territory over Corresponding Period Last Year
(CPLY) by 10.5% and NPK by 20.3% over CPLY.

Production Performance Highlights of MFL in
Financial Year 2019-20

| am happy to say that your Company has, after a long
awaited time, achieved and successfully completed
the feedstock conversion from Naphtha to RLNG for
Ammonia production.

Further, some of the activities undertaken to bring down
energy levels are listed below:

+ Installation of CT Cells M & N: After commissioning
of these 2 cells during July 2019, the availability of
Total Number of Fans increased to 14, High cooling
water temperature problem totally eliminated even
during summer and taking preventive maintenance
of fans becomes easy without affecting plant loads;

* The replacement of RO Stream membranes along
with TTRO water for CW make up from Oct 19,
has made significant improvement in CW quality
& Cooling Tower Cycles of Concentration which
helped in reduction of chemical consumption and
frequent leaking / failure of CW exchangers. This
has improved the on-stream efficiency of the
exchanger and ultimately plant loads;

* RLNG feed as fuel for 110 Boiler & PC Boiler in
place of FO, has resulted in reduction of stack
temperature, thereby boiler efficiency improved with
good environmental conditions;
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* Replacement of Urea Reactor Liner has improved
the conversion ratio thereby reduction in energy &
increase in on-stream efficiency of Urea plant;

» After Feed stock and Fuel conversion to reformers,
burner conversion efficiency has increased excess
air levels brought down which resulted in fuel
consumption;

* Installation of Advance Process Control forAmmonia
and Urea Plants have fetched considerable energy
reduction to the tune of 0.2 Gcal per MT Urea;

Your Company’s operations ended up with a loss of ¥
55.62 Cr during Fiscal 2019-20 as against a loss of ¥
83.24 Cr in the previous year due to incurrence of huge
interest cost and Complex Fertilizer Plants were not in line
for the first two quarters owing to working capital crisis.

At the close of March 31, 2020, totally 2181 days were
completed without any lost time accident covering 7.78
million man-hours (Previous best achieved was 5.66
million man-hours).

Sales Performance

| am proud to state that your Company has achieved
sales of 3.24 Lakh MT of Vijay Neem Coated Urea and
66,000 MT of Vijay 17-17-17, which is 139% increase
over previous year.

Your company is taking up
campaigns which help in improving our
branding.

intensive promotional
products’

Apart from selling agricultural inputs, farmer services like
soil sample analysis and recommendation of fertilizer
dosage based on soil test report, educating the farmers
on weather, crop insurance and other improved farm
technologies were offered.

As part of “Swachh Bharat Mission”, Marketing of City
Compost, a product from Municipality / Factory waste
has been undertaken and 12040 MT sold, which is
49% increase over previous year. With respect to City
Compost sale, Your Company stood as topper in Tamil
Nadu and has reached the 6th position on All India basis.

As part of the Government of India’s initiative, MFL
organized Farmers Interactive Session in co-ordination
with State Department of Agriculture.

During the countrywide lockdown due to COVID 19
pandemic from March 25, 2020, Your Company Plants
were running successfully and products were transported
and dispatched to dealer point with the support of
Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Government of India and Government of Tamil
Nadu. The above achievement could be made with sheer
dedication of employees coupled with the appropriate
and adequate precautionary measures taken by the
Management.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the year 2019-20, your Company has spent a
total sum of ¥ 9,24,000/- in various CSR activities viz.,
donations of food materials for flood affected public

in Nilgiris District, contribution to Armed Forces Flag
Day Fund, supply of potable water through pipelines to
Harikrishnapuram Village in Manali and supply of school
bags and kits to Students of Government School at
Mathur.

Future Outlook

Dear Shareholders, your Company has submitted
a Revival Proposal to Government of India through
Department of Fertilizers, for its favorable consideration.

* Your Company has initiated the study of Business
Diversification keeping in view of Atma Nirbhar
Bharat Abhiyan. After in-depth deliberations,
by an Expert Working Committee a report has
been submitted in which three products have
been emerged viz., Methanol, Liquid Nitrogen
Production and Production of special grades of
Complex Fertilizers. Subsequently, the High Level
Execution Committee has been formed to explore
the possibility of execution of above mentioned
products in future.

» Further, your Company has, in addition to production
of Complex fertilizers, also proposed to start trading
of complex fertilizers to augment revenue.

* Your Company has awarded Energy Reduction
scheme study to M/s HTAS to bring down energy
further down to 6.3 Gcal per MT Urea;

* Replacement of E1901 (Ammonia condenser)
and K1601 (Syn Gas compressor) intercoolers
with Duplex tubes improved metallurgy to prevent
frequent tube failures and improve on-stream
efficiency of Ammonia Plant;

» Fuel conversion from FO to RLNG for Utility Boiler
2 for energy efficiency and environmental friendly;

 Installation of Dedicated RO Plant to improve water
quality.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | sincerely thank the
shareholders, customers and all stakeholders for their
continued support in the Company’s future endeavours.
| would like to place on record the sincerity, hard work,
commitment and dedication of the employees. | am
grateful to the Government of India and the Government
of Tamilnadu for their assistance and cooperation.

| also express my sincere thanks to SEBI, NSDL, Stock
Exchanges, State Bank of India, Indian Oil Corporation
and Institutions for the support and coordination given to
the company regularly. It will certainly be our endeavor to
put in our best efforts for sustained growth, expansion and
prosperity of the Company benefitting all stakeholders.

| look forward to seeing you in person at the next year
AGM.

Thank you and Jai Hind!

U Saravanan
Chairman & Managing Director
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MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
(A Government of India Undertaking)
CIN - L32201TN1966G0I1005469
Regd. Office : Post Bag No.2, Manali, Chennai 600 068 Tel.044-25942281 / 25945489
Website : www.madrasfert.co.in email: cs@madrasfert.co.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 54th Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of Madras Fertilizers Limited will be held
on 29th December, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. through Video
Conference (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM”) to
transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance
Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and the
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that
date together with the Reports of Directors’ and the
Auditors thereon.

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial
Year 2020-21 and in this regard to consider if thought
fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 142(1) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Audit Fee
for the financial year 2020-21 be and is hereby fixed
at  ¥4,00,000/- to M/s.Anand & Ponnappan (MD
0327), Statutory Auditors, subject to other terms and
conditions laid down by the C&AG vide letter No.CA.V/
COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, MFL(1)/89 dated
10.08.2020".

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Lalsanglur (DIN
08118636), Director, who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution.

‘RESOLVED THAT Shri Lalsanglur (DIN 08118636) who
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 of Companies
Act, 2013 and being eligible, be and is hereby re-
appointed as Director of the Company whose office
shall be liable to retirement by rotation”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without

modifications the following resolution as an Ordinary
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditor) Rules 2014, Mrs. Aruna Prasad (M No.11816),
Cost Accountant, appointed by the Board as Cost Auditor
to consider the cost audit of the Company for fertilizers
for the financial year 2020-21 as per the directions issued
by the Central Government at a fee of ¥ 1,00,000/- plus
taxes besides reimbursement of travelling and out of
pocket expenses at actuals be and is hereby ratified.”

By Order of the Board
Chennai U Saravanan
Dec 04, 2020 Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 07274628

Note :

1.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed
and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed
by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, physical
attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not
required and annual general meeting (AGM) be held
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual
means (OAVM). In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08,
2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
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facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, the
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and participate thereat and cast their votes through
e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000
members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons
of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing
facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting system as well as venue
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of
the Company at www.madrasfert.co.in. The Notice can
also be accessed from the website of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and the
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL

10.

1.

(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from 23.12.2020 to
29.12.2020 (both days inclusive).

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations,
as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from,
April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for
transmission or transposition of securities. In view of
this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and for ease of portfolio management, members
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form.
Members can contact the Company or M/s. Integrated
Registry Management Services Pvt Ltd., (IRMSPL)
Kences Towers, Il Floor, No.1, Ramakrishna Street,
T Nagar, Chennai 60017, the Registrar and Transfer
Agents and Depository Participants of the Company
for assistance in this regard and all correspondences
with regard to transfer of physical / electronic shares
etc. may be addressed to them directly.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have
not yet registered their email addresses are requested
to register the same to their DPs in case the shares are
held by them in electronic form. In case the shares are
held by them in physical form, members are requested
to register their email address to IRMSPL, Registrar
and Transfer Agents and Depository Participants of the
Company.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number
(PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank
details such as, name of the bank and branch details,
bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to
their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form and to IRMSPL, in case the shares are held by
them in physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical
order of names, in more than one folio are requested
to send to the Company or IRMSPL, the details of such
folios together with the share certificates for consolidating
their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share certificate
will be issued to such Members after making requisite
changes.
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12. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name
appears as the first holder in the order of names as
per the Register of Members of the Company will be
entitled to vote at the AGM.

13. Members seeking any information with regard to the
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM,
are requested to write to the Company on or before
23.12.2020 through email on cs@madrasfert.co.in. The
same will be replied by the Company suitably.

14. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and
SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM
along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent
only through electronic mode to those Members whose
email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and
Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the
Company’s website www.madrasfert.co.in, website of
the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of
India Limited at www.nseindia.com, and on the website
of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

15. The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. V Esaki
& Associates (M N0.30353), Practicing Company
Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting
during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner.

16. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

17. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on 26.12.2020 at 09.00
AM. and ends on 28.12.2020 at 05.00 P.M. During this period,
the members holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form as on 22.12.2020 i.e. cut-off date, may
cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting
system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
How to Log-in to NSDL e-voting website?

1. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting. nsdl.
com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-voting system is launched,
click on the icon “Login” which is available under
“Shareholders” section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-
in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials,
click on e-voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast
your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

A) For Members who hold shares in demat account with
NSDL - 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client
ID. Forexample, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client
ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******,

B) For Members who hold shares in demat account
with CDSL - 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. For example,
if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your
user |D IS 12**************

C) For Members holding shares in Physical Form -
EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the Company. For example, if EVEN is
123456 and folio number is 001*** then user ID is
123456001,

5. Your password details are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for e-voting, then you
can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first
time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you by NSDL. Once
you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to
enter the ‘initial password’ and the systemwillforce
you to change your password.
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6.

7.

8.
9.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i) If your email ID is registered in your demat
account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL in your mailbox from evoting@nsdl.com.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e.
a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID
for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for
CDSL account or folio number for shares held
in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

ii) In case you have not registered your email
address with the Company/Depository, please
follow instructions mentioned below in this
notice.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the
‘initial password’ or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding
shares in physical mode) option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by
aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address.

d) Members can also use the one-time password (OTP)
based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

After entering your password, click on Agree to “Terms
and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of
e-voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting
system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see
the Home page of e-voting. Click on e-voting. Then,
click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to
see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN" of the Company for which you wish to
cast your vote.

Now you are ready for e-voting as the Voting page opens

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e.
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit”
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully”
will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you
by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will
not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for Shareholders

1.

Government/ Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board
or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc.,
authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through
VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote
e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent
to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email
address to esakics@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will
be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need
to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries relating to e-voting you may refer
to the FAQs for Shareholders and e-voting user manual
for Shareholders available at the download section of
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting
for the resolutions set out in this notice :

1. Incase shares are held in physical mode please provide
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to corpserv@
integratedindia.in.

2. Incase shares are held in demat mode, please provide
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) to corpserv@integratedindia.in.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING
ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is
same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present
in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will
be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any
grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned
for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE
AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using
the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM
will be available in shareholder/members login where
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and

Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to
avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use
the OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system
of NSDL.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and
use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due
to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection
to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/
have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at (company email
id). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Other information:

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion
of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during
the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same.

2. Theresult declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report
shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
madrasfert.co.in and on the website of NSDL https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The Company shall
simultaneously forward the results to National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section
102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No.4: Appointment of Cost Auditor for the
year 2020-21

As per Sec. 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Cost Records and Cost Audit) Rules,
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2013, the cost Auditor should be appointed by the
Board on such remuneration which may be ratified by
the members in General Meeting.

Accordingly, the Board in its 312" meeting held on
August 13, 2020 has approved the appointment of
Mrs. Aruna Prasad, Cost Auditor, for conducting the
Cost Audit of the Company for the year 2020-21 at
the remuneration of ¥ 1,00,000/- plus taxes besides
reimbursement of travelling and out of packet expenses
at actuals. Mrs. Aruna Prasad, has also communicated
her willingness to take up the assignment.

In accordance with the provisions of Sec 148(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration fixed for the
Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the members in the
General Meeting. Accordingly, the above proposal
has been submitted for ratification of the members.

By Order of the Board
Chennai U Saravanan
Dec 04, 2020 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07274628
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Shareholders
Madras Fertilizers Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith the
54" Annual Report together with the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the
year 2019-20.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

ZXCr

2019-20 |2018-19
Turnover 1274.39| 1593.00
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation, |  (18.21)|  (6.80)
Exceptional items and Tax
Interest 90.29| 100.03
Depreciation 26.38| 2299
Exceptional items - -
Other Comprehensive Income (79.26)| (46.58)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (55.62)| (83.24)
Provision for Tax - -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (55.62)| (83.24)
Cash Profit / (Loss) (29.24)| (60.25)

The Company’s operations for the year ended with a
loss of ¥ 55.62 Cr.

REVIVAL

The Company has submitted a Revival Proposal to
Department of Fertilizers, Government of India, for its
consideration.

DIVIDEND

The Company does not propose to declare any Dividend to
shareholders during the fiscal 2020, as per the Companies
(Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, due to
huge accumulated losses (3 805.42 Cr) and negative net
worth (% 630.89 Cr) as on March 31, 2020.

HIGHLIGHTS OF PLANT PERFORMANCE

» During the year 2019-20 MFL has produced 345150
MT of Neem Coated Urea and 65000 MT of NPK 17-
17-17 Complex fertilizers.

» Feed Stock Conversion from Naphtha to RLNG was
successfully completed, and plants were started back
smoothly and Urea production commenced on July
28, 2019.

» Urea production of 46040 MT in Feb 2020 is the
highest-ever in any February month since inception.

» NPKAtrain was started back after a long shutdown of
7 years and Production commenced on 6th Jan 2020.

» During the countrywide lockdown due to COVID
19 pandemic situation from March 25, 2020, Urea
production and despatch were not affected, because
of the appropriate and adequate precautionary
measures taken by the management.

» Achieved Ammonia and Urea Energy of 10.659 &
7.873 GCal/MT respectively.

» Urea plant production of 100% and above was
achieved for 146 Days out of 243 days during this
year.

» TTRO water from M/s CMWSSB receipt commenced
from October 2019, and Cooling water cycles of
Concentration has improved, thereby reduction in
make up water quantity and other chemicals.

» At the close of Mar 31, 2020, 2181 days were
completed without any lost time accident covering
7.78 million man-hours. (Previous best Achieved -
5.66 million man-hours.)

MARKETING PERFORMANCE

Fertilizer Sales

% Achieved 3,23,764.200 MT of Vijay Neem Coated
Urea sales. (Total consumption 2019-20 : 56,30,671
MT and CPLY : 50,96,421 MT ).
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Sold the total available quantity of 65,516.65 MT of
Vijay 17-17-17, which is 139 % increase over CPLY of
27,429.55 MT

Organic Manures. Neem Pesticides & Bio-Fertilizers
Sales

o
*

*’

Under “Swachh Bharat Mission”, marketing of City
Compost, a product from Municipality/Factory waste,
has been undertaken and 12040.50 MT was sold,
which is 49% increase over CPLY of 8087 MT

With respect to City Compost sales, MFL proud to be
a TOPPER in Tamilnadu and reached 6™ position
on All INDIA basis.

In addition to City Compost, under “Basket Approach”
sold 2807.80 MT of Vijay Organic, which is 210%
increase over CPLY of 905 MT.

Sold 73.42 KL of Vijay Neem,
Sold 46.40 MT of Vijay Bio Fertilizers.

MARKET DEVELOPMENT & AGRO-SERVICE
PROGRAMMES:

5

S

53

S
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MFL's Marketing personnel have contacted 25107 farmers
during the year and continuously imparted knowledge to
farmers on use of eco-friendly products for soil health, soil
fertility, Soil vitality and balanced fertilization (Integrated
Nutrient Management), by direct farmer contact, soil
sample collection, method demonstrations and farmer
seminar in coordination with State/Central Agricultural
extension departments.

Under corporate social responsibility to farming community,
Marketing personnel had collected 4036 soil samples, got
analyzed and communicated to the farmers about the
micro & macro nutrient recommendations of various crops
to farmers during the year.

In pursuance to the Prime Minister's Mission on
empowering the Farmers vide Supportive Schemes &
Education on farming techniques, MFL continues its
service to the farmers through “Kisan Suvidha Kendra”
at Gangavathy and Shimoga in Karnataka State. Farmer

services like soil sample analysis and recommendation of
fertilizer dosage based on soil test report, educating the
farmers on weather, crop Insurance and other improved
farm technologies were offered.

As a part of Government of India’s initiative for strengthening
farming community, MFL organized a Farmers’ Interaction
Session in coordination with State department of
Agriculture, where the standing parliamentary committee
on Chemicals & Fertilizers headed by Mrs. Kanimozhi
Karunanidhi made a study tour visit on 24.01.2020 and
had an interaction with around 1000 farmers at a village
nearby Vellore of Tamilnadu regarding present demand
and availability of fertilizers.

DBT Implementation

*

% In order to sustain sales thru PoS machines and to
comply with PAN India implementation through DBT,
MFL is educating the wholesalers and retailers on
importance of PoS sales consistently.

RS

¢

Generated all subsidy bills up to date. We are much
ahead among many of our competitors and no issues

of DBT pending with NIC / DOF.
Vijay Neem Vijay
Coated Urea | 17-17-17
Bills generated - Qty (MT) | 3,29,752.218| 62,843.816
Bills generated - Value (Cr.) 1,062.98 48.33

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The Company entered into MOU with Department of
Fertilizers (DOF), Government of India for the year 2019-20
on May 05, 2019 setting up targets for performance of the
Company in terms of static and dynamic parameters.

VIGILANCE

ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS OF VIGILANCE
DEPARTMENT DURING 2019-20

R/

% Complaints received were attended and reports
submitted as per Complaints Handling Policy of the
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Company / Central Vigilance Commission (CVC)
guidelines.

Continuously monitoring the progress of the
Disciplinary Proceedings in respect of Vigilance Cases
for timely completion.

Agreed List of Suspected Officers and List of Officers
of Doubtful Integrity were finalised and sent to DoF.

CVC Guidelines / Circulars on Tenders and Disciplinary
Proceedings and other matters as and when received
were communicated to Management for necessary
action.

As per the Central Vigilance Commission, CVO had
four Structured Meetings with the CMD, MFL on
21.05.2019, 27.09.2019, 13.12.2019 & 29.01.2020
and pending issues were discussed and suggestions
given to the Management.

For all the Tenders with value more than Rs. 2 lacs
e-Tendering and e-reverse auction method is being
followed.

Annual Property Returns of the Officers were
scrutinized as per CVC guidelines.

For easy reference, CVC Guidelines / Circulars on
Tenders were uploaded in MFL’s Online Integrated
System (OLIS).

MFL observed Vigilance Awareness Week 2019 from
28.10.2019 to 02.11.2019 as directed by CVC. The
following are the highlights:

» On October 28, 2019, Vigilance Awareness Week
pledge was administered to all employees at 1100
hours in the Administrative Building by Shri A L
Prabhakar, CVO, MFL.

» On Oct 28, 2019, a Workshop was conducted by
Shri C Kamal Kumar, IOFS, Director - Vigilance
(South), Ordnance Factory, Chennai, on Preventive
Vigilance. The Workshop was well received by
a house full attendance in the Training Centre
Auditorium of MFL.

o

RS
*’

» 0OnOct 29,2019, a Quiz Competition was conducted
for the Employees at the Training Centre. Six Teams
consisting of 2 Employees per Team enthusiastically
participated in the competition.

» OnOct 30,2019, a Keynote Address on “Integrity - A
way of life” was delivered by Shri M Rathinasamy,
IRS, Additional Director General, Income Tax (Vig)
South, Chennai. Inthis lecture, he dealt at length the
topic of Integrity. The lecture was well received by the
audience in the Training Centre Auditorium of MFL.

» Essay competitions (in English & Tamil) on the topic
viz., “Integrity — A way of life” was held for students of
two neighbouring schools to create awareness and
to involve the youth in Vigilance awareness.

» MFL Regional Offices (11) were also involved in the
Vigilance Awareness Week programmes. Banners
were displayed in all the Regional Offices of MFL and
Customers and Citizens were educated on “Integrity
—-Away of life”. The Regional Offices also enabled
a number of Customers and Citizens to undertake
e-Pledge.

» As an endeavour of Youth Outreach, the Regional
Offices organized events related to this year's VAW
Theme, “Integrity — A way of life”.

» Prizes and Certificates were distributed to the Winners
of the Vigilance Awareness Week competition on
15.11.2019 by Director - Technical.

MFL Vigilance organized three Workshops as detailed
below :

» Workshop on “e-auction” to Officials of F&A,
Technical Services, Personnel, Marketing,
Maintenance, Production & Materials Management
on 27.06.2019 at MFL Training Centre. Smt E Babitha
Rani, M.Sc., M.B.A, Chief Manager, MSTC Ltd, A
Government of India Undertaking was the Faculty.

» Workshop on “Rules of Public Procurement from
MSME in PSUs” to Officials of F&A, Technical
Services, Personnel, Marketing, Maintenance,
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Production & Materials Management on 27.08.2019
at MFL Training Centre. Dr V Ramakrishnan, Dy
Director, MSME - Development Institute, Ministry of
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises, Government of
India, Guindy, Chennai was the Faculty.

» Workshop on “Tender Concepts, Public
Procurement and Arbitration in PSUs” was
conducted in MFL Training Centre on 11.03.2020
by Shri K Rama Subramonia Pillai, Retd. IRAS, FA
& CAO, Southern Railways, Chennai. Around 45
officials ranging from Senior Officers to DGM level
participated in this highly interactive session. The
Workshop covered Dos and Don'ts and common
pitfall in Public Procurement, right from estimate stage
to post contract stage. Many case studies were also
shared during the session, enriching the awareness
of the participants.

HUMAN RELATIONS AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
MANPOWER & TRAINING

» The total strength of MFL as on 31.03.2020 is 571 as
against 593 as on 31.03.2019. 522 employees have
been trained during the period Apr 2019 to Mar 2020
on Technical, Soft and Life skills for the enduring
benefit and development of the Organisation.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

» During the year, the overall Industrial Relation
situation in the Company has been normal and
cordial.

SC/ ST WELFARE ACTIVITIES

» The Presidential Directives and various guidelines
issued by the Government of India from time to time
relating to the welfare of SC / ST employees are
being scrupulously followed. A Liaison Officer for
SC /ST has been posted to ensure implementation
of Government Directives. SC/ST cell has been
constituted for redressing the grievances of SC/ST
employees.

» %60,000/- was granted for celebrating Dr. Ambedkar
Jayanthi on 15th April 2019 at our Board Room and
conducted in a grand manner in commemoration of
National Leader.

BC/MBC/OBC WELFARE ACTIVITIES

» ¥30,000/- was granted for celebrating Thanthai Periyar
E V Ramasamy’s Birthday on 17TH September 2019
in a grand manner in commemoration of National
Leader.

OFFICIAL LANUAGE IMPLEMENTATION

The target fixed by Department of Official Language for
letter correspondence in Hindi and other implementation
programs is being taken care positively. Hindi fortnight
was celebrated at Head Office and Regional Offices.
Various competitions were organised and prizes were
distributed. OL Inspection was done and Hindi Workshop
was conducted by Shri D P Mishra, Assistant Director (OL),
Department of Fertilizers, and 24 Executives participated
in the Workshop. Efforts have been taken to improve the
percentage of Noting in Hindi.

INVESTOR RELATIONS CELL (IRC)

IRC is functioning in the Company under the Company
Secretary to create awareness of the Company’s strength
and ensuring timely communication to shareholders.

IMPACT OF COVID 19

MFL Products / Services are coming under the ambit of
Essential Commodities Act, 1955. Accordingly, we are
committed to run our Plants and production of fertilizers, its
transportation and distribution as per the directives of the
Government of India.

Despite of many hurdles, MFL Plants are running with
the support of the Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of
Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India, Government
of Tamilnadu and sheer dedication of employees.
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STATUTORY INFORMATION
Annual Evaluation of Board

MFL being a Government Company, all appointments in
the Board are made by the Government of India, Ministry
of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers.
The performance of Directors are evaluated by the Ministry
of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers,
Government of India. As per Government of India, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs notification dated 5th June 2015, clause
(e) and (p) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of Companies
Act 2013 relating to appointment, remuneration and Annual
evaluation of Board on its performance are not applicable to
MFL. However, the company is evaluating the performance
of its Directors as per the guidelines issued by SEBI.

Business Responsibility Report

Clause (f) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 34 of SEBI
(Listing  Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, stipulates that the Annual Report shall
contain a Business Responsibility Report describing the
initiatives taken by the listed entity from an environmental,
social and governance perspective in the format specified.
Accordingly, the Business Responsibility Report for FY’20
has been appended to this Annual Report.

Meeting of the Board

During the year 2019-20, five meetings of the Board of
Directors were convened and held. The details of the
meetings of the Board of Directors are given in the report
on Corporate Governance, which is part of this report.
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act 2013.

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

In terms of the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rules 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is stated that no employee of
your Company was in receipt of remuneration for any part
of the year at a rate which is more than % 5 lacs per month.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors hereby state that

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards (Ind AS) had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

b) the directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that year;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records, in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis.

e) the directors have laid down internal financial
control to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively; and

f) the directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 have been provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance report.
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Energy, Technology & Foreign Exchange

The data on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo in accordance
with the provisions of Section 134 of Companies Act 2013
are given in the Annexure - | forming part of this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required
under Listing Agreement is enclosed as Annexure - Il
forming part of this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintain the highest
standard of Corporate Governance and adhere to the
Corporate Governance requirements set out by SEBI. The
Board lays emphasis on transparency and accountability
for the benefit of all stakeholders of the Company. The
Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 has been enclosed as Annexure - llI
forming part of the report.

Code of Conduct

Declaration affirming compliance with the code of conduct
pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(5) The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) is enclosed as Annexure - IV forming part
of this report.

Extract of Annual Return

As provided under Section 92 (3) of the Act, the details of
extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is enclosed as
Annexure V forming part of this report.

Auditors

a) The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has
appointed M/s Anand & Ponnappan (MD 0327),
Chartered Accountants, Chennai, as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the year 2020-21.

b) Mrs. Aruna Prasad Cost Accountant, has been re-
appointed as Cost Auditor of the Company for the year
2020-21.

c) In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder,
a Secretarial Report in the prescribed format,
obtained from a Company Secretary in practice, is
required to be annexed to the Board’s Report. In
view thereof, your Board at its 312" meeting held on
13.08.2020 has appointed M/s. V. Esaki & Associates
(M.N0.30353), Practicing Company Secretary, as the
Secretarial Auditor of your Company. The Secretarial
Auditors’ Report (Form No.MR-3) for the year 2019-
20 is enclosed as Annexure - VI forming part of this
report. Further, in terms of SEBI LODR Regulations,
Secretarial Compliance Report has also been obtained
from M/s. V. Esaki & Associates for the year 2019-20.

Audit Committee

In line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act 2013, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 an Audit Committee
of the Board has been constituted. Details of Members
| Meetings of the Audit Committee are elaborated in the
report on Corporate Governance. The Board has accepted
all recommendations of Audit Committee.

Public Deposit

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest
on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of
the balance sheet.

Contract or arrangement with Related Parties

The transactions entered with related parties for the year
under review were on arms length basis and in the ordinary
course of business. The disclosure in Form No.AOC-2
for the transactions with related parties during the period
under review is enclosed as Annexure - VIl of the report.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the CSR
Committee of the Board consisting of 3 or more directors
out of which one director shall be an independent Director.
CSR Committee was present till June 05, 2019. Further,
MFL is vigorously following up with Department of
Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government
of India, for appointment of Independent Directors. Once
the Independent Directors are appointed by DOF, GOI the
Company will reconstitute the CSR Committee as per the
Companies Act, 2013.

However, The Company has carried out the following CSR
activities during the financial year 2019-20. The details
are contained in the Annual Report on CSR activities is
enclosed as Annexure - VIII forming part of this report.

Material changes and commitments

There were no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the company between the
end of financial year (March 31, 2020) and the date of the
report.

CEOICFO Certification

As required by Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Regulation,
a Certificate on the Financial Statements and Cash Flow
Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2019 duly signed by the Chairman & Managing Director
and General Manager - Finance & Accounts (a/c) was
submitted to the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on 28.8.2020 is enclosed as Annexure — IX forming part
of this report.

Certificate from Company Secretary in practice
pursuant to clause 10 of part ¢ of schedule V of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

The certificate dated Aug 04, 2020 received from M/s. V
Esaki & Associates, Practicising Company Secretaries,
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the
company have been debarred or disqualification from

being appainted or continuing as Director of the Company
by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any
such Statutory Authority is enclosed as Annexure - X.

Vigil Mechanism

MFL is having vigil mechanism for directors and employees
to report their concerns. The Directors and employees can
approach Chairman Audit Committee of the Board directly
and report their concern in appropriate case. The vigil
mechanism and whistle blower policy is published in the
website of the Company www.madrasfert.co.in.

Prevention of Insider Trading

No instances of insider trading have been reported on MFL
shares till date. None of the directors and key managerial
personnel is holding any shares in MFL. A code of conduct
of prevention of insider trading and code for corporate
disclosure is published in the website of the Company
www.madrasfert.co.in.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wholeheartedly place on record their
appreciation for the continued and unstinted support
of Department of Fertilizers, Government of India,
Government of Tamilnadu, NICO, Financial Institutions,
Banks, Depositors and all stakeholders during the year. It
is most appropriate to mention that the Directors convey
their gratitude to the Department of Fertilizers for settlement
of subsidy bills on priority basis and to the dealers and
farmers for their sustained support to Vijay products. Last
but not the least that your Directors also place on record
their appreciation for the dedication, commitment and
sincere services rendered by the employees for sustained
improvements.

By order of the Board
Chennai U Saravanan
Aug 28, 2020 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07274628
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ANNEXURE - |

THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF DIRECTORS) RULES 1988

Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy.

A. Power and fuel consumption
1. Electricity
(a) Purchased
Unit (lakhs) *
Total amount (X in lakhs)
Rate / unit (%)

* Includes power consumed at TTP, Kodungaiyur

(b) Own generation
(i) Through diesel generator
Units (lakhs)
Diesel consumption (KL)
Units per Itr. of diesel oil
Cost/unit (%)
2. Coal
3. Furnace oil & LSHS
Quantity (tonnes)
Total cost (Z in lakhs)
Average rate (% per tonne)

4. Others/generation:
B. Consumption per unit of production

(@) Product: Ammonia
Electricity (KWH) *
Fuel oil + LSHS (MT)
Naphtha (MT)
*includes own generation

RLNG(MMSCM)

(b) Product: Urea
Electricity (KWH)
Fuel oil + LSHS (MT)
RLNG(MMSCM)

(c) Product: NPK
Electricity (KWH)
Fuel oil + LSHS (MT)

Financial Year
2019-20

878.628
6913.768
7.87

25.968
779.040
3.333

20.56

Not applicable

35572
10002.381
38118.69

Nil

FICC Norm 2019-20

115.000 113.912
0.2341 0.0787

0.7829

0.001089

202.000 155.478
0.1309 0.0434
0.000092

43.410 63.145
0.0069 0.0087

Previous Year
2018-19

944.428
7361.449
7.79

8.154
244620
3.333

21.36

Not applicable

104195
37765.446
36244.97

Nil

2018-19

130.687
0.2444
0.7608

156.581
0.1211

106.299
0.0087
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FORM - B

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
1 Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company
2 Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D

Future plan of action
Expenditure on R&D

NIL

Capital
Recurring (in lacs)
Total (in lacs)

Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total
turnover

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION:

1 Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, Nil
adaptation and innovation.

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, Nil
e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc.

3 Details of imported technology (imported during the last Nil
5 yrs reckoned from the beginning of the financial year

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

2019-20
1. Activities relating to export NIL
2. Total Foreign Exchange used (R Cr)
Raw Materials 31.18
Components & Spare Parts 4.05
Books & Periodicals / Travel 0.12
Totadl T
ot 35.35
3. Total Foreign Exchange earned NIL
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ANNEXURE - Il
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS

Business

Madras Fertilizers Limited (MFL) incorporated in the year 1966 is a PSU under the administrative control of the Department
of Fertilizers (DOF), Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India.

MFL is engaged in the manufacture of Ammonia, Urea and Complex Fertilizers at Manali, Chennai. MFL is also engaged
in manufacturing Bio-fertilizers and marketing of eco-friendly Organic fertilizers and Neem Pesticides under the brand
name “VIJAY”.

Introduction
Agricultural Situations prevailed :

In Tamilnadu, Shortage of 15-20% rainfall during Kharif'19 impacted the coverage of major crops like paddy, maize,
sugarcane, groundnut, cotton, turmeric, tapioca .etc.. But the rains received during Rabi increased the water level in all
dams particularly Cauvery delta region which is mainly catered by Mettur Dam in which water has been released on 19th
July 2019 against customary date of June 12th. So the major crop paddy acreage in delta districts in different seasons
like Kuruvai, Samba, Thaladi & Navarai was very well covered as per normal acreage, with that the overall crop coverage
and agriculture production in TN was at satisfactory level.

Telenagna State observed 15% deficit rains in kharif'19, however the rains received overall and especially in catchment
areas during Rabi season resulted increased water level in major dams like Nagarjuna Sagar, Sriram Sagar and all minor
reservoirs. With that, the crop coverage was normal during Kharif and 70-80% increase during Rabi 2019-20 observed.

In Andhra Pradesh, with the on the onsetof South-West monsoon on 21st June 2019, Good amount of rainfall received
in overall districts during August & Sept.2019, and North-East monsoon commenced in adjoining areas of Anadhra Pradesh
on 16th October 2019, The water levels in all major reservoirs i.e. Srisailam and Nagarjunasagar reached full level.
Overall wide crop coverage during Kharif and Rabi noticed. Paddy area increased and good farm productivity noticed
during Rabi season.

In Karnataka, Monsoon was delayed and very lesser rainfall received between April to July'2019 which affected the sowings
of Potato, Greengram, Maize, Sunflower, Ragi, Cotton. However, from August2019 onwards very good rainfall received
resulted in filling up of all reservoirs i.e., KRS, Kabini, Harangi and Hemavathi. Heavy rainfall in Kodagu, Chickamagalur
and Hassan caused damage to Coffee, Pepper and Potato crops. Thus, 20 — 40% of yields reduced. Due to adequate
water in Reservoirs, crop coverage of Paddy & Sugarcane was normal during summer in irrigated belt. Good consumption
of fertilizer was observed.

North and Central Kerala affected by floods during the month of Jul-Aug'19 due to heavy rains which affected crops like
Cardamom, Banana & Ginger resulted in low yield. Cardamom prices increased to Rs.4000/- per Kg due to low production,
Rubber prices were as low as Rs.120/- per Kg resulting in slipping of fertilizer application. Kole paddy area reduced and
summer paddy area was normal in Kerala.
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Fertilizer Sector (Lac MT)
UREA NPK
PRODUCT
2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20
Sales in MFL Marketing Territory 50.96 56.31 40.99 49.33
MFL Sales 4.19 3.24 0.27 0.65

For Complex fertilizers, NBS is applicable from 1.4.2010 where subsidy is being fixed by Government on yearly basis and
the MRP is allowed to be fixed by manufacturers based on market dynamics. During the year 2019-20, the subsidy for
17-17-17 allowed was Rs.7691/- as same as 2018-19.

The consumption of UREA and NP/NPK has increased in MFL'’s territory because of favorable agricultural situation
prevailed. The consumption of UREA has increased in MFL's territory over CPLY by 10.5% and NPK/NPKS by 20.3%
over CPLY. MFL’s market share on Urea has decreased from 8.24% to 5.75% due to lack of production in extension of
Feedstock conversion process till July 2019 and the share of NPK has increased from 0.67% to 1.33% in MFL territory

g

*  During the year, MFL achieved Rail : Road ratio of 83:17 for Urea movement compared to CPLY of 75:25 which is an
ever highest achievement against the DoF norms of 80:20.

53

&

MFL Drastically reduced the rebates. By excluding interest rebates offered for Trade advance already collected, we
allowed only Rs.0.65 lakhs against CPLY of Rs.36.54 lakhs, Rs.12.15 Crores during 2018-19, thereby a huge outgo
on marketing costs has been saved.

5

S

No Major credit periods was offered by MFL during the financial year, whereas Competitors offered various discounts/
rebates and extended credit facilities very liberally.

g

.

"

Achieved 100 % for 2nd consecutive year that, all the sales transactions done by MFL were made thru RTGS only.

-

Global Scenario

During 2019-20, the International FoB price of Urea was in comfortable trend compared to  2018-19. It was USD 262
PMT during April'19, reached a high of USD 294 PMT by July’19, subsequently reduced to 250 USD PMT in Dec'19 and
finally settled at USD 257 PMT during Jan-Mar'2020. This is in comparison with previous year range of USD 260-356
PMT.

Phosphoric acid CFR price was in downward trend. It was USD 728 PMT during April 2019 and subsequently started
reducing every quarter and finally settled at USD 590 PMT during Jan-Mar’2020. This is in comparison with previous year
range of USD 678-768 PMT.

MOP CFR price was USD 290 PMT during Apr-Oct'2019 and remained stable during the year and finally settled at USD
280 PMT during Nov'19 — Mar'2020. This is in comparison with previous year range of USD 240-290 PMT.
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Production, Imports and Consumption of Major Fertilizers (All India Basis)

The figures of production, imports and consumption of major fertilizers viz. Urea, complexes in India for the years 2018-19

and 2019-20 are given below:
(Lakh MT)
PRODUCT UREA DAP NP/NPK (Other than DAP) MOP *
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 | 2019-20
Production 238.99 244.55 38.98 45.50 89.79 86.93
Imports 74.81 91.23 66.02 48.70 5.46 7.46 4214 36.70
Consumption 320.13 336.95 87.34 100.99 90.41 98.57 27.34 27.87
* For direct application only, Excludes supply to NPK/Complex fertilizers units.
MFL Production of Urea / NP / NPK Fertilizers (Lakh MT)
Year 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
NC UREA 4.07 4.68 4.19 3.94 345
NP/NPK 0.35 0.49 0.62 0.52 0.65
Production of Vijay Bio Fertilizers (MT)
Year 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Quantity 349.14 276.52 110.74 83.00 150 46.400
All India Demand Forecast For Fertilizer Nutrients for the Periods 2019-20 to 2021-22 (Lakh MT)
Period N P K Total Ratio (NPK)
2019-20 (Est.) ¥ 191.48 76.62 26.07 29417 7.3:2.9:1
2020-21 194.09 77.63 2717 298.89 7.1:2.9:1
2021-22 196.42 79.12 28.12 303.65 7.0:2.8:1
* DBT sale
All India Product-Wise Demand Forecast For 2020-21 To 2021-22 (Lakh MT)
PERIOD UREA DAP SSP MOP COMPLEX
FERTILIZERS
2019-20 (Est.)* 336.95 100.10 44.03 27.87 98.57
2020-21 340.55 102.31 4512 29.30 101.51
2021-22 343.82 104.32 46.48 30.41 103.03
*DBT sale

The Demand forecast for fertilizers and corresponding nutrients are based on onset of monsoon, availability of irrigation,
production, imports, cropping patten etc.. and itis based on existing product nutrient ratio also. However, with Nutrient
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Based subsidy scheme and programs like soil health management and promotion of balanced fertilizer nutrients
application, the demand for complex fertilizers will get rationalized in the coming years.

Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) For Phosphatic & Potassic Fertilizers

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

The Government of India intfroduced the Nutrient Based Subsidy Phase-I with effect from 1.4.2010. This scheme is
applicable for DAP, MOP, MAP, SSP, TSP and for other twelve grades of Complex fertilizers.

Under NBS, the subsidy is fixed for the year without any escalation / de-escalation and market price is open. The
manufacturers are having freedom to fix the reasonable market price based on input prices and they are required to print
Maximum Retail Price (MRP) along with applicable NBS per bag on each fertilizer bag.

The per kg Nutrient Based Subsidy for Nutrients ‘N’ ‘P’ ‘K’ for 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 is given below:

SI.No. Nutrients 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
1 N 18.901 18.901 18.789
2 P 15.216 15.216 14.888
3 K 11.124 11.124 10.116
4 S 2.7122 3.562 2.374

Accordingly, NBS was finalized for different P&K fertilizers and additional subsidy was given for fortified fertilizers with
secondary & micro-nutrients like Sulphur, Boron & Zinc. However, the additional compensation for using Naphtha based
Captive Ammonia by MFL has not been announced since 1.4.2012 to till the date of feed stock conversion executed which
is under consideration of GOI.

For the current year 2020-21, GOI has fixed Rs.7445/- as subsidy for 17-17-17 against the CPLY of Rs.7691/- which is a
reduction of Rs.246/- MT

Risk Management

Major challenges that fertilizer industry is facing are increasingly volatile International market for fertilizers and raw
materials, steep depreciation in rupee value, increasing prices of NPK fertilizers due to new NBS policy and rise in the
working capital requirements of fertilizer firms in addition to the historical challenges associated with the rural markets. The
Company has a well laid down Risk Management System with Risk Assessment & Risk Mitigation procedures to evolve
suitable strategies for mitigating associated risks through better management practices and achieve corporate objectives.

The identified potential risks such as Operational, Input, Utilities, Project Implementation, Business, Competition, Assets,
Internal Control, Environmental, Financial, Human Resources, Legal, Regulatory, MIS and Market Risks and their impact
on the Company’s performance and Stakeholders’ interest is assessed on continual manner. The reporting of Risk
Assessment and Risk Mitigations under the policy is reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board periodically.

Internal Control System

The Company has an Internal Control System designed to ensure security of the assets of the Company and efficiency of
operations. The Internal Control System includes proper delegation of authority, supervision, Online Integration System
(OLIS) and checks and procedures through documented policy guidelines and manuals.
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The Company has an Internal Audit function, managed by a team of professionals, which is empowered to examine the
adequacy and compliance with the policies, procedures and statutory requirements. Internal Audit conducts regular audit
across Company’s operations and the management duly considers and takes appropriate action on the recommendations
made by the Government Auditors, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
for the improvement of the same.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the work place and has following the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

Internal Compliance Committee (ICC) is in place at MFL to redress compliants received regarding sexual harassment.
All women associates (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) as well as any woman visiting the Company’s
premises are covered under this provision.

Summary of sexual harassment issues raised, attended and dispenses during the financial year 2019-20 :

No. of complaints received . Nil
No. of complaints disposed off . Nil
No. of cases pending for more than 90 days ~ :  Nil
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ANNEXURE - Il
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Madras Fertilizers Limited (‘the Company”),
for the year ended on 31st March, 2020, as stipulated in Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said Company with the stock exchanges.

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination
was limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

3. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations
made by the Directors and the management, We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for J.V. Ramanujam & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.02947S
Place: Chennai (Sri Narayana Jakhotia)
Date: June 19, 2020 Partner
M. No : 233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAI9625

ANNEXURE -IV

Declaration affirming Compliance with the Code of Conduct in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board had laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The code
of conduct is posted on the website of the Company.

All the Board Members and Senior Management personnel affirmed compliance with the code for the financial year 2019-20.

Chennai U Saravanan
Aug 28, 2020 Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 07274628

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20



...

W MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company’s Philosophy

The Company adopts well-established corporate governance principles and practices developed over a period of time,
which are constantly updated in the changing scenario. The Company’s citizen charter provides for transparency, integrity
and accountability in all spheres of corporate functions. The Company’s Corporate Governance principle and practice
include internal empowerment of middle level Officers.

Your Company is in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

Board of Directors

Composition

At present the strength of the Board comprises 6 members with varied and rich experience. Chairman and Managing
Director and Director (Technical) are Executive Directors and all other Directors are Non-Executive Directors. The Board
of Directors comprise of Two GOl Nominee Directors and Two functional Directors viz. Director — Technical and CMD
appointed by the Government of India, three Directors appointed by the Naftiran Intertrade Co. Ltd., Co-Promoter and
four independent Non-official directors appointed by the Government of India.

Other Details relating to the Board

Details regarding tenure, number of other Directorships/Committee Memberships (viz. Audit Committee and Shareholders
Grievance Committee as per SEBI's Corporate Governance Code) held by Directors during the year 2019-20 are tabulated
below:

SNo Director Category Tenure _ In pther Boards / Qommittges .
T From To Director-ship | Member-ship | Chairman- ship
1 |Shri U Saravanan CMD 01.11.2018 | Continuing 2 - -
(DIN 07274628)
2 |Shri Siya Sharan NED-Govt. Nominee |21.12.2018 |**
(DIN 07401363)
3 |Shri Lalsanglur NED-Govt. Nominee |10.04.2018 |Continuing 1
(DIN 08118636)
4 | Shri Harsh Malhotra Director (Technical) |22.07.2019 |Continuing 1
(DIN_08520873)
5 | Shri Mohammad Bagher [NED-NICO Nominee |18.02.2017 |Continuing 1
Dakhili (DIN 07704367)
6 |Shri Babak Bagherpour |NED-NICO Nominee |23.10.2018 |Continuing 1

(DIN_08341090)
7 |Shri Farzad Bahrami NED-NICO Nominee |18.02.2017 |Continuing
Bavani (DIN 05352239)

8 |CA Sunil Vashisht Non-official Director [06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 01967138)

9 |DrHemantAThakore |Non-official Director |06.06.2016 [05.06.2019
(DIN 07565337)

10 |Shri C Ramesh Non-official Director [06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 06558099)

11 |Smt.Vanathi Srinivasan |Non-official Director [06.06.2016 |05.06.2019
(DIN 07614954)

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20



...

W MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Meetings Held

During the year, Five (5) meetings of the Board were held on 27.05.2019, 14.08.2019, 19.09.2019, 08.11.2019,
07.02.2020. The Annual General Meeting was held on 19" September 2019. Details of attendance of directors at the
Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting are as follows:-

Board Meetings Whether
] Tenure during respective attended last
SNo. Director Category tenure of Directors | AGM held on
From To Held | Attended 19.09.2019
1 Shri U Saravanan CMD 01.11.2018 Continuing 5 5 Yes
2 Shri Siya Sharan NED-Gowt. 21.12.2018 * 5 1 No
Nominee
3 Shri Lalsanglur NED-Govt. 10.04.2018 Continuing 5 4 No
Nominee
4 Shri Harsh Malhotra Director 22.07.2019 Continuing 4 4 Yes
(Technical)
5 Shri Mohammad NED-NICO 18.02.2017 Continuing 5 1 No
Bagher Dakhili Nominee
6 Shri Babak Bagherpour | NED-NICO 23.10.2018 Continuing 5 2 No
Nominee
7 Shri Farzad Bahrami NED-NICO 18.02.2017 Continuing 5 - No
Bavani Nominee
8 CA Sunil Vashisht Non-official 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 NA
Director
9 Dr Hemant A Thakore | Non-official 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 NA
Director
10 Shri C Ramesh Non-official 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1 NA
Director
" Smt.Vanathi Srinivasan | Non-official 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 - No
Director
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Audit Committee

During the year 2019-20, the Audit Committee met on Five times i.e. 27.05.2019, 14.08.2019, 19.09.2019, 08.11.2019,
07.02.2020. Details of attendance of the members of Audit Committee Meetings are as follows:-

Name of the Audit Committee Tenure No. of NO'.Of
SNo. Members Status meetings held meetings
From To attended
1 | Shri Lalsanglur Chairman 14.08.2019 Continuing 4 3
2 | ShriU Saravanan Member 14.08.2019 Continuing 4 4
3 | CA Sunil Vashisht Chairman 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
4 | Shri Siya Sharan Member 21.12.2018 ** 5 1
5 | Shri Mohammad Bagher Dakhili Member 18.02.2017 Continuing 5 4
6 | DrHemant A Thakore Member 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
7 | Shri C Ramesh Member 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1 1
8 | Smt.Vanathi Srinivasan Member 06.06.2016 05.06.2019 1

** Shri Siya Sharan (DIN No.07401363) communicated vide his letter No.Or.AO/Fert/2019-20/P.File (CCA) dated July 31, 2019 that
he was relived from the Post of Chief Controller of Accounts of DOF, GOl and hence he has relinquished his charges as GOl Nominee
Director on the Board of MFL effective 31.07.2019. However, an Office Order from Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals
& Fertilizers, Government of India is awaited.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Being a Central Public Sector Undertaking, the Managerial Remunerations for the executives are fixed by the Government
of India.

Payment of remuneration to the Chairman and Managing Director is as per the terms and conditions of appointment by
the Government of India and approved by the Board.

The aggregate value of the salary, incentives, perquisites and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors is
373,70,390/-.

No remuneration is paid (other than sitting fee) to non-executive directors for attending the Board / Committee Meetings
during the year.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

For the year 2019-20, one meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 07.02.2020 as below:

Name of the Stakeholders Tenure No. of meetings
S.No. o . Status
Relationship Committee Members From To held
1 Shri Mohammad Bagher Dakhili Chairman 18.02.2017 Continuing
2 | Shri U Saravanan Member 13.08.2015 Continuing 1
3 Shri Lalsanglur Chairman/ 10.04.2018 Continuing 1
Member
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The scope and function of the Committee is as per Clause 20 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

For the year, 11 Share Transfer Committee Meetings have been held to consider share transfer and other share related
matters.

Total number of complaints redressed by the Company and Share Transfer Agents during the period was 127 which include
attending Loss of Share Certificate, Issue of Duplicate Share Certificate, Nomination and Procedure for transmission of
shares, etc. All the complaints were redressed in full and there is no pending as of March 31, 2020.

Compliance Officer: Dr Girish Kumar, has been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer effective
August 14, 2019.

General Body Meetings

The venue and the starting time of the last three Annual General Meetings were :

Year Venue Date Time

2018-2019 Narada Gana Sabha 19/09/2019 11.30 A.M.
No.314, TTK Road (Thursday)
Alwarpet
Chennai 600018

2017-2018 MFL Training Centre Auditorium 26/09/2018 11.30 A.M.
(North Gate Entrance) (Wednesday)
MFL Plant
Manali,
Chennai - 600 068

2016-2017 Rajah Annamalai Mandram (Tamil Isai Sangam) 22/09/2017 02.30 P.M.
5, Esplanade Road (Friday)
Chennai 600 108

During the year under review, three special resolutions were passed through postal ballot as below:

Date of Passing Purpose Votes in favour of Resolution Votes against the resolution
of Resolution No.of votes % total votes No. of votes | % to total votes

13.08.2019 Sale of 70 Acres of Land 137515303 99.98 28505 0.02

13.08.2019 Amendment to Articles of Association of 137525568 99.99 17740 0.01
the Company in compliance with Minimum
Public Shareholding requirement

13.08.2019 Adoption of Articles of Association as per 137525668 99.99 17640 0.01
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

In compliance with provisions of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company had provided e-voting facility to its shareholders to cast their votes electronically
through the NSDL e-voting platform. Postal ballot forms and business reply envelopes were sent to shareholders to
enable them to cast their vote in writing on the postal ballot. The Company also published a notice in the newspapers
declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as mandated under the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable Rules.
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The Company had appointed Mr. C Prabhakar, Partner of BP Associates, Company Secretaries, Chennai as the
Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer submitted his report
to the Chairman, after completion of the scrutiny and the results of voting by posting ballot were then announced by
the Chairman/ Authorised offices. The voting results were sent to the Stock Exchange and displayed on the Company's
website. The date of declaration of the results by the Company is deemed to be the date of passing of the resolutions.

Related Party Transactions :

A transaction with a related party shall be considered material, if the transaction(s) entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during the financial year, exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company.

All related party transactions including the one existing with the Chennai Petroleum Corporation Ltd. (CPCL) that were
entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in ordinary course of business of the Company.
During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which
could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2019-20 which were in
conflict with the interest of the Company.

Whistle Blower / Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and adopted a whistle blower policy, pursuant to which whistle blowers
can report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy. The mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who use this mechanism.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on matters related to the capital market during the last three
years and there were no penalties, strictures imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority.

Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment-free workplace for every individual working in
the Company. The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the aforesaid Act and the Rules framed
thereunder, including constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC).

Means of Communication
Whether half-yearly report sent to each household of shareholders: No.
Quarterly Financial Results :

Quarterly Financial results are published in one National Daily, Financial Express and one Regional Daily Maalaisudar.
The financial results are made available on the Company’s website: www.madrasfert.co.in.

Whether any presentation made to institutional investors or to the analyst: No.
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General Shareholders Information

Annual General Meeting, Date, Time and Venue:

AGM Date : December 29, 2020
Time . 11.00 a.m.
Venue . Video Conferencing / OAVM

Financial Year : April 2019 — March 2020

Book Closure Date : 23.12.2020 To 29.12.2020 (both days inclusive)
Dividend Payment : Nil

Whether Management Discussion and Analysis is part of this report: Yes
Listing on Stock Exchanges: ~ National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
The Company has paid the listing fees to the stock exchange in time.
Stock Code / Symbol :

National Stock Exchange of IndiaLtd :  MADRASFERT

High / Low share prices during the year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd

Month NSE High | NSELow | S&P CN)§ Nifty | S & P CNX Nifty Quantity Value
® ® Index High Index Low (% lakh)

Apr 2019 23.40 19.00 11856.15 11549.10 2777410 607.46
May 26.90 18.25 12041.15 11108.30 4304399 1008.33
Jun 26.95 2110 12103.05 11625.10 3074926 748.51
Jul 31.50 20.45 11981.75 10999.40 14054682 3723.85
Aug 23.00 17.60 11181.45 10637.15 2154175 44423
Sep 25.40 18.50 11694.85 10670.25 6748720 1524.39
Oct 23.00 19.55 11945.00 11090.15 4581335 953.55
Nov 21.25 19.05 12158.80 11802.65 2831149 567.92
Dec 20.95 18.20 12293.90 11832.30 2427972 476.62
Jan 2020 23.65 19.30 12430.50 11929.60 7914022 1701.63
Feb 21.85 13.60 12246.70 11175.05 2741200 495.96
Mar 14.55 9.00 11433.00 7511.10 2465399 282.87
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Share Transfer System

M/s Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited, a SEBI Registered Share Transfer Agent has been
assigned the Share Transfer and Depository Registry related functions. Share Transfer Committee attends to share
transfer formalities every fortnight.

Share Transfer Agent & Depository Registry:

M/s Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited
2" Floor, Kences Towers

No. 1, Ramakrishna Street

Off: North Usman Road

T Nagar, Chennai 600 017

Phone 091-044 - 2814 0801 to 803

Email : corpserv@integratedindia.in

Dematerialisation of Shares:

MFL has connectivity with both NSDL and CDSL

ISIN No : INE 414A01015

15,72,88,798 equity shares (representing 97.63 % of total shares) have been dematerialized as of March 31, 2020. In
terms of number of shareholders, 75.81% of shareholders have dematted their shares.

Distribution of Shareholding:

The distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Dist Physical NSDL CDSL Total
is

Count| Shares % |Count| Shares % |Count| Shares | % |Count| Shares %
Up to 500 427 681| 0.00| 3241 51763| 0.03| 3102 54001| 0.03| 6770 106445| 0.06

501 - 1000 131 13088| 0.01] 2039 195247 0.12| 1748| 164359| 0.10] 3918 372694 | 0.23
1001-2000 | 3298| 659600| 0.41| 2275 427677| 0.27] 1615] 291035| 0.18] 7188 1378312 0.86
2001 - 3000 439 131700| 0.08| 1026 288465| 0.18| 783 214414| 0.13| 2248 634579 0.39
3001 - 4000 433 173133| 0.11| 554 214222 013| 404| 152283 0.09| 1391 539638 | 0.33
4001-5000 | 1485| 742500| 0.46| 1562 774933 048] 991| 489983| 0.30| 4038 2007416] 1.24
5001-10000| 1600| 1564200| 0.97| 2079| 1879475 1.17| 1270| 1090942| 0.68| 4949 4534617 2.82
Above 10000 | 232 527600| 0.33| 1539| 147007430| 91.25| 987| 3992569 | 2.48| 2758| 151527599 | 94.07
Grand Total | 8045| 3812502| 2.37|14315| 150839212 | 93.63 |10900| 6449586 | 3.99| 33260 | 161101300 100.00
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CATEGORY OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON MARCH 31, 2020 AS FOLLOWS:

PHYSICAL ELECTRONIC TOTAL

S 0

Category Noof | 2Of %of | Noof | %of %of | No.of | %of % of
N 0.0 0 0 0.0 00 0 O 0. 0 00 0 0
° Holders h:rlg_ Shares Shares | Holders | holders Shares Shares | Holders | holders Shares Shares
1 | BANK'S 13 0.04| 34600 0.02 1 0.00 50 Nil 14 0.04 34650 0.02
2 | BODIES CORPORATE 78 0.23| 134000| 0.08 211 0.63| 1418622 0.88 289 0.87| 1552622 0.96
3 | CLEARING MEMBER Nil Nil Nil Nil 61 0.18 131450 0.08 61 0.18 131450 0.08
4 | GOVERNMENT/PROMOTERS Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 0.00 | 95851700 | 59.50 1 0.00 | 95851700 | 59.50
5 | EMPLOYEES 83 0.25| 70900 0.04 Nil Nil Nil Nil 83 0.25 70900 0.44
6 | FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 0.00 63920 0.04 1 0.00 63920 0.04
7 | MUTUAL FUND 1 0.00 2400 0.00 Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 0.00 2400 0.00
8 |NRI Nil Nil Nil Nil 147 0.44 414359 0.26 147 0.44 414359 0.26
9 | FOREIGN PROMOTERS Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 0.00 | 41516500 | 25.77 1 0.00 | 41516500 | 25.77
10 | RESIDENT INDIAN 7870 | 23.66 (3570602 | 222| 24790| 7453| 17861197 | 11.09| 32660 98.20 | 21431799 | 13.30
11 | NBFCs Nil Nil Nil Nil 2 0.01 31000 0.02 2 0.01 31000 0.02

TOTAL 8045| 24193812502 | 2.37| 25215| 75.81|157288798| 97.63| 33260| 100.00 | 161101300 | 100.00
MODEWISE SHAREHOLDINGS AS ON 31-03-2020

MODE COUNT SHARES %
PHYSICAL 8045 3812502 2.37
NSDL 14315 150839212 93.63
CDSL 10900 6449586 3.99
GRAND TOTAL 33260 161101300 100.00
CATEGORY COUNT SHARES %

GOl 1 95851700 59.50
NAFTIRAN INTER TRADE COMPANY LTD 1 41516500 25.77
OTHERS 33258 23733100 14.73
GRAND TOTAL 33260 161101300 100.00

Plant Location : Manali, Chennai 600 068

The Address for correspondence is

Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary
Madras Fertilizers Limited
Manali, Chennai 600 068
Tel
Email

044 2594 2281 / 044 25945489
cs@madrasfert.co.in / cosec@madrasfert.co.in
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ANNEXURE -V
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration)

Rules, 2014.
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 | CIN L32201TN1966G0I005469

2 | Registration Date 12/8/1966

3 | Name of the Company MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

4 | Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by shares / Central Public Sector
Undertaking

5 | Address of the Registered office & contact details PostBag No.2, Manali, Chennai 600068 Tel.044-25942281/
25945203

6 | Whether listed company Yes

7 | Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer | M/s. Integrated Registry Management Services Private

Agent, if any. Ltd, Kences Towers, 2nd Floor, 1, Ramakrishna Street, Off.

North Usman Road, T Nagar, Chennai 600017 Tel.No.044-
28140801 to 803, Email : corpserv@integratedindia.in

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

- . 0
S. Name and Descrlpthn of main NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the
No. products / services Company
1 Chemical Fertilizers 2012 99%
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S. Name and address of the Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of shares Applicable
CIN/GLN . .
No. Company Associate held Section
1 NA NA NA NA NA
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] % Change
Category of Shareholders % of Total %of | duringthe
Demat | Physical Total Shares Demat Physical Total Total year
Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 9,58,51,700 -| 958,561,700 59.50%| 9,58,51,700 -| 9,58,51,700{ 59.50% 0.00%

b) Central Govt

¢) State Govi(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other
Sub Total (A) (1) 9,58,51,700 -| 9,58,51,700{ 59.50%| 9,58,51,700 -| 9,58,51,700| 59.50% 0.00%
(2) Foreign

a) NRI Individuals

b) Other Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp. 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500]  25.77%| 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500{ 25.77% 0.00%

d) Any other
Sub Total (A) (2) 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500]  25.77%| 4,15,16,500 -| 4,15,16,500{ 25.77% 0.00%
TOTAL (A) 13,73,68,200 -1 13,73,68,200|  85.27%| 13,73,68,200 -1 13,73,68,200|  85.27% 0.00%

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 2,400 2,400 0.00% 2,400 2,400)  0.00% 0.00%

b) Banks / FI 76,058] 34,600]  1,10,658]  0.07% 84,161] 34,600 118,761 0.07% 7.32%

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):- 76,058] 37,000] 113,058  0.07% 84161] 37,0000 121,161] 0.08% 117%
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No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] % Change
Category of Shareholders 9% of Total during the
Demat | Physical Total Demat Physical Total year
Shares
Shares
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 13,36,863| 1,34,000] 14,70,863|  0.91%| 14,27431| 1340000 1561431 097% 6.16%
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders holding | 4 1o 70 1e 37 19.169| 15698357  9.74%| 1,25.16,663| 3641502 16158165 1003%|  2.93%
nominal share capital
upto X 1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders holdng | - gq 17 739 5917730 367%| 5346684 5346684 332%  -965%
nominal share capital
in excess of X 1 lakh
¢) Others (specify) 5,33,092 533,092  0.33%| 545659 545659  0.34% 2.36%
Sub-total (B)(2)-- 1,97,66,873| 38,53,169| 2,36,20,042| 14.66%| 1,98,36,437| 37,75502| 2,36,11,939] 14.66% -0.03%
Total Public (B) 1,98,42,931] 38,90,169| 2,37,33,100] 14.73%| 1,99,20,598| 38,12,502| 2,37,33,100] 14.73% 0.00%
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 15,72,11,131| 38,90,169| 16,11,01,300| 100.00%| 15,72,88,798| 38,12,502| 16,11,01,300| 100.00% 0.00%

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in

No.of | %oftotal | % of Shares No. of % of total | % of Shares | shareholding
, Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledged / during the
SN | Shareholder's Name of the encum%ered of the encumgbered year
Company | to total shares Company to total
shares
1 | The President of India | 9,58,51,700|  59.50% 0| 9,58,51,700 59.50% 0.00%
2 | Naftiran Inter Trade
Company Ltd 41516500 25.77% 0| 4,15,16,500 25.77% 0.00%

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during

SN Particulars Date | Reason of the year the year ;
% of total % of total
No. of shares No. of shares
shares shares
1 | At the beginning of the year No change during the year
2 | Changes during the year No change during the year
3 | Atthe end of the year No change during the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders as on March 31, 2020
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding Shareholding
S No For each of the Top 10 shareholders at the beginning of the year at the end of the year
Name PAN No. No. of shares |% of total shares|No. of shares |% of total shares

1 |KALIRAM GUPTA AHNPG3758M 13,42,087 0.83 10,52,587 0.65

2 |SHAKUNTLA GUPTA AHNPG3753A 10,95,420 0.68 11,05,420 0.69

3 |BHARAT JAMNADAS DATTANI AABPD6008J 1,78,458 0.11 0 0.00

4 |BHARAT JAMNADAS DATTANI AAAHB0495E 1,74,667 0.11 0 0.00

5 |BHARATI BHARAT DATTANI AAAPD4798E 1,74,463 0.11 0 0.00

6 |RUCHIT BHARAT PATEL ANDPP9202F 1,70,226 0.11 1,70,226 0.11

7 |KARVY STOCK BROKING LIMITED-  |AABCK5190K 1,62,934 0.10 11,056 0.01
CLIENT ACCOUNT-BSE CM

8 |INDIAN SYNTAS INVESTMENTS AAACI775K 1,31,000 0.08 1,31,000 0.08
PRIVATE LIMITED

9 |USDPROJECTS AND FINANCE AAACU4199B 1,24,000 0.08 1,24,000 0.08
LIMITED

10 |LAL TOLANI AFJPT3594A 1,03,245 0.06 1,03,245 0.06

11 |MOTILAL OSWAL FINANCIAL AAECM2876P 91,537 0.06 50,438 0.03
SERVICES LTD-CLIENT ACCOUNT

12 |PATTABHI RAMARAJU SARIKONDA |AGOPS2619F 87,000 0.05 0 0.00

13 |VINOD KUMAR AGGARWAL AAGPAT7302R 78,000 0.05 78,000 0.05

14 |BALAJIV PRASAD ADMPV2744F 70,000 0.04 70,000 0.04

15 |BANSURI MRUGANKUMAR MEHTA  [AGSPD0605J 69,604 0.04 0 0.00

16 |GLOBE CAPITAL MARKET LIMITED  |AAACG4267G 17,631 0.01 2,26,364 0.14

17 |KRISHNA INDIA PRIVATE LTD. AAACK4798C 34,114 0.02 1,68,884 0.11

18 |ADROIT FINANCIAL SERVICES PVT |AABCA1156D 25,325 0.02 1,51,751 0.09
LTD

19 |MAYRA PACKAGINGS PRIVATE AAICM5670K 0 0.00 92,530 0.06
LIMITED

20 |R.K.GUPTAHUF AANHR8767C 22,645 0.01 79,948 0.05

21 |IRUKUMATI CHINNAKONDAIAH AGWPC0724H 40,005 0.03 70,005 0.04

22 |JANKIRAM A AAAPJ3688D 51,000 0.03 68,000 0.04

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
Shareholding of each the year the year
SN | Directors and each Key | Date | Reason . .
Managerial Personnel No. of shares % of tota No. of shares % of tota
shares shares
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. % in Lacs)
Particulars Secured;.:::;tzxcludlng Unsecured Loans Deposits In delzzzlness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 55,424.00 55,424.00
ii) Interest due but not paid 60,266.00 60,266.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,555.00 1,555.00
Total (i+ii+ii) 1,17,245.00 1,17,245.00
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition - Interest due but not paid 5,458.00 5,458.00
* Reduction
Net Change 5,458.00 5,458.00
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 55,424.00 55,424.00
ii) Interest due but not paid 65,724.00 65,724.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,555.00 1,555.00
Total (i+ii+ii) 1,22,703.00 1,22,703.00
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (in¥)
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Uél?:lilr'::: Zn g?;:i?{.‘rx;m?:ﬁ)’
Managing Director
1 | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 28,69,377.00 16,22,335.00
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 1,80,000.00 Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil
2 | Stock Option Nil Nil
Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 | Commission
- as % of profit Nil Nil
- others, specify Nil Nil
5 | Others, please specify 22,35,891.00 4,62,787.00
Total (A) 52,85,268.00 20,85,122.00
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total tt\mount
Paid (%)
Independent Directors
1. CA. Sunil Vashisht 20,000.00
. . , - 2. Dr. Hemant A Thakore 20,000.00
1 Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings - Sitting Fee 3 Shii. C. Ramesh 20.000.00
4. Smt. Vanathi Srinivasan Nil
Commission
Others, please specify -
Total (1) 60,000.00
Other Non-Executive Directors -
Fee for attending board committee meetings
Commission
2 | Others, please specify
Total (2) -
Total (B)=(1+2) 60,000.00
Total Managerial Remuneration 60,000.00
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD (ing)
Shri V Muralidharan, Dr. Girish Kumar,
. . GM (F&A) & Compan Company Secreta
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Secre(tary z Upto Aﬂg 1y3, (EffecF;ivey August 1?1,,
2019) 2019)
1 [ Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- 8,68,140.00 8,56,439.00
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 44,843.00
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil
2 | Stock Option Nil Nil
3 | Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 | Commission
- as % of profit Nil Nil
- others, specify Nil Nil
5 | Others, please specify 3,33,745.00 3,82,921.00
Total 12,46,728.00 12,39,360.00
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section .
. . Authority Appeal made,
Type coorihe | Brief Description | Dl Of Penalty | Punishmentl | yon ey | if any (give
ompanies Compounding fees imposed COURT] Details)
Act
A. COMPANY
Imposed penalty for
Section 17(1) | non compliance by National
of SEBI LODR | the company with Penalty for the quarter ended June Stock Nil
Regulations | regard to Regulation {2019 ¥ 5,31,000/- was paid. Exchande
2015 17(1) of SEBI LODR g
Regulations, 2015
Penalt
! samon s el
18(1) and the company with Penalty for the quarter ended National
(1)/(2) of reqard to Reaulation September 2019  6,65,520/- and Stock Nil
SEBI LODR g 9 for the quarter ended December %
Regulations | /41, 18(1)and 19 1927 640/ was paid Exchange
2015 (1)(2) of SEBILODR |™" " '
Regulations, 2015
Based on the
appeal made by
the Company,
Imposed penalty for I,\(i,ﬁeEr\;\ll((i)el\}g%;
Listing non compliance of National Ll ST—SOi:’ /REG-
Regulation 34 | Listing Regulation Penalty of % 75,520/- was paid. Stock 34/REV/98622
of SEBI LODR | 34 of SEBI LODR Exchange dated Jan 01
Regulations, 2015 2020 with dra\;vn
the fine levied
under Reg 34 of
SEBI LODR.
TNPCB directed
the Company to .
Section 20 of | deposit % 1 Cr as g%m:lti':ﬁdu
the National | Interim Enviromental Interim Environmental Control Board | .
Green Compensaton for | 5 ooncation paid 2 1.00Cr. | (TNPCB), | I
Tribunal Act, | Imposed penalty P P ' ' Ambatt '
2010 for violation of crr? atiur,
. ennai
Environmental
Standards.
Punishment Nil
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment Nil
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment Nil
Compounding
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ANNEXURE - VI

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
Manali
Chennai - 600 068

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable Statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by M/s. MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED [CIN: L32201TN1966G0I1005469] (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED books, papers, Minutes book, forms and Returns filed
and secretarial and other records maintained by the company and based on the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2020 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has Board-processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by M/s.
MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31/03/2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

The company has complied with the procedure laid under the Companies Act, 2013
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under.
(

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993.
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e) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

w =

(vi) As informed to me the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under
Factories Act, 1948
Industrial Dispute Act, 1947
Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948
Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
Shop & Establishment Act, 1948
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
. The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act, 1986
. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946
. The Employee Compensation Act, 1923
. The Apprentices Act, 1961.
. The Environment Protection Act 1986.
. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.
. The Indian Boilers Act 1923.
20. GSTAct 2017
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

© o N o gk~ e D s>

- A A A A A A A A
© 0O N oo o A W NhD =~ O

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation.

» Charges appearing on the Index of Charges are not actual live charges; Company has not filed CHG 4 (towards
Satisfaction of Charges) for most of the Cases. However, it was clarified by the Company that in respect of cases
where charges have been created were fully settled.
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Moreover there was a Fine imposed on the following Non Compliances.
» As per Notice issued by NSE Penalty of % 5,31,000/- was paid,

» As per Notice issued by NSE Penalty for the quarter ended September 2019  6,65,520/- and for the quarter
ended December % 9,77,040/- was paid, for non appointment of Independent Directors on the Board.

» Interim Environmental Compensation paid % 1.00 Cr. against the Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board (TNPCB)
letter T4/TNPCB/F2643/CEPI/EC/AMB/2020-14 dated 28.01.2020.

On account of pandemic "COVID 2019" and nationwide lockdown imposed by governments, the audit process has been
modified, wherein certain documents /records etc were verified in electronic mode, and have relied on the representations
received from the Company for its accuracy and authenticity.

We further report that:

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review are not in
accordance with the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

In view of the above, NSE has levied penalty as referred above. Being a Government Company it has taken up certain
matter with the Department of Fertilizers, Government of India to appoint sufficient number of Independent Directors to
comply with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the Minutes.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events/ actions in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulation, guidelines, etc, having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Yours Faithfully
For V.Esaki & Associates

Company Secretaries

(V.Esaki)

Place : Chennai Proprietor / Membership No: 30353
Date : 04/08/2020 UDIN: A030353B000549377
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To,

Annexure 'A'

The Members,

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
Manali

Chennai - 600 068

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the Secretarial Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Yours Faithfully

For V.Esaki & Associates

Company Secretaries

(V.Esaki)

Place : Chennai Proprietor / Membership No: 30353
Date : 04/08/2020 UDIN: A030353B000549377
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ANNEXURE - VII

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
MANALI, CHENNAI 600 068

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the
Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm length basis.

proviso to section 188

S.No. Particulars Details
a) |Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/trans- action Nil
c) |Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transaction NA
d) |Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any NA
e) |Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NA
f) |Date of approval by the Board NA
g) |Amount paid as advances, if any NA
h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first NA

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis

S.No. | Particulars Details
a) [Name (s) of the related party M/s. Indian Qil Corporation Ltd
Nature of relationship At arm's length price

b) |Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transaction Supplier of LNG

c) |Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/transactions Continuous basis

d) |Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions |Long term contract

e) |Date of approval by the board Based on Gas Sales Agreement dated 06.02.2019

f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

g) [Amountincurred during the year 391428 Cr

Sd/-

Chennai U Saravanan
Aug 28, 2020. Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07274628
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MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

MANALI, CHENNAI 600 068
Annual Report on CSR Activities of MFL

ANNEXURE - VIiI

(Pursuant to Rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014)

1. Abrief outline on Companies CSR Policy

Madras Fertilizers Ltd gives priority on various social responsibility measures for the benefit of weaker section of the
Society and to improve the standard of living of the inhabitant near the factory area. MFL is a sick and loss making
company and hence the provisions of Sub-Section 5 of Section 135 of the Companies Act is not applicable to MFL.
However, the Company is finalising its CSR Policy.

2. Composition of CSR Committee :

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee of the Board consisting of 3 or more directors out of
which one director shall be an independent Director. CSR Committee was present till June 05, 2019. Further, MFL
is vigorously following up with Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India, for
appointment of Independent Directors. Once the Independent Directors are appointed by DOF, GOI the Company will
reconstitute the CSR Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Average net profit of the Company for the :
last three financial years

Prescribed CSR Expenditure

Details of CSR Expenditure for the financial

Not applicable

Not applicable

year 2019-20 As below
Total amount spent for the financial year %9.24 lacs
in lacs)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S.No.| CSR Project or Sector |Project or programs| Amount | Amount spent | Cumulative |  Amount
activity identified | in which | (1) Local area or outlay | onthe projects |expenditure | spent : Direct
the other (budget) | or programs uptothe | orthrough
Project Projector |  sub-heads reporting | implementing
covered | (2) Specifythe | program | : (1) Direct period agency
State and District wise Expenditure
where projects on projects or
or programs was programs (2)
undertaken Overheads
1 Donation of food - Ayyankoli Village, - - - 1.61
materials for flood Nilgiris Dist
affected public in
Nilgiris District
2 | Armed Forces Flag - Tiruvottriyur Taluk - - - 1.00

Day Fund
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in lacs)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S.No.| CSR Project or Sector |Project or programs| Amount | Amount spent | Cumulative |  Amount
activity identified | in which | (1) Local area or outlay | onthe projects | expenditure | spent : Direct
the other (budget) | or programs up tothe | orthrough
Project Projector |  sub-heads reporting | implementing
covered | (2) Specifythe | program | : (1) Direct period agency
State and District wise Expenditure
where projects on projects or
or programs was programs (2)
undertaken Overheads
3 Supply of Potable - Near Manali 543 - - 5.43
Water through Chennai
pipelines to
Harikrishnapuram
Village (Near 500
families)
4 Supply of School - Near Manali - - - 1.20
bags and kits to Chennai
Students of Govt
School at Mathur for
National Unity Day
Celebrations
Total 9.24
Sdl-
U Saravanan
Chennai Chairman & Managing Director
Aug 28, 2020 DIN : 07274628

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20



...

W MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

ANNEXURE - IX

CERTIFICATE BY CEO AND CFO PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS. 2015

The Board of Directors
Madras Fertilizers Limited
Manali, Chennai 600 068

This is to certify that :

(@) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2020 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief,

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements; and

iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
Place : Chennai U Saravanan Priya Ranjan Panda
Date : Aug 28, 2019 Chairman & Managing Director General Manager - F&A (alc)
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ANNEXURE - X
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members,

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Manali

Chennai - 600 068

We have examined the relevant Registers, Records, Forms, Returns and disclosures Received from the Directors of M/s.
MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED, having CIN L32201TN1966G0I1005469, and having registered office at Manali Chennai
600 068 produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation

34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors |dentification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 ULAGANATHAN SARAVANAN 07274628 13/08/2015
2 FARZAD BAHRAMI BAVANI 05352239 18/02/2017
3 | MOHAMMAD BAGHER DAKHILI 07704367 18/02/2017
4 | LALSANGLUR 08118636 10/04/2018
5 | SIYASHARAN 07401363 21/12/2018
6 | BABAK BAGHERPOUR 08341090 23/10/2018
7 HARSH MALHOTRA 08520873 22/07/2019

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For V.Esaki & Associates

Company Secretaries

sd/-

V.Esaki

Membership No : 30353

Place : Chennai CP No: 11022
Date : 04/08/2020 UDIN : A030353B000549740
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ANNUAL BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (ABRR) - FY 2019-20
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

National/International

1 | Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L32201TN1966G01005469
2 | Name of the Company MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED
3 | Registered address POST BOX NO.2
MANALI, CHENNAI 600068
4 | Website www.madrasfert.co.in
5 | E-mailid cs@madrasfert.co.in; cosec@madrasfert.co.in
6 | Financial Year reported 2019-20
7 | Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial Group — 241
activity code-wise) Class — 2412
Sub Class — 24123 — Manufacture of urea and other
organic fertilizers & 24124 - Manufacture of mixed,
compound or complex fertilizers
8 | List three key products/services that the Company Urea & Complex Fertilizers
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)
9 | Total number of locations where business activity is One
undertaken by the Company
(@) Number of International Locations (Provide details
of major 5)
(b) Number of National Locations
10 | Markets served by the Company - Local/State/ States — Tamilnadu, Telengana, Andhra Pradesh,

Kerala, Karnataka and Pondicherry

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

been incurred:-

1 | Paid up Capital (INR) %161.10 Cr
2 | Total Turnover (INR) %1287.39 Cr
3 | Total profit after taxes (INR) (3134.88 Cr)
4 | Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility | ¥ 9.24 lacs
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%)
5 | List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has | Donation of food materials for flood affected public in

Nilgiris District, Contribution to Armed Forces Flag
Day fund, Supply of Potable water through pipelines
to Harikrishnapuram Village and supply of school bags
and kits to students of Government School at Mathur for
National Unity Day celebrations.
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1 | Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ | N.A.
Companies?

2 | Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in | N.A.
the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

3 | Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors | N.A.
etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in
the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate
the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%,
30-60%, More than 60%)]

SECTION D : BR Information

1 | Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR

Details of the Director/ Director responsible for implementation of the BR Policy / Policies

* DIN Number 07274628
* Name Shri U Saravanan
+ Designation Chairman & Managing Director

a) Details of BR head

SI. No. | Particulars Details

1 DIN Number (if applicable) NA

2 Name Dr Girish Kumar

3 Designation Company Secretary
4 Telephone number 044-25945489

5 E-mail ID cs@madrasfert.co.in

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/Policies (Reply in Y/N)
Name of the principles :
P 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability;
P 2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their lifecycle;
P 3 Businesses should promote the well -being of all employees;

P 4 Businesses should respect in the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised

P 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights
P 6 Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

P 7 Businesses when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy should do so in a responsible manner
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P 8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

P 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

audit/evaluation of the working of this policy
by an internal or external agency?

S.No. | Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

1 Do you have a policy/ policies for.... Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y

2 Has the policy being formulated in|Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y
consultation with the relevant stakeholders?

3 Does the policy conform to any national /| Company policies have been formulated in compliance to
international standards? If yes, specify? (50 | applicable statutes / guidelines / rules / regulations of the
words) Government of India. These policies were formulated keeping

in view industry best practices and standards.

4 | Hasthe policy being approved by the Board? | Y |Y [Y |y |y [y [NA |Y |Y
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ | Policies of the Company have been approved by the Board /
CEO/appropriate Board Director? Competent Authorities as per the Board delegated powers.

5 Does the company have a specified |Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y
committee of the Board/ Director/ Official to
oversee the implementation of the policy?

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed | www.madrasfert.co.in
online?

7 Has the policy been formally communicated | Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y
to all relevant internal and external
stakeholders?

8 Does the company have in-house structure | Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y
to implement the policy/policies.

9 Does the Company have a grievance | Y Y Y Y Y Y NA |Y Y
redressal mechanism related to the policy/
policies to address stakeholders’ grievances
related to the policy/policies?

10 Has the company carried out independent | Being a responsible PSU, the Company follows all policies in

working conditions. Company’s operations are audited annually
by internal and external agencies.

Note: P 7 has been marked as NA. The company always complies with all applicable regulations issued by Statutory
bodies. It transparently discloses its environmental and social parameters in public platforms.
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3.

Governance related to BR

*

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR
performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year

Annually.

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How
frequently it is published?

Business Responsibility Report is being published in the annual report may be assessed at the website of our
company www.madrasfert.co.in.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the
Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

Yes. It extends to stakeholders.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
The company has received 127 complaints and all the complaints were redressed in  full (ie. 100%) and there is
no pending as of March 31, 2020.

Principle 2

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns,
risks and/or opportunities.
i. Urea
ii. Complex Fertilizers
iii. Organic Fertilizers

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per

unit of product(optional):

i.  Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value
chain?

ii. The company has taken up various measures for reducing its energy consumption complemented by regular
audit of all its installations.

ii. Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

The company has taken up various measures for reducing its energy consumption complemented by regular
audit of all its installations.
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3.

4.

Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

i. If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

Yes, sustainability and sustainable development has been embedded in work practices as a corporate mantra.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including
communities surrounding their place of work?

Yes, being a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE), the companies procurement policy and practices are guided by
the Government Policies and practices. These are based on transparent procurement mechanisms which promotes
procurement from technically competent suppliers. However, care is also taken for the interest of local suppliers and
contractors within the frame work of the guidelines issued by the Government of India.

i. Ifyes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

The Company has always encouraging and promoting local suppliers in its tendering process as per Government
Guidelines.

ii. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling
of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Yes, solid waste such as condemned equipment and packing materials are auctioned per procedure of the
company and waste water are treated through TTP plant.

Principle 3

N o o kW~

Please indicate the Total number of employees — 571

Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis. 2000 (approx.)
Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees — 42.

Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities - 5

Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management. - Yes

What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee association? — 95%

Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.

No.

Category No. of complaints filed during | No. of complaints pending as
the financial year on end of the financial year

Child labour/ forced labour/involuntary labour

Sexual harassment Nil

Discriminatory employment

8.

What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last
year?

Training has been given to 522 employees during the period April 2019 — March 2020  soft and life skills for the
enduring benefit and development of organisation. i.e. 91.42%.
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Principle 4

1.
2.
3.

Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?
Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Yes the company complies with government directives for upliftment of weaker sections of the society. It is fully
committed to the welfare of marginalised and vulnerable sections of society. The companies has number of polices in
place to address the interest of all the stakeholders. As a CPSE, the company pursues all such polices as mandated
by the Government. The Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development along with host of policies of
the Government of India are directed towards disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised sections of the society.

Principle 5

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/INGOs/Others?

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

All policies of the company take into account the human rights not only employees but also people likely to be affected
by the operations of the company. The company committed to conduct its business operations and strategies with
the universally accepted principles in the area of human rights, child labour, anti corruption and environment. The
company embraces and supports those principles particularly that on human rights viz. businesses should support
and respect the protection of internationally proclaimed human rights and make sure that they are not complicit in
human rights abuses. Company also implemented various inhouse policies like service rules, leave rules. Gratuity
rules, PF rules, etc., to confirm to human rights values. The company has also implemented fair wage policy for
contractors to provide them wages and other statutory and non-statutory benefits.

Principle 6

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

The Company is complying with the provisions of applicable Environmental laws and it extends to Stakeholders.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change,
global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Yet to be undertaken.
Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

Company is following in letter and spirit the applicable Environmental laws. Hence Company has not identified and
assessed potential Environmental risks.

Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

Yet to be undertaken.
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5. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy,

etc. YIN. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page efc.

Yet to be undertaken.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
financial year being reported?
Yes. It is within the permissible limits.

7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction)
as on end of Financial Year.
Nil.

Principle 7

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:
(a) Fertilizer Association of India

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement orimprovement of public good?
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms,
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)
Yes. The broad areas are
a) to promote the balance and efficient use of fertilizer,
b) to encourage the use of more and better plant foods
c) to promote consideration and discussion of all questions that contribute to sound agricultural practices and
d) Ensuring food security through balanced and efficient use of plant nutrients towards advancement / improvement

of public good.

Principle 8

1. Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 87 If yes
details thereof.
Yes

2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/government
structures/any other organization?
Government structures

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
Yes from time to time.

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects-Amount in INR and the details of the

projects undertaken.
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5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community?

Please explain in 50 words, or so.
Ford4 &5

The company has taken steps to ensure the Community development under CSR activities such as donation of food
materials for flood affected public in Nilgiris District, Contribution to Armed Forces Flag Day fund, Supply of Potable
water through pipelines to Harikrishnapuram Village and supply of school bags and kits to students of Government
School at Mathur for National Unity Day celebrations

Principle 9

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

Nil

Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local
laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional information)

Yes.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year.
If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Nil.
Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?

Yes as applicable.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MADRAS FERTILIZERS LTD FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of Madras Fertilizers Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5)
of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated
to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 9 October 2020 which supersedes their earlier Audit
Report dated 28 August 2020.

|, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Madras Fertilizers Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination of some
of the accounting records. The Audit Report has been revised by the statutory auditor to give effect to some of my audit
observations raised during supplementary audit.

In addition, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come
to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and
the related audit report;

A. Comments of Financial Position
(1) Assets
Current Assets
Other Financial Assets
Claims Recoverable (Note 5D) : ¥ 556.04 Crore

The above includes claims recoverable on account of subsidy receivables from Government of India (Gol) after
adjusting revision in subsidy rates for 2019-20 based on de-escalation of input prices of Urea. The adjustment of
% 144.46 crore for de-escalation was made on the basis of rates notified by Gol on 26 February 2020. However,
Company did not consider the subsequent notification of 30 June 2020 issued by Gol carrying revised rates for
escalation / de-escalation claim for 2019-20 . Since notification of 30 June 2020 was issued by Gol before date
of approval of financial statements by Board of Directors of the Company (i.e. 28 August 2020), the adjustment
for de-escalation in input prices should have been made based on rates specified in latest notification of June
2020 instead of February 2020. The de-escalation claims based on rates notified in 30 June 2020 notification
comes to X 129.32 crore.

Non consideration of revised rates of June 2020 notification to calculate de-escalation for 2019-20 has violated
provisions of Ind As-10 and Company’s significant accounting policy — 3 (f). This has resulted in understatement
of ‘Claims Recoverable (Gol Subsidy)' and overstatement of ‘Loss after Tax’ by ¥ 15.14 crore (3 144.46 crore
less % 129.32 crore).
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B.

(i)

(ii)

(2) Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities (Note -14) : ¥ 47.94 Crore

The above does not include an amount of % 4.40 crore being payable to Central Industrial Security Force (CISF)
on account of penal interest upto March 2020 on delayed payment of cost of deployment. Company had shown
the amount under ‘Contingent Liabilities’. As the Company was liable to pay penal interest as per instructions
and CISF had also reiterated its claim for penal interest on 2 April 2020, Company should have made provision
for liability for penal interest in books instead of showing the same under ‘Contingent Liabilities’.

Non-provision of liability for penal interest payable has resulted in understatement of ‘Other Current Liabilities’
and ‘Loss after Tax’ by % 4.40 crore. Further ‘Contingent Liabilities * are overstated by  4.40 crore.

Comments on Disclosure
Notes to Financial Statements

Revenue from Operations (Note-15) : As per procedure prescribed by Department of Fertilizer (DoF), Gol vide
letter No.D(FA)/2016/DBT dated 17 March 2017, Direct Benefit Transfer systems entails 100 per cent payment of
subsidy to the fertilizer manufacturing / importing companies on the basis of actual sales of the fertilizers by the
retailers/ wholesalers to the beneficiary. The fertilizer subsidy claims settlement is done by Gol on the basis of actual
quantity sold to beneficiary.

The ‘Revenue from Subsidy’ includes an amount of ¥ 107.86 crore which represents subsidy receivable from Gol
for Fertilizer stock issued to dealers with transfer of title and risk of products delivered but remained unsold to
beneficiary as on 31 March 2020. Though according to DoF letter dated 17 March 2017, subsidy became due and
settled after actual sales to beneficiary. The facts that ‘Revenue from Subsidy’ includes an amount of % 107.86 crore
for which subsidy would be due and released by Gol after actual sales to beneficiary, has not been disclosed by the
Company in ‘Note-15 to Financial Statements’. Thus ‘Note-15 to Financial Statements’ is deficient to the extent.

Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Gol vide OM dated 3 August 2017 issued instructions for pay revision of
Board level and below Board level Executives and non-unionised Supervisors of central public sector enterprises
w.e.f. 1 January 2017. Para 5 of the OM privides that in respect of sick CPSEs, the revision of pay scales should be in
accordance with rehabilitation packages approved by the Government after providing for the additional expenditure
on account of pay revision in these packages. The Company has not implemented pay revision for its employee as
it rehabilitation packages has not been approved till date. As per Notes to Financial Statements 43(f), Company was
pursuing legal options to file the revival proposal to National Company Law Tribunal. Company has also submitted
financial restructuring proposal to Department of Fertilizers, Gol for consideration.

Company has not disclosed the facts in ‘Notes to Financial Statements’ the pay revision of employees in pursuance of
DPE OM dated 3 August 2017 has not been implemented due to pending approval of revival / financial restructuring
proposal. This ‘Notes to Financial Statements’ are deficient to the extent.

For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : New Delhi Sd/-
Date : 04.12.2020 (Amitabh Prasad)

Principal Director of Audit
(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources)
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REPLIES TO THE COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MADRAS FERTILIZERS LTD FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Other Financial Assets
Claims Recoverable (Note 5D) : ¥ 556.04 Crore

The above includes claims recoverable on account of
subsidy receivables from Government of India (Gol) after
adjusting revision in subsidy rates for 2019-20 based on
de-escalation of input prices of Urea. The adjustment of
% 144.46 crore for de-escalation was made on the basis
of rates notified by Gol on 26 February 2020. However,
Company did not consider the subsequent notification
of 30 June 2020 issued by Gol carrying revised rates
for escalation / de-escalation claim for 2019-20 . Since
notification of 30 June 2020 was issued by Gol before date
of approval of financial statements by Board of Directors
of the Company (i.e. 28 August 2020), the adjustment
for de-escalation in input prices should have been made
based on rates specified in latest notification of June 2020
instead of February 2020. The de-escalation claims based
on rates notified in 30 June 2020 notification comes to X
129.32 crore.

Non consideration of revised rates of June 2020
notification to calculate de-escalation for 2019-20
has violated provisions of Ind As-10 and Company’s
significant accounting policy — 3 (f). This has resulted in
understatement of ‘Claims Recoverable (Gol Subsidy)
and overstatement of ‘Loss after Tax’ by ¥ 15.14 crore
(% 144.46 crore less % 129.32 crore).

COMMENTS OF C&AG REPLY
A. Comments of Financial Position Per NPS policy subsidy is accounted based on the
(1) Assets estimated Retention Price (Concession Price) after
Current Assets considering actual input costs incurred during the year

2019-20.

The Final Notification of Concession Price is not yet
received by MFL from FICC. Hence, the subsidy income
for 2019-20 is calculated and accounted based on the
estimated concession price by MFL on accrual basis.

The notification dated 30-06-2020 is not the final one and
is based on the input prices up to the IIl quarter of 2019-20
only. The final notification is awaited based on the input
prices of IV quarter. The exact de-escalation amount will
be known after receipt of the final notification.

MFL have already made provision of ¥ 144.46 Cr. towards
the de-escalation claims in the books of accounts based
on the reduction in input prices of raw materials during
the year 2019-20 based on notification dated 29-02-2020.
However, the notification dated 30-06-2020 as referred by
the Audit considers the reduction input prices for the period
from April to December 2019 only and the reduction for
balance three months had not been notified yet, the impact
of which is estimated at ¥ 15.14 Cr.

As per Company’'s Significant Accounting Policy of
revenue recognition given in note, for the rates yet to be
notified due to escalation /de-escalation, subsidy has been
accounted on estimated basis which is in line with the
Industrial Practice and the Company consistently following
the same for the past two decades.

As the Company, has accounted the de-escalation
of the entire year 2019-20, in our opinion there is no
understatement of ‘Claims Recoverable (Gol Subsidy)
and overstatement of ‘Loss after Tax’ by ¥ 15.14 Cr, and
the accounting of the same reflects a “true and fair view”.
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(2) Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities (Note — 14) : ¥ 47.94 Crore

The above does not include an amount of % 4.40 crore
being payable to Central Industrial Security Force (CISF)
on account of penal interest upto March 2020 on delayed
payment of cost of deployment. Company had shown the
amount under ‘Contingent Liabilities’. As the Company
was liable to pay penal interest as per instructions and
CISF had also reiterated its claim for penal interest on
2 April 2020, Company should have made provision for
liability for penal interest in books instead of showing the
same under ‘Contingent Liabilities’.

Non-provision of liability for penal interest payable has
resulted in understatement of ‘Other Current Liabilities’
and ‘Loss after Tax’ by ¥ 4.40 crore. Further ‘Contingent
Liabilities ‘ are overstated by ¥ 4.40 crore.

The Company is taking all efforts for one time settlement of
CISF dues including penal interest.

As the matter is still under active negotiation between both
the parties, and has not been concluded yet, the Company
has not made any provision for penal interest. However,
the penal interest has been included and exhibited
separately under Contingent Liability.

B. Comments on Disclosure
Notes to Financial Statements

(i) Revenue from Operations (Note-15): As per procedure
prescribed by Department of Fertilizer (DoF), Gol vide
letter No.D(FA)/2016/DBT dated 17 March 2017, Direct
Benefit Transfer systems entails 100 per cent payment
of subsidy to the fertilizer manufacturing / importing
companies on the basis of actual sales of the fertilizers
by the retailers/ wholesalers to the beneficiary. The
fertilizer subsidy claims settlement is done by Gol on
the basis of actual quantity sold to beneficiary.

The ‘Revenue from Subsidy’ includes an amount of
% 107.86 crore which represents subsidy receivable
from Gol for Fertilizer stock issued to dealers with
transfer of title and risk of products delivered but
remained unsold to beneficiary as on 31 March 2020.
Though according to DoF letter dated 17 March 2017,
subsidy became due and settled after actual sales to
beneficiary. The facts that ‘Revenue from Subsidy’
includes an amount of ¥ 107.86 crore for which subsidy
would be due and released by Gol after actual sales to
beneficiary, has not been disclosed by the Company
in ‘Note-15 to Financial Statements’. Thus ‘Note-15 to
Financial Statements’ is deficient to the extent.

Audit comment on disclosure is noted.

To give a clear picture without any ambiguity, a disclosure
in this regard will be made in the subsequent years.
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(ii) Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Gol vide
OM dated 3 August 2017 issued instructions for
pay revision of Board level and below Board level
Executives and non-unionised Supervisors of central
public sector enterprises w.e.f. 1 January 2017. Para
5 of the OM privides that in respect of sick CPSEs, the
revision of pay scales should be in accordance with
rehabilitation packages approved by the Government
after providing for the additional expenditure on account
of pay revision in these packages. The Company
has not implemented pay revision for its employee
as it rehabilitation packages has not been approved
till date. As per Notes to Financial Statements 43(f),
Company was pursuing legal options to file the revival
proposal to National Company Law Tribunal. Company
has also submitted financial restructuring proposal to
Department of Fertilizers, Gol for consideration.

Company has not disclosed the facts in ‘Notes to
Financial Statements’ the pay revision of employees
in pursuance of DPE OM dated 3 August 2017 has
not been implemented due to pending approval of
revival / financial restructuring proposal. This ‘Notes
to Financial Statements’ are deficient to the extent.

Audit comment on disclosure is noted.

A disclosure that the wage revision is due from 1.1.2017
and has not been implemented due to pending approval
of revival / financial restructuring proposal will be made by
the Company in the subsequent years.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(AMITABH PRASAD)
Principal Director of Audit
(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources)

Place : New Delhi
Date : December 04, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

U SARAVANAN
Chairman & Managing Director

Place : Chennai
Date : December 05, 2020
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COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS M/s J V
RAMANUJAM & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, CHENNAI
ON THE ACCOUNTS OF MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR 2019-20

THE COMPANY’S REPLIES UNDER SECTION 134
(3)(f) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

We draw attention to Note 34 of the financial statements, which
discloses that fair valuation of investment in unquoted shares of
Indian Potash Limited has been carried out by an external valuer.
The Valuer, as on 31.03.2020 had fair valued the investment using
Net Asset Value (NAV) and Comparable Company Market (CCM)
Multiple Method and the value assessed was Rs.1325.95 per share
and Rs.1783.49 per share respectively. The company adopted CCM
Multiple Method to ascertain the fair value of the investments held
as on 31.03.2020. We observed that there is (i) increase of 33%
in projected Sales for 2019-20 vs Actual Sales for 2018-19, when
compared to 16.88% in 2018-19 Vs 2017-18, and (ii) projected PAT
has increased by 90.88% for 2019-20 Vs Actual for 2018-19 when
compared to decrease of 1.22% 2018-19 vs 2017-18. Since such
high growth in Sales and PAT is estimated, the same should be
supported with adequate evidence. In the absence of the same we
are not able to rely on the Valuation Report for Fair Value arrived
for Equity shares of Indian Potash Limited (IPL). Further we are
not able to assess the Fair Value of IPL due to lack of information.
Due to the aforementioned we are unable to quantify the financial
effects on the Total Comprehensive Income and Financial Assets.

Certain financial assets and liabilities in the Company
are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Company uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where observable inputs
are not available, the Company engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The Company has investments in Indian Potash
Limited to the tune of 15,84,000 nos of shares. The
Company has engaged third party qualified registered
valuer for valuation of the investment in IPL and have
classified in the books of accounts as FVOCI and the
same is disclosed in Significant Accounting Policies.

As the valuation is done by the independent registered
valuer and the valuation is being done for the past 3
years. The valuation is purely based on assumptions
due to non-availability of data. The valuation method
which is beneficial to the entity is adopted and the
same was also disclosed in notes to Accounts. Taking
into account the assumptions and justifications given,
the Company has adopted the report and accounted
the same and is in order.

Sd/-

Priya Ranjan Panda
General Manager - F&A (alc)

For J V Ramanujam & Co

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

CA. SRI NARAYANA JAKHOTIA U SARAVANAN

Partner Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 233192

FRN 0002947S

Aug 28, 2020 Aug 28, 2020
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion)
submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results - (Standalone and Consolidated
separately)

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

I. | Sl |Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before (audited figures
adjusting for after adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
(Rs Cr) (Rs Cr)
1. | Total income 1287.39 1287.39
2. | Total Expenditure 1422.27 1422.27
3. | Net Profit/(Loss) (55.62) (55.62)
4. | Earnings Per Share (8.37) (8.37)
5. | Total Assets 1527.79 1527.79
6. | Total Liabilities 1527.79 1527.79
7. | Net Worth (630.89) (630.89)
8. | Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate by the
management)

IIl. Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):
a. Details of Audit Qualification:

We draw attention to Note 34 of the financial statements, which discloses that fair valuation of investment in unquoted
shares of Indian Potash Limited has been carried out by an external valuer. The Valuer, as on March 31, 2020 had fair
valued the investment using Net Asset Value (NAV) and Comparable Company Market (CCM) Multiple Method and the
value assessed was Rs.1325.95 per share and Rs.1783.49 per share respectively. The company adopted CCM Multiple
Method to ascertain the fair value of the investments held as on March 31, 2020. We observed that there is (i) increase
of 33% in projected Sales for 2019-20 vs Actual Sales for 2018-19, when compared to 16.88% in 2018-19 Vs 2017-18,
and (i) projected PAT has increased by 90.88% for 2019-20 Vs Actual for 2018-19 when compared to decrease of 1.22%
2018-19 vs 2017-18. Since such high growth in Sales and PAT is estimated, the same should be supported with adequate
evidence. In the absence of the same we are not able to rely on the Valuation Report for Fair Value arrived for Equity
shares of Indian Potash Limited (IPL). Further we are not able to assess the Fair Value of IPL due to lack of information.
Due to the aforementioned we are unable to quantify the financial effects on the Total Comprehensive Income and
Financial Assets.

b. Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion / Disclaimer of Opinion / Adverse Opinion
Qualified
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C.

Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since how long continuing

First time

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views:

Impact not quantified by the auditor.

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i)

(i

Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification:
Not quantifiable.
If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

Fair value of financial instruments should be determined in accordance with the principles enunciated in Ind As
113 — Fair Value Measurement. Fair value has been defined under Ind As 113 as “Fair Value Measurements”
and generally it will be quoted prices of that equity investment which are quoted or fair value as calculated using
valuation techniques in case Unquoted equity investments.

In case of observable inputs are not readily available, company engages the professional services of independent
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

As the company has investment to the tune of 15,84,000 number of equity shares in Indian Potash Limited (IPL),
which is a closely held company and not traded in the open market, observable inputs are not readily available
for measurement of the fair value.

Accordingly, MFL has engaged independent certified valuer for valuation of the investment in IPL and have
classified in the books of accounts as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and it is
disclosed in significant Accounting Policies.

The fair valuation of the investment has been done by the valuer for past three years and taking into account the
assumptions and justifications given in report. The Valuer, had fair valued the investment using Net Asset Value
(NAV) and Comparable Company Market (CCM) Multiple Method and recommended for valuation at higher value
of the above two methods.

As opposed to the auditor’s observation of the company adopted CCM Method to ascertain the fair value of the
investments held as on March 31, 2020, it is the recommendation of the valuer for the same and the company
has adopted the report and accounted the same.

The method of valuation at higher value of the two methods same is followed consistently for last three years and
also accepted by the auditors during the previous years. There is no change in the policy for the current year.

Neither the company nor the auditor is not able to assess the Fair Value of Indian Potash Limited due to lack of
information. The company is also not technically competent to carry out fair valuation of Equity Shares.

Hence the accounting is in order.
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(iii) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

We observed that there is (i) increase of 33% in projected Sales for 2019-20 vs Actual Sales for 2018-19, when
compared to 16.88% in 2018-19 Vs 2017-18, and (ii) projected PAT has increased by 90.88% for 2019-20 Vs
Actual for 2018-19 when compared to decrease of 1.22% 2018-19 vs 2017-18. Since such high growth in Sales
and PAT is estimated, the same should be supported with adequate evidence. In the absence of the same we are
not able to rely on the Valuation Report for Fair Value arrived for Equity shares of Indian Potash Limited (IPL).

We are not Registered Valuers hence not technically competent to calculate Fair Value of Equity share of IPL.
However, since we are not reasonably satisfied with the Valuation carried out by the external valuer we had to
provide a Qualified Audit Report owing to the fact that value involved is material.

Il Signatories:

Sd/-
Chairman & Managing Director

Sd/-
General Manager - F&A (alc)

Sd/-
Audit Committee Chairman

Sd/-
Statutory Auditor

Place : Chennai

Date : August 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Madras Fertilizers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying amended and restated
financial statements of Madras Fertilizers Limited,
Manali, which comprise the amended and restated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the amended
and restated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the amended and restated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the amended and
restated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, except for the
matters mentioned in the ‘Basis of Qualified Opinion’
section of our report, the aforesaid amended and restated
financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company
as at March 31, 2020; and its Loss after Tax, Total
Comprehensive Loss, the changes in Equity, and Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to Note 34 of the financial statements,
which discloses that fair valuation of investment in
unquoted shares of Indian Potash Limited has been carried
out by an external valuer. The Valuer, as on March 31,
2020 had fair valued the investment using Net Asset Value
(NAV) and Comparable Company Market (CCM) Multiple
Method and the value assessed was Rs.1325.95 per share
and Rs.1783.49 per share respectively. The company
adopted CCM Multiple Method to ascertain the fair value of

the investments held as on March 31, 2020. We observed
that there is (i) increase of 33% in projected Sales for
2019-20 vs Actual Sales for 2018-19, when compared to
16.88% in 2018-19 Vs 2017-18, and (ii) projected PAT has
increased by 90.88% for 2019-20 Vs Actual for 2018-19
when compared to decrease of 1.22% 2018-19 vs 2017-
18. Since such high growth in Sales and PAT is estimated,
the same should be supported with adequate evidence. In
the absence of the same we are not able to rely on the
Valuation Report for Fair Value arrived for Equity shares
of Indian Potash Limited (IPL). Further we are not able to
assess the Fair Value of IPL due to lack of information.
Due to the aforementioned we are unable to quantify the
financial effects on the Total Comprehensive Income and
Financial Assets.

Emphasis of Matter
i.  We draw attention to Note 47 regarding

a. Accounting of a sum of Rs.144.46 Crores towards
de-escalation in input prices which has been
considered as payable to Fertilizer Industry
Coordination Committee (FICC) for the year ended
March 31, 2020 under New Pricing Scheme (NPS)
for Urea. Adjustments may arise in future in respect
of the above on final payment.

b. Accounting of a sum of Rs.16.26 Crores of
subsidy claim for additional fixed cost of Rs.350/
MT of Urea as envisaged in the modified NPS Il
Policy announced by DOF dated April 02, 2014,
the notification of which is awaited.

ii. We draw attention to Note 43 (g) regarding balances in
Long term borrowings and Other current liabilities from
GOlI, Trade Receivable/ Payables, Claim recoverable
and loans and advances are subject to confirmation
and consequential adjustments;

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above
matters.
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Restatement of Financial Statements

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the
following which explains that the amended and restated
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
have been restated from those which were originally
reported on June 19, 2020.

The Company has accounted subsidy income of Rs.64.97
Crore towards additional compensation for Nutrient Based
Subsidy (NBS) for producing P&K fertilizers. We observed
that during FY 2015-16 based on the Order of SEBI dated
December 16, 2015, regarding reversal of Additional
Compensation for NPK, for the FY 2012-13, the Company
has reversed entire amount of Additional Compensation
recognized during FY 2012-13 (X 47.40 Cr), 2013-14 (%
20.80 Cr) and 2014-15 (% 23.80 Cr) totalling to ¥ 92 Cr.
Hence SEBI has sought clarification regarding the same
and directed the company to place the matter before
its Audit Committee for further review. Based on the
instructions issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI), The Annual Accounts for FY 2019-20 was
submitted for further review to the Audit Committee in its
meeting held on August 13, 2020. Accordingly, the Audit
Committee reviewed it and advised that the Company
may restate the Annual Accounts and reverse the booking
of Additional compensation of Rs.64.97 Crores. The
Additional Compensation may be taken into account
only as and when final order will be received from the
Department of Fertilizers, Government of India.

The above restatement has been modified to include brief
note instead of drawing attention based on the comments
of the CAG. This report replaces our earlier Report dated
August 28, 2020.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

SI. No | Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

1 |Revenue Recognition - Sale of goods

We have performed the following principal audit

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the
control of goods is transferred to the customers. In
terms of the application of the new revenue accounting
standard Ind AS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with
Customers), for some contracts, control is transferred
either when the product is delivered to the customer’s
site or when the product is shipped, depending on the

procedures in relation to revenue recognised.

Understood the revenue recognition process,
evaluated the design and implementation, and
operating effectiveness of internal controls relating to
revenue recognised.

Selected samples and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal controls, relating to transfer
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SI. No

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

applicable terms. The Management has exercised
judgement in applying the revenue accounting policy
while recognising revenue.

of control. We carried out a combination of procedures

involving enquiry, observation and inspection of

evidence in respect of operation of these controls.

Tested the relevant information technology general

controls, automated controls, and the related

information used in recording and disclosing revenue.

In respect of the selected sample of transactions:

» Tested whether the revenue is recognised upon
transfer of control to customer.

» We have evaluated the delivery and shipping
terms of the contracts for revenue recognised
during the period.

» We have also tested the location stock reports
from Company warehouses, where applicable, for
confirmation on sales quantity made during the
year.

» Tested that the revenue recorded is after
considering the applicable rebates and discounts.

» For samples near to period end, tested the
acknowledgments of customers.

Subsidy income / Government subsidies and
related receivables

Refer to note 3 (f) ‘Revenue’ and note 2(d)(iv)
‘Use of estimates and judgements’ to the financial
statements. Subsidy income pertaining to the
Nutrient and other allied business is recognised on
the basis of the rates notified from time to time by
the Department of Fertilizers, Government of India
(‘GOr) in accordance with the Nutrient Based Subsidy
(‘NBS') policy on the quantity of fertilizers sold by the
Company for the period for which notification has
been issued and for the remaining period, based on
estimates, when there is a reasonable assurance that
the Company will comply with all necessary conditions
attached to Subsidy including Direct Benefit Transfer
(‘DBT’) System which was introduced by Government
of India.

The following principal audit procedures have been
performed by us in relation to subsidy income recognition.

We have read the relevant circulars and notifications
issued by GOI from time to time with regard to the
subsidy policies.

We have had robust interactions with the relevant
personnel in the Company with regard to updates
of GOI Policy, their interpretations of the relevant
circulars and notifications.

Tested the relevant information technology general
controls, automated controls, and the related
information used in recording and disclosing subsidy
income.

We have tested the NBS rates considered by the
Company for the product subsidy with the applicable
circulars and notifications.

We have correlated the sales quantity considered for
subsidy income with the actual sales made by the
Company.

We have also agreed the quantities sold as
per the Company books with the customer
acknowledgements as per the iFMS portal of the
Department of Fertilizers and tested the DBT claims
made by the Company.
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SI. No

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

« We have enquired from the Management and
discussed with the Board of Directors, the
appropriateness of the subsidy rates applied to
recognise subsidy income.

Valuation of subsidy receivables:

Following are the principal audit procedures performed

on testing of valuation of subsidy receivables:

+ We have analysed and discussed the status of
outstanding subsidy receivables and its realisability
with the Management.

+  We have tested the sanction notes received from the
GOl for receipts.

« We have tested the credits in the bank statements for
the receipts.

+ We have tested whether the deductions made by the
GOl have been adjusted in the books of accounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Management judgement is utilised for determining
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and their respective depreciation/
amortization rates. These include the decision to
capitalise or expense costs; the annual asset life
review; the timelines of the capitalisation of assets and
the measurement and recognition criteria for assets
retired from active use. Please refer accounting policy.

We have done verification of controls in place over
the fixed assets cycle, evaluated the appropriateness
of capitalisation process, performed tests to verify
the capitalised costs, assessed the timelines of
the capitalisation of the assets and assessed the
derecognition criteria for assets retired from active use.

Useful life review of assets has been assessed by
the management. In performing these procedures,
we reviewed the judgements made by management
including the nature of underlying costs capitalised;
determination of realizable value of the assets retired
from active use; the appropriateness of asset lives
applied in the calculation of depreciation/ amortization;
and the useful lives of assets prescribed in Schedule |l
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is involved in certain legal and tax
disputes and the assessment of the risks associated
with the litigations is based on Management
assumptions, which require the use of judgement and
such judgement relates, primarily, to the assessment
of the uncertainties connected to the prediction of the
outcome of the proceedings.

Our audit procedure in response to same is included,
among others,

+ Assessment of the process to identify legal and tax
litigations, and pending administrative proceedings.

+ Assessment of assumptions used in the evaluation
of potential legal and tax risks performed by the legal
and tax department of the Company considering the
legal precedence and other rulings/judgement in
similar cases.

* Analysis of opinion received from the tax consultant
where available.

* Review of the adequacy of the disclosures in the
notes to the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report,
Management discussion and analysis and Report on
corporate governance, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is no material misstatement of this other information
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, (changes in equity)
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Paragraph 40(b) of this SA explains that the shaded material
below can be located in an Appendix to the auditor’s report.
Paragraph 40(c) explains that when law, regulation or
applicable auditing standards expressly permit, reference
can be made to a website of an appropriate authority that
contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities,
rather than including this material in the auditor’s report,
provided that the description on the website addresses,
and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s
responsibilities below.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional  judgment and maintain  professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A’
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has clarified that
the provisions of sub section (2) of Section 164
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
Government Companies.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
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the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law and Accounting standards, for

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

ii.
protection fund by the Company.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor’s education and

(3) As required by section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, the action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statements of the company:

SINo

Areas Examined

Suggested Replies

1

Whether the company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes, the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases
of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender
to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the
loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

During the year, there was no Restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
Madras Fertilizers.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from
central/ state agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as
per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

During the year, No funds were received or are
receivable for Specific Schemes from Central or
State Agencies.

(4) Additional Company specific directions issued u/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by C&AG:

SI.No.

Sub Direction

Suggested Replies

4

Whether  Subsidy  was
recognized as per the
provisions of Direct Benefit
Transfer Scheme?

Under Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) scheme of GOI, the Company is entitled to
receive subsidy only upon sale of fertilizer by the dealer to the ultimate beneficiary
through Point of Sale (PoS) devices.
account subsidy as income at the time of sale to dealers as in the earlier scheme,
considering the reasonable assurance that the sale will take place and subsidy
will be received based on the industry practice and past experience.

However, the Company continues to

The above sub-direction is included in the report based on the direction of CAG.

Chennai
Oct 09, 2020

for J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02947S

(SRINARAYANA JAKHOTIA)
Partner

M. No: 233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792
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“ANNEXURE A”
AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date on the accounts of Madras
Fertilizers Limited, Manali (“the Company”), for the
year ended March 31, 2020)

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, physical verification of movable fixed
assets is being conducted in a phased manner by
the management under a programme designed to
cover all the movable fixed assets over a period of
three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its business. As per the information and
explanations provided by the management, the
same has been carried out during the financial
year. Immovable Fixed Assets like plant and
machinery is being inspected every year by an
independent chartered engineer.

(c) Title deeds of immovable properties were not
provided to us for verification; hence we are
unable to comment on the same.

i) (a) Physical verification of inventories inside factory
premises and at Chennai Port has been carried
out by aindependent surveyor at year end and the
physical verification of stocks of stores and spare
parts has been conducted by an independent firm
of Chartered Accountants on a ongoing basis so
as to complete the verification of all items over the
period of one year. Finished goods at warehouse
are taken as per warehousing certificates.
Warehousing certificates has not been received in
a few cases, which however is not significant in
value.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the procedures for
physical verification of inventory followed by the
management were reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature
of its business.

TO INDEPENDENT

(c) In our opinion, the company has maintained
proper records of inventory. We are informed
that no major discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stock and book
records.

iii) According to the information given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore
clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and (iii)(c) of Paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of
the section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

v) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 73 to 76, other relevant provisions of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 with regard to deposits accepted from public. The
Company has not accepted any deposits from public
during the year within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules 2014.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and
records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014
prescribed by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate and complete.

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the Company is
generally regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues as applicable to it.
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(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues were
outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable except for the following:

Nature of Dues INR Crores

Entry tax (Tamil Nadu) 2.53
VAT (Tamil Nadu) 2.51
Sales Tax under TNGST Act 7.79
Total 12.83

(c) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax Act,
Excise Duty, Customs Duty, Value Added Tax,
Sales Tax and Service Tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

viii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the

information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings
to a financial institution, bank, or dues to debenture
holders except in respect of the default of repayment
of principal amount of the following Government of
India (GOI) Loans:

Nature of | Yearof | INRin | Yearof | INRin
Loan Default | Crores | default | Crores
GOl Loans |2004-05| 23.49|2012-13 38.33
GOl Loans |2005-06 | 23.48|2013-14 4578
GOl Loans |2006-07 | 24.89|2014-15 32.68
GOl Loans |2007-08 | 26.07|2015-16 32.68
GOl Loans |2008-09 | 27.03|2016-17 31.28
GOl Loans |2009-10 | 26.44|2017-18 30.09
GOl Loans |2010-11 | 27.34{2018-19 29.14
GOl Loans |2011-12 | 28.63|2019-20 28.25
Total * 475.62

* The above loan consists of Plan loans, Non Plan
Loans and Revamp Loans.

The Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

xi)

xil)

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on
the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our Audit.

In respect of sl. no. (xi), being a Govt. Company,
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company in view of Noatification no.
G.S.R. 463(E) dtd. 05-06-2015

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore
clause 3 (xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the records of the Company examined

by us and the information and explanations given to
us, there are no related party transactions; accordingly
clause (xi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given

Xv)

to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under
review, and therefore clause 3(xiv) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

for J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 02947S
(SRINARAYANA JAKHOTIA)
Chennai Partner
Oct 09, 2020 M. No: 233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MADRAS
FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/s Madras Fertilizers Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s managementis responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and jointly controlled companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

for J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02947S

(SRINARAYANA JAKHOTIA)
Partner
M. No: 233192

UDIN: 20233192AAAAAJ4792

Chennai
Oct 09, 2020
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BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2020 (% Crores)
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 1 198.72 146.40
Capital work-in-progress 1 3.13 30.59
Investment property 1 1.22 1.22
Financial assets 2
Investments 2A 282.50 197.91
Loans 2B - 0.01
Other financial assets 2C 0.28 0.24
Other non-current assets 3 16.47 17.03
Total non-current assets 502.32 393.40
Current assets
Inventories 4 250.76 280.86
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5A 50.87 21.21
Cash and cash equivalents 5B 133.31 36.82
Loans 5C 7.07 0.91
Other financial assets 5D 556.04 815.31
Other current assets 6 27.42 13.78
Total current assets 1025.47 1,174.89
Total assets 1,527.79 1,568.29
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 7 162.14 162.14
Other equity
Retained earnings (805.42) (749.80)
Other reserves 12.39 12.39
Total equity (630.89) (575.27)
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BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2020 (Contd) (% Crores)
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 9
Borrowings 9A 51.28 78.62

Provisions 10 42.44 38.61
Other non-current liabilities " 1.78 2.55
Total non-current liabilities 95.50 119.78

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities 12
Borrowings 12A 1,749.49 1,572.97
Trade payables 12B 115.88 276.97
Other financial liabilities 12C 139.80 125.56
Provisions 13 10.07 8.76
Other current liabilities 14 47.94 39.52
Total current liabilities 2,063.18 2,023.78
Total equity and liabilities 1,527.79 1,568.29

Notes 1 to 55 form part of these financial statements.
[For and on behalf of the Board/

U SARAVANAN LALSANGLUR PRIYA RANJAN PANDA Dr GIRISH KUMAR
Chairman & Managing Director Director General Manager-F&A (alc) Company Secretary
Aug 28, 2020

As per our Report of even date

For J V Ramanujam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 002947S

CA SRI NARAYANA JAKHOTIA
Partner
Aug 28, 2020 M No 233192
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2020 (X Crores)

for year ended  for year ended

Note 54 March2020 31 March 2019

Revenue from operations 15 1274.39 1,593.00
Other income 16 13.00 17.80
Total income 1287.39 1610.80
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 17 1152.43 1318.88
Purchase of stock - in - trade 18 5.57 3.82
Changes in inventories and finished goods 19 (78.60) 46.16
Employee benefit expenses 20 95.97 100.54
Finance costs 21 90.29 100.03
Depreciation 22 26.38 22.99
Other expenses 23 130.23 148.20
Total expenses 1422.27 1740.62
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (134.88) (129.82)
Exceptional items 24 - 0.00
Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (134.88) (129.82)
Tax expense:

Current tax - -

Deferred tax - -
MAT credit - -
Income tax expense - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (A) Clo (134.88) (129.82)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd)

(X Crores)
for year ended  for year ended

Note 31 March2020 31 March 2019

Other comprehensive income (OCl)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) 25 (5.33) (2.39)

Fair valuation of IPL Investment 84.59 48.97

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

Total other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss (B) 79.26 46.58

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (55.62) (83.24)

Earnings per share 26

Basic eamings per share (3) 8.37 8.06

Diluted earnings per share (3) (8.37) (8.06)
Notes 1 to 55 form part of these financial statements.

[For and on behalf of the Board/
U SARAVANAN LALSANGLUR PRIYA RANJAN PANDA Dr GIRISH KUMAR
Chairman & Managing Director Director General Manager-F&A (alc) Company Secretary
Aug 28, 2020
As per our Report of even date
For J V Ramanujam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 002947S
CA SRI NARAYANA JAKHOTIA
Partner

Aug 28, 2020 M No 233192
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before Tax for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Exceptional item (Depreciation)
Lossl/(profit) from sale of Fixed Asset
Interest Expenses
Interest Income
Net gain arising on financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss
Dividend Income
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
Increase/(decrease) in Provisions
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Operating Activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets
Interest Received
Dividend Received

Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Investing Activities (B)

(X Crores)

2019-20 2018-19
(134.88) (129.82)
26.38 22.99
0.00 0.00
(0.13) (0.01)
90.29 100.03
(3.68) (0.49)
0.00 0.00
0.00 2.94
(0.24) (0.24)
(22.26) (4.60)
30.10 (61.00)
(23.66) (7.16)
(6.16) 0.12
246.19 131.16
(0.19) 448
(161.09) (107.78)
21.89 2215
84.82 (22.63)
84.82 (22.63)
(51.24) (21.83)
0.13 7.96
3.68 0.49
0.24 0.24
(47.19) (13.14)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Contd)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital
Net proceeds from/ (Repayment of) Term Borrowings
Net proceeds from Financial Assets
Net proceeds from Working capital and Short-term borrowings
Interest paid
Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Financing Activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease ) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 1st Apr (Op. Bal)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st Mar (Cl. Bal.)
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand
Remittance in Transit
Balance with banks:
in Current and Cash Credit Accounts
in Term Deposits with less than 12 months maturity
Total Cash and Cash equivalents

(X Crores)

2019-20 2018-19
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
(0.03) 0.27
94.60 90.56
(35.71) (45.45)
58.86 45.38
96.49 9.61
36.82 271.21
133.31 36.82
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.08 0.07
133.23 36.75
133.31 36.82

Notes 1 to 55 form part of these financial statements.

/For and on behalf of the Board/

U SARAVANAN LALSANGLUR PRIYA RANJAN PANDA Dr GIRISH KUMAR
Chairman & Managing Director Director General Manager-F&A (alc) Company Secretary
Aug 28, 2020

Aug 28, 2020

As per our Report of even date

For J V Ramanujam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 002947S

CA SRI NARAYANA JAKHOTIA
Partner
M No 233192
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2020

. Equity share capital

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20
Balance as at 31 March 2020

. Other equity

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019
Loss

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 March 2020

(% Crores)
162.14 162.14
162.14 162.14
(X Crores)
Reserves and surplus
Securities Retained
Premium earnings Total
12.39 (749.80) (737.41)
(134.88) (134.88)
79.26 79.26
(55.62) (55.62)
12.39 (805.42) (793.03)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Financial assets (X Crores)
As at As at
A. Investments 31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Trade investment- unquoted
Indian Potash Limited 15,84,000 Equity Shares (P.Y 15,84,000) of % 10 each fully paid. These are valued  »g5 5 197.91
at the fair value at each reporting date.
Fortune Bio-Tech Ltd (12,50,000 shares of % 10 each fully paid. The fair value of the investment has
been assessed as 'Nil' by the management)
282.50 197.91
B. Loans
Secured loans 0.01
(Secured against Mortagage of Title Deeds)
Unsecured:
- Employee loans -
0.01
C. Other financial assets - Non current
Rental deposits 0.28 0.24
0.28 0.24
3 Other non-current assets
Deposits with government departments and others 14.75 14.70
Balances with customs, port trust and excise authorities 0.9%4 1.10
Lease equalization reserve 0.78 1.21
Prepaid rent - 0.01
Prepaid staff cost - 0.01
16.47 17.03
4 Inventories
Stock in trade
Raw materials on hand 67.82 118.94
Raw materials in transit - 62.46
Work-in-progress 65.47 13.45
Finished products
Fertilizers 30.11 3.53
Agro chemicals
Stores and spares
On hand 67.68 57.92
In transit 6.59 18.00
Loose tools 0.21 0.29
Others
Catalysts 10.20 1.21
Packing materials 2.68 5.06
250.76 280.86
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5 Financial assets

A. Trade receivables
Secured

a. Considered good

b. Considered doubtful
Less: Impairment on trade receivables

B. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with scheduled banks
In current account
Term deposits

C. Loans
a)Unsecured
Staff advances

i. Considered good

D. Other financial assets
Claims recoverable

-GOI Subsidy

-GST-ITC

-Others

Less : Provision for impairment

6 Other current assets

Prepaid expenses
Prepaid rent

Prepaid staff cost
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Lease equalization reserve

(X Crores)

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
50.87 27.21
4.44 4.44
(4.44) (4.44)
50.87 27.21
0.00 0.00
0.08 0.07
133.23 36.75
133.31 36.82
7.07 0.91
7.07 0.91
481.89 706.52
68.55 95.33
6.61 14.47
(1.01) (1.01)
556.04 815.31
1413 11.11
0.02 0.01

- 0.04

12.84 2.36
043 0.26
27.42 13.78
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7 Equity share capital

Authorised
17,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each
19,00,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each

Issued,Subscribed and paid up capital
16,11,01,300 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up

Forfeited Shares
20,76,600 equity shares of INR 5 paid up

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

(X Crores)

As at 31 As at 31
March March
2020 2019
175.00 175.00
190.00 190.00
365.00 365.00
161.10 161.10
1.04 1.04
162.14 162.14

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 16,11,01,300 161.10  16,11,01,300 161.10
Shares issued for cash - - - -
Shares bought back - - - -
At the end of the year 16,11,01,300 161.10  16,11,01,300 161.10
Add :Shares Forfeited at the beginning of the period 20,76,600 1.04 20,76,600 1.04
16,31,77,900 16214  16,31,77,900 162.14

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of equity shares

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

% of total % of total
Number shares Number shares

Equity shares of % 10 each fully paid-up held by -
Government of India 9,58,51,700 59.50 9,58,51,700 59.50
Naftiran Intertrade Co. Ltd 4,15,16,500 25.77 4,15,16,500 25.77
Public (collectively) 2,58,09,700 14.73 2,58,09,700 14.73
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8

10

1"

Other equity (X Crores)

As at 31 As at 31

March March

2020 2019

Retained earnings (805.42) (749.80)

Other reserves

Securities premium

Opening balance 12.39 12.39

Addition / (utilization) during the period - -

Closing balance 12.39 12.39

Total other equity (793.03) (737.41)

Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilized in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013

Financial liabilities

A. Borrowings

Unsecured loans 51.28 78.62
Government of India (‘'GOI') loan 51.28 78.62

GOl loans are obtained for revamp which is specifically to be used for the revamp of plant used to manufacture fertilizers, plan
loan which is used for capital expenditure and non plan loans for the working capital needs of the Company. These are unsecured
in nature. The loan carries a fixed rate of interest as below:

Revamp loan - 7%
Plan loan - | Tranch @ 7%, Il Tranch @ 12.50% and Ill Tranch @ 11.50%
Non plan loan - | Tranch @ 7% and Il Tranch @ 15.50%

The said loans were availed in the period 2003 to 2012 and are repayable in 10 equal annual instalments which begin after a
moratorium period of 2 years. The current portion of GOI loans due within one year have been disclosed under Note 12A

Provisions - non current
Retired medical benefits 1.98 1.33
Leave encashment 13.13 10.68
Service awards 0.29 0.23
Gratuity 27.04 26.37
42.44 38.61
Other non-current liabilities
Rent received in advance 0.89 1.01
Lease equalization reserve 0.89 1.54
1.78 2.55
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13

Financial liabilities (X Crores)
As at 31 As at 31
March March
2020 2019
A. Borrowings
Secured
Cash credit from banks 171.86 3.98
Bills accepted under letter of credit 109.76 107.44
(Secured by hypothecation of inventories and book debts including GOI subsidy receivable with first
charge on all immovable properties at Manali both present and future.)
Special Banking Arrangements 307.67 383.27
(Secured against GOI Subsidy)
Unsecured
GOl loan - current portion:
- Principal 502.96 475.62
- Interest accrued and due 657.24 602.66
1,749.49 1,572.97
B. Trade payables
Trade payables
Secured 69.62 158.16
Unsecured 46.26 118.81
115.88 276.97

Secured against the following:

Dues to CPCL R 1.21 Cr (31 March 2019 % 99.65 Cr) for which mortgage and first charge on Guindy land is given for 100 Cr till

the date of sanction of a rehabilitation scheme for the Company.

Dues to I0C ¥ 68.41 Cr (31 March 2019 % 58.32 Cr) against Credit Limit of ¥ 120 Cr, for which first charge on property, plant and

equipment is given for ¥ 50 Cr and an additional ¥ 110 Cr against bank guarantee.

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on loans 15.55 15.55
Statutory Dues 22.61 23.60
Others 101.64 86.41
139.80 125.56

Provisions
Retired medical benefits 0.27 0.18
Leave encashment 343 2.45
Service awards 0.10 0.08
Gratuity 6.27 6.05
10.07 8.76
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Other current liabilities

Unclaimed deposits

Micro, small & medium enterprises
Other liabilities

Rent received in advance

Lease equalization reserve

Revenue from operations

Sale of products and services
Manufactured products

Traded goods

Less: discounts

Other operating revenue
Subsidy

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest method:
from banks and others
on fair valuation of rental deposits
on fair valuation of employee loans
Dividend income:
from non-current investment
Other non-operating income:
Net gain / (loss) arising on financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Exchange rate fluctuation
Profit on sale of assets
Rent
Write back of Accounts
Miscellaneous income

(X Crores)

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

0.03

0.01

4717 38.81

0.13 0.13

0.64 0.54

47.94 39.52

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
329.00 281.82
6.25 417
(1.70) (0.81)
940.84 1,307.82
1274.39 1,593.00
3.68 0.49
0.05

0.24 0.24
0.01 1.97
0.13 0.01
1.60 1.53
5.21 8.08
2.13 5.43
13.00 17.80
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18

19

20

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less:
Stock loss
Closing stock

Total consumption of raw materials

Power, water & fuel
Stores, spares & packing materials

Purchase of stock - in - trade
Agrochemicals

Organic manure

City compost

Changes in inventories and finished goods
Opening stock

Finished goods

Work in progress

Less : Closing stock
Finished goods
Urea stock loss
Work in progress

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Welfare expenses

(% Crores)

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
118.94 98.23
881.20 852.52
1,000.14 950.75
67.82 118.94
67.82 118.94
932.32 831.81
195.76 467.29
24.35 19.78
1,152.43 1,318.88
1.46 1.35
0.90 0.36
3.21 2.11
5.57 3.82
3.53 43.86
13.45 19.28
16.98 63.14
30.11 3.53
65.47 13.45
95.58 16.98
(78.60) 46.16
74.98 73.98
14.35 17.96
6.64 8.60
95.97 100.54
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21

22

23

Finance costs

Interest on term loans:
GOl Loan

Other borrowings:
Bank borrowings

Interest expense on lease deposits accepted
Interest expense on dealer deposits accepted
Interest expense on trade advances accepted

Interest expense on deferred credit
Others

Depreciation
Depreciation

Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery

Buildings

Computers & other assets
Transportation and warehousing
Transportation and warehousing
Secondary freight

Warehouse rent

Payment to statutory auditors
Statutory audit

Tax audit

Certification

Others

Excise duty

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Directors' expenses

Directors' sitting fees

Agro services/ information expenses
Advertising and publicity

Provision for impairment on debtors

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(% Crores)
For the year ended
31 March 2019

54.58 54.58
17.41 21.39
0.00 0.00
8.36 7.91
0.06 0.40
6.44 9.18
344 6.57
90.29 100.03
26.38 22.99
26.38 22.99
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

clo

22.47 29.48
0.53 0.56
1.20 0.84

50.34 54.74
0.67 0.32
0.16 0.40
0.04 0.04
0.01 0.01
0.07 0.11
2.00 0.74
0.85 1.46
8.37 2.66
0.04 0.17
0.00 0.00
0.06 0.04
1.40 1.43

88.21 93.00
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24

25

26

Finished product handling
Exchange rate fluctuation

Bank charges

Security charges

Contract labour

Car rentals

Travel expenses

Postage and telecom expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Capital work-in-progress written off

Exceptional items

Exceptional items

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of actuarial gains and interest cost
Fair valuation of IPL shares

Earning per share

Loss after tax (X Crore)

Number of shares (Crore)

Face value of share (%)

Earning per share - basic and diluted (%)

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
88.21 93.00
17.74 18.27
0.00 0.00
11.92 22,59
2.87 3.39
1.60 2.07
0.92 1.47
0.97 0.98
0.41 0.45
5.59 5.98
0.00 -
130.23 148.20
(5.33) (2.39)
84.59 48.97
79.26 46.58
(134.88) (129.82)
16.11 16.11
10.00 10.00
(8.37) (8.06)

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive shares, thus the basic and the diluted earnings per share is the same.

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20



...

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

27(A) Significant Accounting Policies
1. Reporting entity

Madras Fertilizers Limited (“MFL” or “the Company”), is a Public
Sector Undertaking (‘PSU’) under the administrative control of
the Department of Fertilizers (‘DOF’), Ministry of Chemicals &
Fertilizers, Government of India (‘GOI’) and is registered under
the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office
located at Manali industrial area, Chennai - 600 068.

The Company’s equity shares are listed on the National Stock
Exchange (‘NSE’). MFL is engaged in the manufacture of Urea
and Complex Fertilizers. It is also engaged in manufacturing
Bio-fertilizers and trading eco-friendly Agro Chemicals and City
Compost under the brand name ‘Vijay'.

2. Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS') as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 19.06.2020.

Details of the Company’s significant accounting policies are
included in Note 3.

b) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(‘INR’), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores, unless
otherwise indicated.

¢) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the following items:

[tems Measurement basis

Certain financial
assets and liabilities

Net defined benefit
(asset) / liability

Fair value

Present value of defined benefit
obligation less fair value of plan assets

d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amount of assets, liabilities and related disclosures concerning
the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities on
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
income and expense during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes, requiring a material
adjustment in the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods. Difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known or
materialized.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements and information about
assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment for the year ended
March 31, 2020 are included in the following notes:

i.  Re-classification of inventory as capital spares

The Company performs an assessment at initial
recognition of spares to be classified as property, plant
and equipment based on the provisions for capitalization
for an asset as mentioned under Ind AS 16 Property,
plant and equipment and such items that fall within the
definition of an asset are accounted for under Ind AS 16
instead of Ind AS 2 Inventories.

ii. Re-classification of property, plant and equipment as
investment property

The Company identifies and assesses land and building
that is held for earning rentals / for an undetermined
future use / capital appreciation as investment property
and accounts for the same under Ind AS 40 Investment
Property

iii. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment (including capital spares) and investment
property
The useful life and residual value is estimated considering
several factors such as usage, obsolescence,
technological advancements and expenditure to be
incurred to maintain the asset in a condition to obtain
future economic benefits.

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20



...

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

iv.

vi.

Vi,

viil.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date,
the useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment and investment property and changes if any
are adjusted prospectively.

Fair value measurement

Certain financial assets and liabilities in the Company are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where observable inputs are not available,
the Company engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation.

Defined benefit plans and other long term benefits

The Company uses actuarial assumptions to determine
the obligations for employee benefits at each reporting
period. These assumptions include the discount rate,
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of
increase in compensation levels, mortality rates, etc.

Revenue

The Company offers various incentives to dealers which
is estimated and assessed to predict the variability in its
consideration receivable arising on account of the same.

Subsidy income

For the new pricing scheme of urea (New Pricing
Scheme, ‘NPS’) subsidy, the rates are revised every
year based on the actual input prices submitted by the
Company on a quarterly basis. Since the actual rates for
the subsidy for any given year is announced only in the
subsequent year the Company records revenue based
on an estimated rate for that year. The difference between
the estimated rates used by the Company for recognition
of revenue and the actual rates that are approved by the
Government are accounted as escalation / de-escalation
of input prices in the year in which the rate is notified.

Lease classification

The Company has entered into lease agreements with
various parties both in the capacity of a lessor and a
lessee for assets predominantly in the nature of land
and building. The management has exercised judgment
in line with the principles enunciated under Ind AS 17
Leases to appropriately classify these leased assets as
either operating lease or finance lease.

iX.

Xi.

Xil.

Xii.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment forimpairmentis done at each balance sheet
date for any indication that a non-financial asset may be
impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
is considered as a cash generating unit.

Impairment of financial assets

Afinancial asset is regarded as credit impaired when one
or more events that may have a detrimental effect on
estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred.
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for
recognizing impairment loss on financial assets (i.e. the
shortfall between the contractual cash flows that are due
and all the cash flows (discounted) that the Company
expects to receive).

Discount rates used for fair valuation

Estimates of rates of discounting are made for
measurement of fair values of certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are based on prevalent bank interest
rates and the same are subject to change.

Contingent liabilities

Recognition of contingent liabilites are made in
accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Ind AS 37
requires the application of judgment with regards to the
likelihood of a contingent event resulting in potential
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.
In case there are any changes to the circumstances,
following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood
could alter. The Company recognizes items such as
claims against the Company, etc as contingent liabilities.
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e) Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require
the measurement of fair values for financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. In cases where fair values is to be
computed by third parties, the Company assesses the
evidence obtained by such third parties to support the
conclusions that these valuations meet the requirements of
Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

+  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

f) Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements.

Operating cycle:

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The
Company’s normal operating cycle is considered as 12 months

for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets
and liabilities.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the
following criteria:

1) itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or
consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

2) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the
reporting date; and

4) cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities:
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the
following criteria:
1) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal
operating cycle;
2) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting
date; and

4) the Company does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
from the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets / liabilities are always classified as non-
current.

3. Significant accounting policies

Asummary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are as given below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to
all periods presented in the financial statements.

a. Property, plant and equipment
i.  Initial recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured
at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of taxes
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(except GST), duties, freight, installation allocated incidental
expenditure during construction / acquisition and necessary
adjustments in the year of final settlement. The cost of
property, plant and equipment also includes the present
value of obligations arising, if any, from decommissioning,
restoration and similar liabilities related to the same.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. The present value
of those costs (decommission or restoration costs) is
capitalized as an asset and depreciated over the useful life
of the asset.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition/construction of an asset is capitalized as part of
the cost of that asset when it is probable that they will result
in future economic benefits to the enterprise and the costs
can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are capitalized and
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year of
purchase by retaining a residual value of INR 1.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Machinery spares

Initial spares purchased along with property, plant and equipment
are capitalized and depreciated along with the asset.

Spares purchased subsequent to commission of the asset
which meet the requirements set out in Ind AS 16 are treated
as property, plant & equipment. Other spare parts are carried as
inventory and recognized in the statement of profit and loss on
consumption.

Capital work-in-progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
& direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
and borrowing costs.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant
and equipment are capitalized only if it is probable that future

iv.

economic benefits would flow from the existing asset to the
Company which is beyond its previously assessed standard
of performance.

Expenditure on assets on revamp / expansion are capitalized
when the respective assets are ready for commercial
production and in respect of other assets when they are
ready for its intended use. These costs are capitalized only
when the recognition criteria as enunciated under Ind AS 16
are met. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
for in conformity with the provisions of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 on the basis of useful life of the asset
using the straight line method by retaining a residual value
of 5% in respect of plant and machinery, buildings, roads
& bridges and railway siding and ¥ 1 in respect of other
property, plant and equipment. In the year of commissioning
| retirement of assets, depreciation is calculated on pro-rata
basis, for the period the asset is available for use.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
for the current year and the comparative period is as follows:

Asset Category Estimated useful life
Road, bridges and other facilities 10 years
Railway siding 15 years
Buildings 30 years
Plant and Machinery 25 years
Automotive and service equipment 10 years
Lab equipment 10 years
Office equipment 5years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Air conditioners and water coolers 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the
management believes that its estimates of useful lives best
represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
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expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

b. Investment property
i. Recognition and measurement

Investment property are properties (land / building / both)
held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an
investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss

ii. ~Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of investment
property is added to its book value only if they increase the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance.

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation on an item of investment property is provided

on straight line basis in accordance to the useful lives as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

c. Inventories

Inventories are measured atthe lowerof costand netrealizable
value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share
of fixed production overheads based on normal operating
capacity.

Basis
FIFO basis

Monthly moving weighted
average basis.

Item
Raw and packing materials
Stores, spares and catalysts

Revalued on WDV basis
annually

Loose tools and reconditioned
spares

Finished products

Lower of cost or net realizable
value including final /
estimated subsidy

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realizable
value of work in progress is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials,
components and other supplies held for use in the production
of finished products are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated
that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net
realizable value.

Non-moving/obsolete stores and spares:  The Technical
Committee will review the spares once a year and shortlist such
spares as are considered obsolete/non-moving, the same is
written off from the books with due approvals of the Board.

Net realizable value is taken as under:
Phosphatic and Potassic Fertilizers

+ Field warehouse inventories: The least of selling price
fixed by the Company to marketers / dealers including
excise duty.

« Field warehouse inventories to be brought back to
plant for reprocessing: The least of selling price fixed
by the Company to marketers / dealers plus final /
estimated Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) less estimated
reprocessing costs and freight incurred.

+ Inventories in transit; The least of selling price fixed by
the Company to marketers / dealers including excise duty
plus final / estimated NBS less estimated warehousing
eXpenses.

+ Inventories at plant ready for sale: The least of selling
price fixed by the Company to marketers / dealers
plus final / estimated NBS less estimated freight and
warehousing expenses.

Urea

+ Field warehouse inventories: The least of selling price to
marketers / dealers including excise duty.
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+ Inventories in transit: The least of selling price to
marketers / dealers including excise duty plus final
| estimated subsidy less estimated warehousing
expenses.

+ Inventories at plant ready for sale: The least of selling
price to marketers / dealers plus final / estimated subsidy
less estimated freight and warehousing expenses.

« Bulk urea at plant: Least of selling price to marketers
| dealers plus final / estimated subsidy less estimated
bagging, freight and warehousing expenses.

Others

+  Warehousing expenses have been distributed over sales
and closing stock.

« Ammonia is valued at cost as the same is captive
consumed and not intended for sale.

+ Off-spec products intended for disposal are valued at
estimated realizable value.

+ Inventory of traded products are valued atlower of location
specific cost or net realizable value. Agrochemicals
inventory is valued on FIFO method, which includes
purchase cost and other related expenses.

+ Inventory of pesticides manufactured and lying at factory
under loan licensing scheme are valued at cost excluding
excise duty.

+ Goods in transit / under inspection are valued at cost.
. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction, development or erection of qualifying assets
are capitalized as cost of such asset until the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets
are those that take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs
incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is
computed based on the weighted average cost of general
borrowing that are outstanding during the period and used
for the acquisition, construction, development or erection of
the qualifying asset.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Income earned on temporary
investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on
the qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs include exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the
year in which they are incurred.

. Financial Instruments

. Recognition and initial measurement

Al financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as

measured at

- amortized cost;
- Fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- the assetis held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the assetis held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI
(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is
made on an investment by investment basis.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized
cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the
business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and information is provided to management.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at
amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On de-recognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the
statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to the

statement of profit and loss.

The Company'’s financial assets currently include trade receivables, employee loans, deposits and an equity investment.

ii. Financial liabilities
Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized
cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss

on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities currently include trade and
other payables and borrowings.

2. De-recognition

i. Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20
101



...

MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

ii. Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when
the Company:

- currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts; and

- intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
Financial assets (including receivables)

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost.

All financial assets are assessed for credit impairment at
each reporting date. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower

- abreach of contract such as a default or being past due
for 90 days or more

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses except for certain financial
assets such as bank balances for which the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition. Loss
allowances for trade receivables are always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets
(cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset, which is the greater of its value in use and its net
selling price. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there
is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and
the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of depreciated historical cost.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurement is the use of fair value (i.e., is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants)
at the measurement date in measuring the assets and
liabilities of an entity. The Company opts to follow fair value
measurement as per Ind AS 113 viz, in respect of financial
assets and financial liabilities as stated in the notes above.

Government grants / subsidies
Related to assets

Grants related to assets are government grants whose
primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets.
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Subsidiary conditions may also be attached restricting the
type or location of the assets or the periods during which they
are to be acquired or held.

Grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet
by setting up the grant as deferred income.

Related to income

Grants related to income are those which are not related to
assets.

Government grants in the form of fertilizer and freight
subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
relating to them and that the subsidy will be received. The
point of recognition in the case of the Company is on the
goods being moved outside the factory.

Grants are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate or over the period during
which the conditions related to the grant is fulfilled.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid if the Company has a present, legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably. Short term employee benefits comprises
of wages, salaries, incentives, short term leave salary etc.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which an entity pays fixed contributions into separate
entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefits
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period
during which services are rendered by employees.

Contribution towards superannuation and provident fund are
treated as defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan.

Contributions towards gratuity are considered as defined
benefit plans and provided for in accordance with the
Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises. Out
of the defined benefit plans in the Company only gratuity is a
funded defined benefit plan.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of the plan assets.

The amount of defined benefit obligations is computed
annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest expense /
income, service cost and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan
is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain / loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s earned leave, post-retirement
medical benefits and service awards constitute other long
term employee benefits and are recognized based on an
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
These actuarial gains or losses are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

. Prior period items, accounting estimates and effect of

change in accounting policies

Prior period errors, are corrected retrospectively by restating
the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented
in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before
the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening
balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior
period presented.

The effect of change in accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively in the statement of profit and loss except where
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they relate to assets and liabilities, the same is recognized by
adjusting the carrying amount of related assets/liability/equity
in the period of change.

Changes in accounting policy due to initial application of Ind
AS are dealt with in accordance with specific transitional
provisions, if any in Ind AS. In other cases, the changes in
accounting policy are done retrospectively, the application of
such change is limited to the earliest period practicable.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Events occurring after the balance sheet date are those
events that occur between the end of the reporting period
and the date when the financial statements are approved by
the Board of Directors. Such events are disclosed or given
effect to in the financial statements as provided for in Ind AS
10 Events after the Reporting Period.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment. Cash discounts for prompt
payments are accounted as and when the related dues are
settled and presented net of revenue.

Revenue from sale of manufactured and traded fertilizers

Revenue from sale of manufactured and traded fertilizers
are recognized when the significant risk and rewards of
ownership are transferred. In the current case, the issuance
of warehouse release order come product acceptance, by
the respective authorities, is considered as the point when
risk and reward is transferred and revenue is recognized at
that particular point.

The Company estimates the amount of volume rebates,
early payment rebates at the point of sale and accounts for
revenue net of such amounts. The Company also provides
cash discounts and fixed transport rebates which is also
netted against revenue while presenting.

Revenue is presented net of goods and service tax (effective
1 July, 2017)

Other operating revenue

Urea subsidy under NPS is accounted on receipt at the
warehouses per procedure prescribed by the Government.

Increase / decrease on account of annual escalation / de-
escalation in input prices is considered based on realistic
estimates pending issue of notification by the Government.
Adjustments are effected in respect of difference, if any, in
the year of receipt.

Subsidy for phosphatic and potassic fertilizers is accounted
in line with the Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) policy of the
Government.

Other income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income with respect to financial assets at amortized
cost is recognized using the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Income from rentals for properties given on lease to third
parties are recognized on accrual basis.

Claims by the Company on underwriters are accounted as
income on acceptance of the claim / certainty of realisation,
pending settlement.

Claims on railways are accounted on settlement.

Claims for liquidated damages against suppliers/contractors
are accounted for on recovery of the same from their bills
and adjusted to the cost of assets or to the materials/works
as the case may be.

All other liquidated damages / penalties are accounted on
realization basis.

. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Initial recognition and measurement

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional
currency, by applying to the foreign currency exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.

Subsequent measurement

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
closing rate at the end of each reporting period.

Foreign currency non-monetary items are carried at historical
cost and translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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Recognition of exchange gain / loss

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were recorded on initial recognition during
the period or translated in previous financial statements are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable
on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized
for:

+ temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit and loss;

« temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in
the foreseeable future; and

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted
accordingly.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria(s) set out in Ind AS 12 Income Taxes are met.

. Leases

Finance lease

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to
the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased
assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower
of their fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Operating lease

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating
leases. Payments / receipts which are made / received under
operating leases are generally recognized in the statement
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease unless such payments / receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease
incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the
total lease expense over the term of the lease.

. Operating segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments, the
operating segments used to present segment information
are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance.
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The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s ‘Chief
Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning
of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting
purposes may evolve in connection with performance
assessment measures put in place.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or
loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
financial statements.

. Provisions (other than employee benefits), contingent
liability and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows. The unwinding of
the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Contingent assets are not recognized. They are disclosed
only when an inflow of economic benefit is probable from
such assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand,
current and short term deposit accounts which are held for

the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. The
deposits have an original maturity of three months or less.

. Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(‘EPS’) data for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the FY, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is calculated by taking the weighted average
number of ordinary shares which is calculated for basic
earnings per share and adjusted to the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary shares are
deemed to have been converted into ordinary shares at the
beginning of the FY or, if later, the date of the issue of the
potential ordinary shares.

Exceptional items

These are items of income or expense the nature of which
warrants a disclosure to enhance the understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is
classified as exceptional items and accordingly, disclosed in
the notes accompanying the financial statements.

. Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the
indirect method prescribed under Ind AS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby
profit / (Loss) for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item
of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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27 (B) Notes: 3 Fair valuation of investment in unquoted equity shares
o ) of Indian Potash Limited
1 Straight lining of lease rental |nc9me I expense In accordance to Ind AS 109, the Company has measured
Under Ind AS, lease rental esgalatpns that are not so_Ier the investment in unquoted equity shares held in Indian
to factor for expected general inflation need to be straight Potash Limited as a fair value through other comprehensive
lined over the term of the lease agreement. The Company income ('FVOCI') investment and accordingly accounted for
has entered into lease agreements with various parties the gain / (loss) on initial recognition in retained eamings.
in the capam.ty of both.a lessee and a lessor and certain The subsequent gain / (loss) has been accounted in the
leases contain escalations that are not solely to factor statement of profit and loss under Other Comprehensive
general inflation. Such escalations are straight lined over Income.
the respective lease terms with the corresponding impact on .
transition date taken to retained earnings and subsequent 4 Reassessment of residual value
impacts recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has reassessed the residual value provided
2 . ' . in case of the plants constructed on the land taken on lease
nterest free / below market interest rate financial assets .
and liabilities from lessors and thg impact on such .re.assessmen.t has
) been taken prospectively over the remaining useful life as
Upder IndAS, deposns and advances have t.o be recqrded at depreciation in the statement of profit and loss
fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued interest )
free security deposits received and provided and staff ° Employee benefits
advances. Difference between the transaction value and the Both under previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company
fair value in case of staff advances and security deposits recognised costs related to its post-employment defined
given are recognzied as prepaid staff cost and prepaid rent benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous GAAP,
expenses, respectively and amortised over the tenure of the the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, were
advance / lease. In case of security deposits received, such charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS,
difference is accounted for as income received in advance remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses,
and recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
lease term. The other leg in case of the above fair valuations net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
are recorded as interest income / expense which are on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest
accounted over the tenure of the respective asset / liability. on the net defined benefit liability) have been recognised in
other comprehensive income
For th ded Forth ) Croaesg
. . or the year ende or the year ende
28 Effect of foreign exchange fluctuation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
The amount of exchange rate difference debited / (credited) to the statement of
, 0.01 (1.97)
profit and loss
29 Movement in provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Claims recoverable
Opening balance 1.01 1.01
Additions during the year - -
Amounts used during the year - -
Reversal / adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 1.01 1.01

a. Inall these cases, outflow of economic benefits is expected within next one year

b. The assumptions made for provisions relating to current period are consistent with those in the earlier years. The assumptions and
estimates used for recognition of such provisions are qualitative in nature and their likelihood could alter in next financial year. It is
impracticable for the Company to compute the possible effect of assumptions and estimates made in recognizing these provisions.
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30 Consumption of raw material and spare parts

3

32

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Value of Indigenous and Imported Spares consumed

(X Crores)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Indigenous
RLNG/ Naphtha 781.03 780.51
Others 3.26 2.19
Total (%) 84 784.29 94 782.70
Imported
Urea 34.89 13.30
Potash 47.46 14.37
Phosphoric Acid 65.68 21.44
Total (%) 16 148.03 6 49.11
100 932.32 100 831.81
Components and Spares 12 3.84 20 2.41
Imported ( %) 88 27.98 80 9.93
Indigenous ( %) 100 31.82 100 12.34
CIF value of imports
Raw materials 31.18 115.15
Components and spares 4.05 5.2
35.23 120.35
Expenditure in foreign currency
Books and periodicals 0.12 0.03
Travel (Business, Seminar, Conference, etc.) -
0.12 0.03
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33 Related party disclosures

a)

b)

List of related parties
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Chairman and Managing Director
Shri U Saravanan

Directors

Shri Lalsanglur

Shri Mohammad Bagher Dakhili
Shri Farzad Bahrami Bavani
Shri Babak Bagherpour

Shri Harsh Malhotra

General Manager Finance

Shri V Muralidharan
Company Secretary
Dr. Girish Kumar

Employee benefit trusts managed by MFL

MFL Covered Employee Group Gratuity cum Life assurance Scheme Trust
MFL Employees Superannuation Scheme Trust

Entities under the control of same government

The Company is a Public Sector Undertaking (PSU) in which shares are held by the President of India. Pursuant to Paragraph
25 & 26 of Ind AS 24, entities over which the same government has control or joint control of, or significant influence, then the
reporting entity and other entities shall be regarded as related parties. The Company has applied the exemption available under
Paragraph 25 & 26 of Ind AS 24 for government related entities and have made limited disclosures in the financial statements.

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation

(X Crores)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Short-term employee benefits 0.81 0.79
Post-employment defined benefit 0.18 0.15
Compensated absences - -
Other long term benefits - -
0.99 0.94

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20
109



...

W MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

¢) Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

(X Crores)
Transaction value Balance outstanding
For the year For the year
ended 31 March  ended 31 March As at As at
2020 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Purchase and payment for goods and
services
Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited - 806.14 1.21 99.65
Indian Qil Corporation Limited 907.36 360.63 68.51 58.31
Contributions (X Crores)
2019-20 2018-19
MFL Employees Contributory PF Trust 5.83 5.67

34 Financial Instruments - Fair value disclosures

The management has assessed that the carrying amounts of financial assets such as trade receivables, loans, cash and cash
equivalents and financial liabilities like borrowings, trade payables recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair
values. With respect to the investment in unquoted shares, the Company has availed the services of a professional valuer and
performed fair valuation.

March 31, 2020 Carrying amount Valuati
. Fair value . Fair value a_ua lon
Description Amortised through profit | [ air value Total hierarchy techniques and
P cost ghp through OCI key inputs used
and loss

A. Financial Assets
Investments 282.50 282.50| Level3 Refer note below
Loans 7.07 7.07 NA
Trade receivables 50.87 50.87 NA
Cash and cash
equivalents 133.31 133.31 NA
Other financial assets 556.32 556.32 NA
B. Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 1,800.77 1,800.77 NA
Trade payables 115.88 115.88 NA
Other financial liabilities 139.80 139.80 NA
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March 31, 2019 Carrying amount Valuati
- Fair value . Fair value aluation
Description Amortised through profit Fair value Total hierarchy techniques and
cost through OCI key inputs used
and loss
A. Financial Assets
Investments 197.91 197.91| Level3 Refer note below
Loans 0.91 0.91 NA
Trade receivables 21.21 271.21 NA
Cash and cash equivalents 36.82 36.82 NA
Other financial assets 815.55 815.55 NA
B. Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 1,651.59 1,651.59 NA
Trade payables 276.97 276.97 NA
Other financial liabilities 125.56 125.56 NA
Movement under Level 3 (X Crores)
Description 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening cost / fair value 197.91 148.94
Add - Fair value gain recognized in statement of profit and loss 84.59 48.97
Less - Fair value loss recognized in statement of profit and loss - -
Closing fair value 282.50 197.91

Valuation technique and key inputs used for fair valuation of investment in unquoted shares of Indian Potash Limited

The Company by using the service of an external valuer has computed the fair value of the investment using the following two

techniques:

i.) Net Asset Value (NAV) method

Under this method, total external liabilities of the Company are subtracted from the total assets to arrive at the NAV. Alternatively,
the sum of paid up capital and reserves can also be calculated to arrive at the NAV. The Company has taken all assets and
liabilities at their book value. The NAV is divided by the total number of outstanding equity shares to arrive at the fair value per

share.

ii.) Comparable Company Market (CCM) method

CCM multiple uses the valuation ratios of a publicly traded company and applies that ratio to the Company being valued. The
valuation ratio typically expresses the valuation as a function of a measure of financial performance or book value. A key benefit
of CCM analysis is that the methodology is based on the current market stock price. The current stock price is generally viewed
as one of the best valuation metrics because markets are considered somewnhat efficient.

For valuation analysis of the Company, the methodology has been used by comparing the market cap to sales multiple vis-a-vis
certain companies listed on the stock exchange belonging to the fertilizer industry. During the year the valuation is based on CCM

method.
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35 Leases
i) Operating lease

a)As lessee

The lease rent paid during the year is ¥ 0.96 Cr (Previous year % 0.74 Cr). These have been classified under the line item 'Rent'
in 'Other expenses'. The future lease rent payable for each of the following periods are:

(X Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Less than one year 0.99 0.88
Between one and five years 1.41 240
More than five years

b) As lessor

Rental income on operating leases of the spaces rented out to CPCL are included under 'Rent' in 'Other Income'. The future lease rent
receivable for each of the following periods are:

Details of lease rental receivable over the remaining contract period is provided below:

(X Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Less than one year 1.08 0.98
Between one and five years 5.16 4.78
More than five years 5.58 7.03

Details of Property Leased

out

Description of Property | Leased to Period of Lease Basis of Lease
Triangle Plot - Manali Chennai  Petroleum  Corporation | 20 years from 01.08.2008 | 8% of Guideline Value & excalated
Limited @ 8% every year
Bio Fertilizer Vijayawada | Hayagreeva Bio Organics Pvt Ltd 5 Years Approx. 5% excalated every year
36 Information of goods manufactured and traded :
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quantity MT Quantity MT

(a) Installed capacities:
Ammonia 3,46,500 3,46,500
Urea 4,86,750 4,86,750
NPK 8,40,000 8,40,000
Bio fertilizers 400 400
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(b) Production
Ammonia 211,498 229,774
Neam-Urea 345,150 394,300
NPK 17-17-17 65,000 25,160
Bio fertilizers 47 150
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quantity MT Amount Quantity MT Amount
(c) Purchase of Stock in Trade :
Agro chemicals 1,45,67,691 1,34,72,273
Organic manure 2,808 90,17,287 905 35,94,972
City compost 12,041 3,21,47,282 8,088 2,11,02,914
5,57,32,260 3,81,70,159
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quantity MT Amount Quantity MT Amount
(d) Gross sales
Manufactured product
Neem Urea 3,23,764 | 1,75,73,02,757 4,19,766 | 2,19,98,96,135
NPK 17-17-17 65,517 | 1,53,12,93,440 27,430 | 58,67,04,270
Carbon-di-oxide * 8,797 2,69,58,244
Bio Fertilizers 46 14,41,608 150 46,65,730
Bought Fertilizers
Agro chemicals 2,22,35,017 1,95,43,285
Organic manure 2,808 1,28,29,744 905 46,22,001
City compost 12,041 2,74,08,418 8,088 1,75,65,836
3,35,25,10,984 2,85,99,55,501
*By product
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31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quantity MT Amount Quantity MT Amount
(e) Stocks
(i) Opening stock
(a) Finished product
Neem Urea 446 24,29,022 25,821 | 35,74,66,367
NPK 17-17-17 1,314 3,28,25,522 3,599 8,11,59,463
(b) Work in progress
Manufactured products
Ammonia 2,848 | 11,94,09,150 4,152 | 16,76,07,811
Urea-bulk 487 1,50,67,735 935 2,51,55,249
(ii) Closing stock
(a) Finished product
Manufactured products
Neem Urea 11,247 | 28,33,74,222 446 24,29,022
NPK 17-17-17 719 1,77,711,737 1,314 3,28,25,522
Bio Fertilizers 1 14,730
(b) Work in progress
Manufactured products
Ammonia 8,431 | 35,69,94,423 2,848 | 11,94,09,150
Urea-bulk 10,504 | 29,76,94,078 487 1,50,67,735
(c) Stock losses
Neem Urea 568 357
NPK 17-17-17 78 16
NPK 20-20-0-13

37

Employee benefits

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Company has floated the following defined benefit plans i) Gratuity, i) Post retirement medical benefits, iii) Compensated

absences and iv) Service awards
A. Funding

Gratuity is the only defined benefit plan that is funded by the Company. The funding requirements are based on the fund's actuarial
measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding of the plan is based on a separate actuarial

valuation for funding purpose.

The Company has determined that in accordance with the terms and conditions of the defined benefit plan, and in accordance
with statutory requirements, the present value of refunds or reductions in future contributions is not lower than the balance of the
total fair value of the plan asset less the total present value of obligations.
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B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) / liabilities
Gratuity

The cost of providing such defined benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation made at
the end of the year and is administered through a fund maintained by Life Insurance Corporation of India. This defined benefit
plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.
Every employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitied to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 *
last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed year of service subject to a ceiling of % 0.20 crore on
superannuation, resignation, termination, disablement or on death. The Company has carried out actuarial valuation of gratuity
benefit considering the enhanced ceiling.

Other benefits

Obligations on post - retirement medical benefits, compensated absences and service awards are provided using the projected
unit credit method of actuarial valuation made at the end of the year. These are unfunded plans.

Defined benefit Fair value of plan asset Net defined benefit
Obligations (asset) liability
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Gratuity
Balance as at April 1 49.19 44.94 16.77 20.61 3242 24.33
Included in profit and loss
Current service cost 1.87 1.86 - 1.87 1.86
Interest cost 3.16 3.20 - - 3.16 3.20
Interest income - - 1.11 1.36 (1.11) (1.36)
Benefits paid (4.62) (5.24) (4.62) (5.24) - -
Contributions made - - 4.04 0.04 (4.04) (0.04)
Included in OCI
Net actuarial (gain)loss and 115 443 0.14 - 1.01 443
interest
Balance at March 31 50.75 49.19 17.44 16.77 33.31 32.42
Earned leave encashment
Balance as at April 1 13.13 14.45 - 13.13 14.45
Included in profit and loss
Current service cost 0.96 0.55 - 0.96 0.55
Interest cost 0.77 1.06 - 0.77 1.06
Interest income - - - - -
Benefits paid (1.93) (0.86) - (1.93) (0.86)
Included in OCI
Net actuarial (gain)loss and 3.62 (2.07) - 3.62 (2.07)
interest
Balance at March 31 16.55 13.13 16.55 13.13
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Defined benefit Fair value of plan asset Net defined benefit
Obligations (asset) liability
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Post  retirement  medical

benefits

Balance as at April 1 1.51 1.39 - 1.51 1.39

Included in profit and loss

Current service cost 0.05 0.02 - 0.05 0.02

Interest cost 0.10 0.11 - 0.10 0.11

Interest income -

Benefits paid -

Included in OCI

Net actuarial (gain)loss and 0.59 (0.01) - 0.59 (0.01)

interest

Balance at March 31 2.25 1.51 2.25 1.51

Service award

Balance as at April 1 0.31 0.33 - 0.31 0.33

Included in profit and loss

Current service cost 0.04 0.03 - 0.04 0.03

Interest cost 0.02 0.02 - 0.02 0.02

Interest income -

Benefits paid -

Included in OCI

Net actuarial (gain)loss and 0.03 (0.07) - 0.03 (0.07)

interest

Balance at March 31 0.40 0.31 0.40 0.31
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019

Represented by :

Net defined benefit liability

- Gratuity 33.31 3242

- Earned leave encashment 16.55 13.13

- Post retirement medical benefits 2.25 1.51

- Service award 0.40 0.31
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) Plan Asset

Plan assets comprises the followings:

March 31, March 31,

2020 2019

Equity securities 30% 30%
Government bonds 70% 70%

II) Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions for the gratuity plan at the reporting date:

March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Discount rate per annum 6.74% 7.50%
Expected return per annum on plan asset 6.74% 8.00%
Salary escalation per annum 5.00% 6.00%
Mortality IALM (2012- LIC 94-96
14)U rates
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions for the other defined benefit plans at the reporting date:
Earned leave encashment Post retirement medical Service award
benefits
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Mortality table (before retirement) | IALM (2012- | [ALM (2006- | IALM (2012- | IALM (2006- | IALM (2012- | IALM (2006-
14) U 08)U 14)U 08)U 14)U 08)U
Mortality table (after retirement) NA NA| 1ALM (2012- | |ALM (2006- NA NA
14)U 08)U

Discount rate 6.36% 7.56% 6.36% 7.56% 6.36% 7.56%
Inflation rate 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89% 5.89%

The estimates of salary escalations considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. Further, the expected return on plan assets is determined considering
several applicable factors mainly the composition of plan assets held, assessed risk of asset management and historical returns from
plan assets.
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lIl') Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have effected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity
Discount rate ( +/- 100 BP ) 48.68 53.01 4715 51.42
Salary escalation per annum ( +/- 100 BP ) 5219 49.27 50.69 47.61
Mortality ( +/- 10% ) 50.76 50.76 49.20 44.93
Attrition rate ( +/- 100 BP) 50.91 50.59 49.30 49.07
Earned leave encashment
Discount rate ( +/- 100 BP ) 15.54 17.68 12.52 13.80
Salary escalation per annum ( +/- 100 BP ) 17.63 15.57 13.54 12.73
Mortality ( +/- 10% ) 16.55 16.55 13.13 13.13
Attrition rate ( +/- 100BP ) 16.53 16.58 13.14 13.11
Post retirement medical benefits
Discount rate ( +/- 100 BP ) 219 2.32 1.42 1.60
Salary escalation per annum ( +/- 100 BP ) - - - -
Mortality ( +/- 10% ) 2.25 2.25 1.51 1.51
Attrition rate ( +/- 100BP ) 2.27 2.23 1.49 1.53
Service award
Discount rate ( +/- 100 BP ) 0.38 0.41 0.30 0.33
Salary escalation per annum ( +/- 100 BP ) - - - -
Mortality ( +/- 10% ) 0.40 0.40 0.32 0.32
Attrition rate ( +/- 100BP ) 0.40 0.39 0.32 0.31

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

, it does provide an

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as
aresult of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be representative
of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years % Crore
Less than 1 year | Between 1-2 years | Between 2-5 years | Over 5 years Total

31 March 2020

- Gratuity 7.32 4.81 17.06 21.56 50.75
- Eamned leave encashment 2.05 1.28 5.16 8.06 16.55
- Post retirement medical benefits 0.29 0.18 0.59 119 2.25
- Service award 0.07 0.04 0.14 0.15 0.40
Total 9.73 6.31 22.95 30.96 69.95
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Less than 1 year | Between 1-2 years | Between 2-5 years | Over 5 years Total
31 March 2019
- Gratuity 7.73 5.13 13.79 22.54 49.19
- Earned leave encashment 245 1.16 3.79 5.73 13.13
- Post retirement medical benefits 0.17 0.14 0.36 0.84 1.51
- Service award 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.25 0.31
Total 10.36 6.45 17.97 29.36 64.14

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2020 are % 6.71 crore.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (31 March 2019:
10 years)

Obligations on post -retirement medical benefits, compensated absences and service awards are provided using the projected unit
credit method of actuarial valuation made at the end of the year.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund and superannuation fund

"Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which
both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The
contributions are made to the provident fund set up as a trust by the Company. The interest rates declared and credited by trusts to the
members have been higher than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government and there have been no shortfalls
on this account and hence treated as a defined contribution plan.

The Company also has a superannuation plan. The liability of the Company in respect of superannuation scheme is restricted to the
fixed contribution paid by the Company on an annual basis towards the defined contribution scheme maintained by Life Insurance
Corporation of India, which is charged to the statement of profit & loss statement on accrual basis.

The net amounts expended in respect of employer’s contribution to the provident fund and superannuation fund during the year, are
INR 5.83 Cr (Previous year INR 5.67 Cr)and  INR 6.71 Cr (Previous year INR 6.75 Cr) respectively.

38 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s Capital management, capital includes equity capital and all other reserves. The Company’s
capital management objective is to maximise the total shareholder return by optimising cost of capital through flexible capital
structure that supports growth.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and short term deposits.

Gearing Ratio: X Crore
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Debt 1,800.77 1,651.59
Less: Cash and bank balances 133.31 36.82
Net debt 1,667.46 1,614.76
Total equity (630.89) (575.27)
Net debt to total equity ratio - -
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39 Financial risk management

In course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain financial risks that could have significant influence on the Company’s
business and operational / financial performance. These include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves risk management framework and policies for managing these risks and monitors
suitable mitigating actions taken by the management to minimise potential adverse effects and achieve greater predictablity to
earnings.

In line with the overall risk management framework and policies, the treasury function provides services to the business, monitors
and manages through an analysis of the exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities constitute the Company's primary financial liabilities and investment in
unquoted equity shares, trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets are the financial assets.

Credit risk
Trade receivables

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on the receivables to the Company that may result in financial loss. The maximum exposure
from trade receivables amounting to ¥ 481.88 crore as of March 31, 2020 (% 706.52 crore as of March 31, 2019).

Trade receivables mainly constitute subsidy receivable from Government of India and from sale of manufactured and traded
fertilizers to dealers / other customers. Credit risk is being managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to allow credit terms in the normal course of business. In the case of the Company,
the credit period offerred varies between 30 to 60 days and there have been no significant cases of impairment historically.

Investment in unquoted equity shares

The Company has a single investment in unquoted equity shares of Indian Potash Limited. The Company does not expect any
losses from non-performance by the investee and hence no impairment is recognized.

Loans and advances

The company provides housing and other loans to its employees on concessional or interest free basis. The company manages
its credit risk in respect of such loans to employees through recovery of the same in a number of predetermined instalments.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings. Therefore the
risk of default is considered to be insignificant.

Summary of exposures to financial assets provided below:

% Crore

Financial asset Exposure as at
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019

Investments 282.50 197.91
Loans 7.07 0.91
Trade receivables 50.87 27.21
Cash and cash equivalents 133.31 36.82
Other financial assets 556.32 815.55
Total 1030.07 1,078.40
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Provision for expected credit losses
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company's customer base is the Government of India and a number of dealers. Historically the risk of default has been negligible
or nil. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 60 days are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Hence, no impairment loss has been
recognised during the reporting periods in respect of trade receivables.

(ii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables
As a policy, the Company does an ageing analysis of debtors, the details of which is stated below.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

% Crore
Interval Ageing as at
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Less than 6 months 37.57 15.99
More than 6 months - -
Total debtors 37.57 15.99
Liquidity risk

The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk through cash credit limits and undrawn borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit which carry minimal mark to
market risks.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities (principal and interest in the case of GOl loan) of non-derivative financial liabilities, based
on contractual cash flows:

Z Crore
31 March 2020 Contractual cash flows
Contractual maturities of financial | Carrying | Less than | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | 3-5years | More than Total
liabilities amount ayear 5 years
GOl Loan 1,227.03 | 1,175.74 26.04 16.35 8.90 - 1,227.03
Trade payables 115.88 115.88 115.88
Other financial liabilities 124.25 124.25 124.25
TOTAL 1,467.15| 1,415.86 26.04 16.35 8.90 -| 1,467.15
% Crore
31 March 2019 Contractual cash flows
Contractual maturities of financial | Carrying | Less than | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | 3-5years | More than Total
liabilities amount ayear 5 years
GOl Loan 117245 | 1,276.98 27.34 26.04 16.35 8.90 | 1,355.61
Trade payables 276.97 276.97 - - - - 276.97
Other financial liabilities 110.01 110.01 - - - - 110.01
TOTAL 1,559.42 | 1,663.95 27.34 26.04 16.35 8.90 | 1,742.58
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk for the entity comprises two types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include borrowings, trade payables in foreign currency and investment in unquoted equity shares. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk

The Company executes import agreements for the purpose of purchase of raw materials. These are not hedged by the Company
owing to the materiality of such foreign exchange gain / loss values.

The currency profile of financial liabilities are as below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Trade payables (Z Crore) 35.35 120.38
Sensitivity analysis

Astrengthening of the Indian Rupee, as indicated below, against the Foregin currency as at 31 March would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the
Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for previous year, except that the reasonably
possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below.

31 March 2020 Profit and loss

10% movement Strengthening | Weakening
Trade payables denominated in foreign currency (3.54) 3.54
31 March 2019 Profit and loss

10% movement Strengthening | Weakening
Trade payables denominated in foreign currency (12.04) 12.04

Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk as the interest rate on the sole borrowing from GOl is fixed in nature.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Z Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Financial assets
Fixed-rate instruments
Employee loans 7.07 0.91

Financial liabilities
Fixed-rate instruments
GOl term loan 1,211.48 1,156.90
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither
the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in quoted equity securities. In the case of the
Company, the sole investment in equity shares is unquoted and does not expose the Company to equity price risks, however there can

54" Annual Report 2019 - 20
122



...

W MADRAS FERTILIZERS LIMITED

be changes in the equity price based on valuations done at different reporting periods owing to the operations and general business
enviroment in which the investee operates. In general, the investment is not held for trading purposes.

Equity price sensitivity analysis
A 5% change in prices of equity instruments held as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 would result in an increase/ decrease of
Rs 13.20 Cr and Rs 9.90 Cr in fair value of the equity instrument respectively.
40 Contingent liabilities/Contingent assets and Commitments
% Crore

As at As at
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

A. Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities in respect of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 218.09 203.72
(Includes Penal Interest on GOI Loans % 198.39 Cr).
B. Commitments

L/Cs outstanding (not provided for) 3.30 5.09

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not 21.32 54.56
provided for (after adjusting advance made therefor)
41 The total amount payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2018 as identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors is provided below:

% Crore
31 March 2020 |31 March 2019
i. Dues outstanding more than 45 days - -
ii. Amount remaining unpaid as at the end of the year
Principal Amount 0.01
Interest Amount
iii. The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 18 along with the amounts of the payment - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
iv. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
As per the terms of the Contract
As specified in the Act
v. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
42 The Company defaulted repayment of loan principal and interest on GOl loans as detailed below:

% Crore

Principal Interest Total
Revamp loans 122.30 145.54 267.84
Plan loans 359.89 492.93 852.82
Non plan loans 20.77 34.32 55.09
Total 502.96 672.79 1175.75

43 OTHER DISCLOSURES:
a. Governmentof India has not so far raised any demand for penal interest amounting to ¥ 198.39 Cr (Previous Year X 183.15
Cr). However, the same is shown under Contingent Liabilities per practice.
b. During the year an amount of Rs 6.74 Cr has been received from UIIC towards full and final settlement of Vardha cyclone claim
against 50% of balance receivable ¥ 7.50 Cr.  The difference claim of Rs 0.75 Cr was charged off during the financial year .
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44

45

46

47

c. Other Income includes a sum of % 0.58 Cr (Previous Year % 0.58 Cr) being the rent receivable from CPCL for the area let out
for their LPG pipeline, for which the renewal of agreement is under negotiation.

d. The Company is in the process of signing MOU with DOF for the FY 2020-21 and is yet to be signed.

e. Chennai Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewerage Board (CMWSSB) has allotted 43.13 acres of land for a lease period of
33 years at kodungaiyur for TTP Plant in the year 1989. The Company surrendered 20.224 acres of surplus land not used for
TTP plant, but CMWSSB refused to take back that land. After negotiations CMWSSB agreed for payment of lease rent up to
June 2017 amounting to % 5.64 Cr in a phased manner and based on that, the Company has paid an amount of ¥ 3.10 Cr ill
date. From July 2017 onwards the lease rent is being paid on aquarterly basis. The MOU is yet to be signed.

f. The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act (SICA) has been repealed from December 01, 2016 and the Board
for Industrial and Financial Restructuring (BIFR) stand dissolved from that date. The Company is pursuing legal options to
file the Revival proposal to the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). However, based on PDIL report, The Company has
submitted Financial restructuring proposal with DOF, GOI for their consideration.

g. Confirmation of Balances has not been received in respect of Loans for GOI, Trade Receivables/Payables and Loans and
Advances

Exhange rate fluctuation

Exchange rate fluctuation included in other income is INR 0.01 Cr (Previous year INR 1.97 Cr)
Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 'Operating segments'

Basis for segmentation

In the case of the Company, the Board of Directors / CMD are considered to be the CODM. The Board of Directors / CMD review
the performance of the Company and allocate resources based on the various management information reports provided by the
respective departments of the Company.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Company primarily as two segments:
i) Fertilizers (Urea and NPK)
ii) Other activities (Trading activites and Bio fertilizers)

However, since the revenue from other activities constitute less than 5% of the reported revenue and no significant assets are
employed for these activities, the management is of the view that the Company has only one reportable segment that relates to
manufacture of sale of fertilizers.

Geographical information

The geographical information analyses the Company's revenues and non-current assets by the Company's country of domicile
(i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, revenue has been based on the geographic location
of customers and non-current assets have been based on the geographical location of the assets. Since the Company is in the
operation of manufacture and sale of fertilizers within India, the entire revenue is domestic and all non-current assets are situated
in India only.

Major customer NA
Income taxes

No provision towards income tax liability has been made during the year as the operations resulted in loss and being a sick
company, the Company is not liable for MAT.

Government grants and subsidies

Urea Subsidy under New Pricing Scheme is accounted on receipt at the warehouses per procedure prescribed by the Government.
Credit/Debit for annual escalation / de-escalation in input prices is considered based on realistic estimates pending issue of
notification by the Government. Adjustments are effected in respect of difference, if any, in the year of receipt.

Subsidy for Phosphatic and Potassic fertilizers is accounted in line with the Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) policy of the Government.
Subsidy under New Pricing Scheme (NPS) for Urea
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Escalation/De-escalation in input prices is subject to annual revision based on the actual prices. Accordingly, a sum of % 144.46 Cr
(Previous year % 144.92 Cr receivable) has been reckoned as payable to FICC for the year 2019-20 towards annual De-escalation
of input prices.

Subsidy includes an amount of % 16.26 Cr (Previous year % 14.14 Cr) being the additional fixed cost of ¥ 350 / MT as envisaged
in the modified NPS |1l Policy announced by DOF dated April 02, 2014, and approved by the Cabinet Committee on Economic
Affairs (CCEA) on March 13,2020 and an amount of Rs 4.88 Cr being the additional fixed cost benefit of Rs 150/MT for conversion
of Feed Stock from Naptha to RLNG. as per the said approval of CCEA. This Additional compensation of Rs 350/MT is pending
from 2014-15 onwards the details of which is given below:

SL.NO YEAR AMOUNT ( Cr)
1 2014-15 1143
2 2015-16 13,62
3 2016-17 15.70
4 2017-18 15.46
5 2018-19 14.14
TOTAL 70.35

Impairment of assets

A detailed valuation has been done by a reputed Chartered Engineer and valuer and as per his report no adjustment towards
impairment loss is considered necessry by the Company as on 31.03.2020. Net selling price of the major Plant and equipment
has been assessed against the book value on that date is detailed below:

¥ Crore
Plant As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019
Net selling price | Book Value | Net selling price |  Book Value
Ammonia 399.20 136.24 330.12 93.01
Urea 75.88 24.82 70.59 25.04
NPK 15.30 3.68 13.98 4,56
Utilities 30.28 9.50 28.17 9.70
48 Amount in the financial statements are presented in % Crore (upto two decimals) except for per share data and as other-wise stated.

49

50

51

Certain amounts, which do not appear due to rounding off, are disclosed separately.
Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116 'Leases’

The Company has evaluated the potential impact of the adoption of Ind AS 116 on accounting policies followed in its financial
statements and it expects no material impact on adoption of the same.

Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'

The amendment to Ind AS 21 applies to entities for foreign currency consideration paid or received in advance. The amendment
requires such advance paid or deferred liability to be restated using the spot rate as of the date of such a transaction.
The Company has evaluatred the potential impact of the adoption of Ind AS 21 on accounting policies followed in its financial
statements and it expects no material impact on adoption of the same.

Regrouping / reclassification

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified to correspond with the current year's classification and
disclosure.

Special Banking Arrangements

Special Banking Arrangement Loan for Rs 307.67 Cr received from Punjab National Bank against fertilizer subsidy receivable from
Gol for the year 2019-20 (Urea subsidy of ¥ 307.47 Cr. and NPK subsidy of % 0.20 Cr.).
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52 Physical Verification of Movable Fixed Assets and Stores & Spares
An Independent CA firm has been appointed to carry out the physical verification of mavoble fixed assets and stores & spares. The
physical verification is being carried out in a phased manner and during the year a portion of movable assets and stores & spares
were written off as approved in the 310th Board Meeting.

53 Entry tax of Rs.2.52 cr, provided for payment during the years 2013-14 to 2017-18, has not been remitted, since the appeal filed
by ITC Ltd. against the Tamilnadu Government in this regard, has not been disposed off. The said amount is retained as provision
in the books of accounts by the Company for payment, when demanded.

Payment of ITC-VAT others of Rs.2.51 Cr, provided in the books for the period 2009-10 to 2017-18 , towards ITC availed on sale
of by-product Carbon-di-oxide, will be effected only on completion of sales tax assessment of the respective years and issue of
demand notice. Hence the said amount is retained as provision in the books of the Company.

Tax u/s 3(4) of the TNGST Act, 1959 of Rs.7.78 Cr for the period 2002-03 to 2005-06, provided for, represents the differential tax
demanded by the Commercial tax authorities, by deviating from the normally adopted formula followed by the authorities upto
2001-02. Since the finalization of the same will be made during the sales tax assessment of the said years, the amount is retained
as liability in the books of accounts.

54 Investment Property

Investment Property at Bio Fertilizers Plant in Vijayawada is valued on the basis of market value of the Property by an independent
Chartered Engineer and Investment property at Manali is valued based on Govt Guideline value.

55 The Company has agreed to allot Land for errection of 400 KV DC Transmission line by TANTRANSCO, as the porject is
conceived by TANTRANSCO for public purpose. The Tower is errected inside the Company premisis and approximately 410
meters transmission line crossing through the Company campus.

[For and on behalf of the Board/

U SARAVANAN LALSANGLUR PRIYA RANJAN PANDA Dr GIRISH KUMAR
Chairman & Managing Director Director General Manager-F&A (alc) Company Secretary
Aug 28, 2020

As per our Report of even date

For J V Ramanujam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 002947S

CA SRI NARAYANA JAKHOTIA
Partner
Aug 28, 2020 M No 233192
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A 3R 3 IR GHEIT @IS |iufa o1 sreaa srdew
24, sast, 2020 F af¥Frg & deeR A 3o frw = gerawe
Study tour programme of the Parliamentary Standing Committee on Chemicals & Fertilizers - Farmers
Interaction Session held on 24t January 2020 at Vellore, Tamilnadu
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TR FADAT JTTIBRT
SHRI A L PRABHAKAR
Chief Vigilance Officer
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SHRI PRIYA RANJAN PANDA Dr. GIRISH KUMAR

General Manager-F&A (a/c) Company Secretary
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